
Notice of Meeting and Agenda and Minutes
March 28, 2016

SPECIAL, 3/28/2016 1:30:00 PM

BE IT REMEMBERED that on March 28, 2016, there was begun and
holden a SPECIAL session of the Commissioners Court of Jefferson
County, Texas, with the following members and officers present and
participating except those absent as indicated:

Honorable Jeff Branick, County Judge

Commissioner Eddie Arnold, Commissioner Pct. No. 1

Commissioner Brent Weaver, Commissioner Pct. No. 2

Commissioner Michael Sinegal, Commissioner Pct. No. 3

Commissioner Everette D. Alfred, Commissioner Pct. No. 4
(ABSENT)

Honorable G. Mitch Woods, Sheriff

Honorable Carolyn L. Guidry , County Clerk (ABSENT) -

Theresa Goodness, Chief Deputy

When the following proceedings were had and orders made, to-wit:
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Notice of Meeting and Agenda and Minutes
March 28, 2016

Jeff R. Branick, County Judge
Eddie Arnold, Commissioner, Precinct One

Brent A. Weaver, Commissioner, Precinct Two
Michael S. Sinegal, Commissioner, Precinct Three
Everette "Bo" Alfred, Commissioner, Precinct Four

NOTICE OF MEETING AND AGENDA
OF COMMISSIONERS' COURT

OF JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
March 28, 2016

Notice is hereby given that the Commissioners' Court of Jefferson
County, Texas, willmeet at 1:30 PM, on the 28th day ofMarch 2016 at its
regular meeting place in the Jury Impaneling room, Jefferson County Courthouse, 1085 Pearl Street,
Beaumont, Texas. Until further notice.

Said meeting will be a Special for the purpose of transacting the routine
business of the County. Persons with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids for
services who wish to attend this meeting should contact the County Judge's
Office to arrange for assistance.

In addition to the routine business of the County, the subject of said
meeting will be the following:

INVOCATION: Michael S. Sinegal, Commissioner, Precinct Three

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Brent A. Weaver, Commissioner, Precinct
Two
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PURCHASING:

1. Consider and approve, execute, receive and file a renewal for (IFB 12-
010/KJS), Term Contract for Crushed Slag (Gr.1, Type D, Class 2) for
Jefferson County with Martin Asphalt Company for a fourth additional
one (1) year renewal from April 26, 2016 to April 25, 2017.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 10 - 10

Motion by: Commissioner Weaver
Second by: Commissioner Sinegal
In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal
Action: APPROVED

2. Consider and approve, execute, receive, and file a contract extension for
(RFP 10-066/KJS), Lease of the Downtown Jail Facility with LaSalle
Corrections for an additional one year term from June 24, 2016 through
June 23, 2017.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 11 - 11

Action: TABLED

3. Consider and approve, execute, receive, and file a contract amendment for
(PROF 15-027/JW), Phase II MS4 Storm Water Permit Implementation
Services. This amendment will assign the continuation of projects under
this professional agreement to LJA Engineering, Inc., as this firm has
merged with Carroll & Blackman, Inc.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 12 - 18

Motion by: Commissioner Weaver
Second by: Commissioner Sinegal
In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal
Action: APPROVED

4. Consider and approve utilizing available Capital Project Funds for the
purchase of 22 AED devices to replace current obsolete machines for
Jefferson County Facilities in the amount of $37,863.54.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 19 - 25

Motion by: Commissioner Weaver
Second by: Commissioner Sinegal
In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal
Action: APPROVED
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5. Consider and possibly approve donation of salvage property as authorized
by Local Government Code §263.152 (a) (4), by donating it to a
charitable organization, Goodwill Industries.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 26 - 28

Motion by: Commissioner Weaver
Second by: Commissioner Sinegal
In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal
Action: APPROVED

CONSTABLE PRECINCT 6:

6.  Consider and possibly approve the hiring of Everett Demon Cormier as a
Deputy Constable with Constable, Precinct 6 in accordance with Local
Government Code (LGC) 86.011.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 29 - 29

Motion by: Commissioner Weaver
Second by: Commissioner Arnold
In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal
Action: APPROVED

CONSTABLE PRECINCT 8:

7. Consider and possibly approve the hiring of Donald Ray Jackson as a
Deputy Constable with Constable, Precinct 8 in accordance with Local
Government Code (LGC) 86.011.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 30 - 30

Motion by: Commissioner Sinegal
Second by: Commissioner Arnold
In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal
Action: APPROVED
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March 28, 2016

COUNTY AIRPORT:

8. Consider, possibly approve and authorize the County Judge to execute a
Resolution Giving Approval to the Buckner Retirement Services, Inc.
Project for Buckner Retirement Services, Inc. to facilitate refunding of
2007 bonds for debt service savings pursuant to Health Facilities
Development Act, Chapter 221, Texas Health & Safety Code. This is for
the expansion of senior living communities for Buckner’s Calder Woods
and Jefferson County will have no liability for the bonds.)

Motion by: Commissioner Weaver
Second by: Commissioner Sinegal
In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal
Action: APPROVED

9. Consider and possibly adopt a Resolution recognizing Tommy Harper for
35 years of dedicated service to the Jack Brooks Regional Airport and to
the citizens of Jefferson County and wishing him well in his retirement.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 31 - 31

Motion by: Commissioner Weaver
Second by: Commissioner Sinegal
In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal
Action: APPROVED

COUNTY AUDITOR:

10. Receive and file the Jefferson County Comprehensive Annual financial
Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 32 - 231

Motion by: Commissioner Sinegal
Second by: Commissioner Weaver
In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal
Action: APPROVED
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11. Receive and file the SAS 114 Letter from Pattillo, Brown, & Hill LLP
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 232 - 236

Motion by: Commissioner Sinegal
Second by: Commissioner Weaver
In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal
Action: APPROVED

12. Consider and approve renewal of arbitrage rebate compliance services
contract with First Southwest Asset Management. Current fee is $1,200
per issue, proposed renewal is $1,400 per issue. Total annual cost is
estimated at $4,200.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 237 - 245

Motion by: Commissioner Sinegal
Second by: Commissioner Weaver
In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal
Action: APPROVED

13. Regular County Bills - check #418799 through check #419018.
SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 246 - 254

Motion by: Commissioner Sinegal
Second by: Commissioner Weaver
In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal
Action: APPROVED

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS:

14. Consider and possibly approve Jefferson County Tourism Committee
Spring 2016 Hotel Occupancy Tax allocation recommendations.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 255 - 255

Motion by: Commissioner Arnold
Second by: Commissioner Sinegal
In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal
Action: APPROVED
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COUNTY TAX ASSESSOR-COLLECTOR:

15. Consider, possibly approve and authorize the County Judge to execute,
receive and file an agreement between Jefferson County and the City of
Taylor Landing for assessment and collection services.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 256 - 259

Motion by: Commissioner Arnold
Second by: Commissioner Sinegal
In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal
Action: APPROVED

HUMAN RESOURCES:

16. Presentation of the 2015 Employee Excellence Award.

Motion by: Commissioner Arnold
Second by: Commissioner Sinegal
In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal
Action: APPROVED

17. Consider and possibly approve Resolution for the 2015 Employee
Excellence Award winner.

Second Finalist - Leslie Little; First Finalist - David Dominguez; Winner -
Laurie Reeves

Motion by: Commissioner Arnold
Second by: Commissioner Sinegal
In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal
Action: APPROVED
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SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT:

18. Please consider and approve Crime Lab Director EmilyEsquivel's
attendance at the American Society of Crime Laboratory
DirectorsSymposium in Bellevue, Washington April 24-28, 2016.  This
trip wasapproved during 2015-2016 budget hearings, but the location
was not determined(TBA) at the time of approval.  The trip is budgeted
in this year's CrimeLab travel budget.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 260 - 261

Motion by: Commissioner Weaver
Second by: Commissioner Sinegal
In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal
Action: APPROVED

19. Please consider and approve Forensics Scientists TiffanyAardahl and
Steve Mayes attendance at the Bureau of Justice Assistanceconference in
Washington, D.C., June 13-14, 2016.  This conference is atwo day
training event for laboratories receiving funding through the
SexualAssault Kit Elimination Program.  The cost for the two attendees
wasincluded in the DANY Grant funds awarded to the Crime Lab.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 262 - 263

Motion by: Commissioner Weaver
Second by: Commissioner Sinegal
In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal
Action: APPROVED

20. Execute, receive and file Software Licenses andService Agreement
between SunGard Public Sector Inc.and Jefferson County forcomputer
aided dispatch at the Sheriff's Office.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 264 - 285

Motion by: Commissioner Weaver
Second by: Commissioner Sinegal
In favor: County Judge Branick, Commissioner Arnold, Commissioner
Weaver, Commissioner Sinegal
Action: APPROVED

ADDENDUMS
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DISTRICT ATTORNEY:

21. Immediately following Commissioners Court- Announcement of an
executive (closed) session pursuant to Texas Government Code Section
§ 551.071 for the purpose of receiving information regarding matters that
are in litigation.

Action: NONE

______________________________________________
Jeff R. Branick
County Judge
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The First and Only
Full-Rescue AED
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What Good is an AED
that Only Works Half the Time?

When a cardiac arrest occurs, the fact is that only half 
of the victims will need a shock. The other half require
high-quality cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR).

You deserve an automated external defibrillator (AED) 
that helps you all the time, one that can actually see 
when you are doing CPR and provide help. You need
more than just commands without assistance. That’s not smart, and it’s certainly not help. 

Only ZOLL®’s AED Plus® features Real CPR Help,™ a tool that is able to actually see what you
are doing and provide feedback to help you do it well. Audio and visual prompts help you
rescue with confidence and clarity unmatched by any other AED. 

Not pushing hard enough? It will tell you to push harder.

Pushing hard enough? It will say, “Good compressions.” 

Not pushing fast enough? A metronome will lead you to the right rate.

It will even show you the depth of each compression. 
In real time. 

Not yet started? The AED Plus will tell you again to get started.

Compressions stopped? It will tell you to continue.

ZOLL believes an AED should not just deliver a shock. It should also help the rescuer 
provide high-quality CPR. That’s why you need ZOLL’s AED Plus with Real CPR Help. 
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More than a Defibrillator
A Full-Rescue AED

The Chain of Survival

The best way to increase the chance of saving sudden 
cardiac arrest (SCA) victims is to remember and follow
every link in the Chain: Early Access, Early CPR, Early
Defibrillation, and Early Advanced Care. Every step helps
save lives. Any break in the Chain compromises survival. 

Ordinary AEDs only defibrillate. Rapid defibrillation is a 
critical intervention to improve survival, but it is not enough.
While roughly half of unresponsive collapsed victims need
defibrillation, every one of them needs CPR.

Following the Chain of Survival requires more than just 
attaching electrodes and delivering a shock. From checking
responsiveness, summoning help, and doing an “ABC” assess-
ment (Airway, Breathing, Circulation) to CPR and defibrillation,
the ZOLL AED Plus with Real CPR Help helps guide the 
rescuer through the entire effort to rescue SCA victims. 

The AED Plus Fully Supports the Rescuer

By focusing on the full Chain of Survival and providing Real
CPR Help, the AED Plus is the first and only Full-Rescue AED.

“AEDs are easy to use, while CPR and the ABCs remain difficult to perform. Based on 
adherence to the Chain of Survival guidelines, however, those who used the ZOLL device

performed significantly better than those who used the other devices.” 3

Early 
Access

Early 
CPR

Early 
Defibrillation

Early 
Advanced Care
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Real CPR Help for Infrequent Rescuers When They Need it Most

A Complete Road Map for Resuscitation

A picture is worth a thousand words. The AED Plus’ unique graphical interface – pictures combined with 
text displays and voice prompts – helps rescuers every step of the way. Lights on the pictures draw the rescuer’s
attention to actions in the proper sequence. Text and voice prompts correspond to the pictures and help the
rescuer perform every important life-saving action. These pictures and prompts assure that everything is done in
order, and that shocks, if required, are delivered rapidly. 

One Electrode is Easier than Two

Ordinary AEDs require that the rescuer use two confusing electrodes. ZOLL’s Full-Rescue AED features 
CPR-D•padz,™ a one-piece, pre-connected pair of electrodes with Real CPR Help. By using CPR hand
placement as the landmark, it is easy to place the CPR-D•padz,on the victim quickly. The CPR-D•padz,
also last five years – the longest shelf life of any electrodes sold today.

Intelligent Pediatric Capability

The ZOLL AED Plus can defibrillate children up to
eight years of age, using the pedi•padz® II electrodes.

When the pedi•padz II are connected, the AED Plus
recognizes that a pediatric rescue is in progress. With ECG

analysis developed specifically for a pediatric heart rate,
coupled with appropriate defibrillation energy levels, the AED Plus

can handle both adult and pediatric rescues.
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Only One AED Provides Real CPR Help

Consumer Batteries for Convenience and Savings

The AED Plus is the only AED to use inexpensive, consumer lithium
batteries that are easy to replace and last five years in stand-by mode.

The ZOLL AED Plus Supports the Full Chain of Survival Best.9

The ZOLL AED Plus Improves CPR Performance the Most.10

ZOLL’s Rectilinear Biphasic Waveform 

The ZOLL Rectilinear Biphasic™ waveform (RBW) is the only biphasic waveform
cleared by the FDA7 to be labeled as clinically superior to monophasic waveforms
for the conversion of ventricular fibrillation in high-impedance patients.8 It allows
the AED Plus to deliver more current than any other AED when it matters most. 

Interactive Feedback for Rate and Depth 

Inadequate compression rate and depth are common during CPR.4,5,6 Adult victims need
compressions at a rate of 100 per minute and at a depth of 11⁄2 to 2 inches.
Compressions must be done well to effectively move blood and oxygen.

ZOLL’s Real CPR Help converts compression data instantaneously from the CPR-D•padz,
and provides an adaptive metronome to help the rescuer with the proper rate and depth,
saying “Push harder” or “Good compressions,” as needed. It also shows CPR compression
depth on the display. ZOLL’s AED Plus is the only AED that can see your chest
compressions and guide you to the correct rate and depth during CPR. No other AED
provides Real CPR Help.
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©2007 ZOLL Medical Corporation. All rights reserved. 
“Advancing Resuscitation. Today.”, CPR-D•padz, Real CPR Help, and Rectilinear
Biphasic are trademarks of ZOLL Medical Corporation. ZOLL, AED Plus, AED Pro,
and pedi•padz are registered trademarks of ZOLL Medical Corporation. 
All trademarks are the property of their respective owners. 
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With more than 25 years of experience in
defibrillation, ZOLL is a pioneer in resuscitation
solutions. ZOLL develops technologies to help
advance the practice of resuscitation. With
products for pacing, defibrillation, circulation,
ventilation, data management, and fluid
resuscitation, ZOLL provides a comprehensive 
set of technologies that can help clinicians, EMS
professionals, and infrequent rescuers resuscitate
sudden cardiac arrest and trauma victims.
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EKG monitoring and manual defibrillation.
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PATRICK SWAIN 
COUNTY AUDITOR 

(409) 835-8500 

March 17, 2016 

Citizens of Jefferson County, Texas: 

Honorable District Judges: 
Gary Sanderson, Presiding Judge, 60th District Court 
John Stevens, Jr., Judge, Criminal District Court 
Kent Walston, Judge, 58th District Court 
Milton Shuffield, Judge, 136th District Court 
Donald Floyd, Judge, 172nd District Court 
Raquel West, Judge, 252nd District Court 
Randy Shelton, Judge, 279th District Court 
Larry Thome, Judge, 317th District Court 

Honorable Commissioners' Court: 
JeffBranick, County Judge 
Eddie Arnold, Commissioner, Precinct No.1 
Brent Weaver, Commissioner, Precinct No.2 
Michael "Shane" Sinegal, Commissioner, Precinct No.3 
Everette "Bo" Alfred, Commissioner, Precinct No.4 

1149 PEARL ST. -7TH FLOOR 
BEAUMONT, TEXAS 77701 

The County Auditor's Office ("the Auditor's Office") is pleased to present the Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report ("CAFR") of Jefferson County, Texas (the "County") for the fiscal year 
ended September 30, 2015. This report is submitted in accordance with Section 114.025 of the 
Texas Local Government Code and has been prepared by the County Auditor's staff. 

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information 
contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal controls that it has 
established for this purpose. Because the cost of internal controls should not exceed anticipated 
benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial 
statements are free of any material misstatements. 

Pattillo, Brown, & Hill, LLP, Certified Public Accountants, has issued an unmodified ("clean") 
opinion on the County' s financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2015. The 
independent auditors' report is located at the front of the financial section of this report. 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditors' 
report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis ofthe basic financial statements. 
MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it. 

PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT 

Jefferson County was created in 1836 and organized in 1837 as one of the original counties of the 
Republic of Texas. It is a 954 square mile county that is located on the upper Texas Coast and is a 
component of the Beaumont-Port Arthur-Orange Metropolitan Statistical Area. According to the 
U.S. Department of Commerce-Bureau of the Census, the 2015 population of the County was 
252,235. The County is empowered to levy a property tax on both real and personal property located 
within its boundaries. 

Jefferson County is a political subdivision of the State of Texas and the Commissioners' Court is the 
governing body of the County. It is composed of the County Judge elected from the County at large, 
and four Commissioners, each elected from a separate precinct, all elected for four-year terms. The 
County Judge is the presiding officer of the Commissioners' Court. 

The County (primary government) solely or in cooperation with other local governmental entities 
provides a full range of services authorized by the Texas Constitution and Statutes that includes 
construction and maintenance of roads and bridges, health and housing services, assistance to 
indigents, juvenile and adult justice programs, economic development, recreation and cultural 
enrichment, an airport, an entertainment complex, and general administration. 

The combined financial statements of the County as a fmancial reporting entity report all activities, 
organizations, and functions of the County, both as the primary government and its legally separate 
components units for which (I) the elected officials of the County are financially accountable and/or 
(2) exclusion of component units activities would cause the, County's financial statements to be 
misleading or incomplete. The County's component units have been reported as blended with the 
County as the primary government or as discrete (separate) component unit, as appropriate. Criteria 
used by the County for including activities in preparing these financial statements are in conformity 
with GASB 14, The Financial Reporting Entity and GASB 39, Determining Whether Certain 
Organizations are Component Units. Based on the requirements of these accounting standards, the 
County reports the Southeast Texas Government Employee Benefits Pool as a blended component 
unit. 

The County is required to adopt a final budget no later than close of the fiscal year. This annual 
budget serves as the foundation for the County's financial planning and control. The level of 
budgetary control is the department within the individual funds. The County maintains an 
encumbrance accounting system as a method to accomplish budgetary control. Department heads 
may transfer resources within a department as needed. Transfers between departments, however, 
require approval by Commissioners' Court. 
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FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITIONS 

Local econolllY 

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is 
considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the County 
operates 

The area is served by deep-water ports located at Beaumont, Port AI1hur, Orange, and Sabine Pass. 
The Sabine Neches Waterway provides deep-water access to ocean-going vessels, which are served 
by public ports within the County. 

The County is traversed by Interstate Highway 10, US Highways 90 and 69-96-287, State Highways 
73,87, and 105 and three farm-to-market roads. Rail and motor freight carriers also provide freight 
service to the County. The Jack Brooks Regional Airp011 located between Beaumont and Port 
AI1hur provides passenger and freight service and is cunently serviced by one commuter passenger 
air canier. 

The economy of the County is based primarily on petroleum refining; the production and processing 
of petrochemicals, bio-fuels and other chemicals; the fablication of steel and steel products; shipping 
activity; the manufacture of wood, pulp, food and feed products; agriculture; and health care 
services. The County continues to diversify its economic base as evidenced by the increase of jobs in 
the services and government sectors. The County is also home to the largest military off-load port in 
the world. 

Several large projects are in construction, pennitting, and development for the area and the County 
continues to work with other taxing entities to create a business environment conducive to tIus 
growth. These include such notables as Lucite, Air Products, Vito I, Golden Pass Products, OCI, and 
Exxon Mobil. 

Petrochemical expansions at the Motiva, Total, and Valero facilities located in Jefferson County 
represent approximately SI5 billion in project improvements. In addition, hundreds of millions of 
dollars are being spent on tenninal and pipeline facilities to support these projects. Construction of 
the Trans-Canada Keystone XL pipeline wluch will deliver Canadian tar sands crude to Jefferson 
County and help in relieving our dependence on oil from more politically volatile regions is awaiting 
federal pennit approval. In addition, recent rail tenninal facility expansions and new construction 
has sigtuficantly increased the transportation of Canadian tar sands oil and bitumen to our area for 
processing by area refineries. 

Cheniere, one of two companies with Liquefied Natural Gas Tenninals on the border of the 
Texas/Louisiana Coast, is completing construction of a $1 0 billion liquefaction facility. Golden Pass 
LNG opened their tenninal in mid 2011 . With their opening, our ship channel is now home to over 
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40% of the nation's LNG capacity. Golden Pass LNG has filed with federal authorities for pennits 
allowing it to build a $10 billion gas liquefaction facility in Jefferson County. 

The County has participated in a study by the u.s. Anny Corps of Engineers into the feasibility of 
deepening the Sabine-Neches waterway. This will allow ports in Southeast Texas, the third largest 
in the nation, to accommodate newer deep draft vessels and thus remain competitive with other ports 
on the Gulf Coast. Recently, the U.S. Anny Corps of Engineers issued their "Chiefs Report" which 
paves the way for federal funding of this project. The U S House and Senate recently passed 
legislation which was signed by the President authorizing the construction of the waterway 
improvements at a cost in excess of $1 billion. Congressional approPliations for the project are 
expected shortly. 

The County continues to work with indusl1y leaders, the Texas Workforce COlmnission, Lamar 
Institute of Technology, Lamar University and non-profit groups to supply a workforce able to 
handle the growing labor needs of the County. This is especially critical given the interest of the 
international community in locating facilities in our county. 

The resurgence in U. S. oil and gas exploration and production has made the County the place of 
choice for those industrial sectors seeking to exploit opportunities to profit from histOlically low 
priced energy commodities. Our excellent water bound, rail, highway, and pipeline infrastructure, 
the readily availability of water resources, and our business-fiiendly govenunental environment, 
coupled with a lower than average tax environment, has caught the attention of energy and 
manufacturing companies worldwide. As a result, the County fully expects a significant increase in 
industrial and cOlmnercial ad valorem values over the next ten years. 

Long-term financial planning & Relevant financial policies 

Commissioners' COUli continues to follow their policy guideline for budgetary and plmming 
purposes of building and maintaining an unassigned fund balance in the general fund of at least 15% 
of total general fund expenditures and transfers. The County ended the fiscal year with an 
unassigned fund balance of32.0% of total general fund expenditures and transfers. TIns falls within 
the policy guidelines. 

Major Initiatives 

The Commissioners' Court set the property tax rate at $ .365 per $1 00 of assessed property valuation 
to provide funds for services and debt service for fi scal year 2015 . Budget initiatives for fiscal year 
2015 included: 

• Maintained the same property tax rate which was 2.9% below the effective tax rate. 

• Provided a 2% salary increase for all employees. 
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• Commissioners' Com1 would utilize previously transferred funds to complete outstanding 
capital projects. 

• Maintain capital expenditures for durable goods to replace needed equipment to necessalY 
levels. 

AWARDS 

The Govenunent Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a 
Cet1ificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Jefferson County, Texas for its 
comprehensive alU1Ual financial report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014. This 
was the sevententh consecutive year that the govenunent has achieved thi s prestigious award. 

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a govenunent unit must publish an easily 
readable and efficiently organized comprehensive atU1Ual financial repol1. TIllS rep0l1 must satisfy 
both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current repOt1 
continues to meet the Cel1ificate of Achievement Program's requirements and we are submitting it to 
GFOA to detennine its eligibility for another ce11ificate. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the dedicated services of 
the staff of the County Auditor's Office. I express my sincere appreciation to all the members of tIlls 
office who contributed to its preparation. Also, I express my appreciation to the members of the 
Connnissioners' Court, their staff, and all other County officials and employees who have given their 
support in platUling and conducting the financial operations of Jefferson County, Texas in a 
responsib le manner. 

REQUEST FOR INFORlVIATION 

This financial report is designed to provide an overview of the County's finances for individuals 
who are interested in tlll s infOlmation. Questions concerning any of the data provided in this 
rep0l1 or requests for additional information should be addressed to the County Auditor's Office, 
1149 Pearl Street 7th Floor, Beaumont, Texas 7770 1. 
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Pahick Swain, C.P .A. 
County Auditor 
Jefferson County, Texas 
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PAT T I LLO. R H OW N '" [T I LL , 1 .. 1. .1 '. 
C E RT I F I ED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS . BUSINESS CONSULTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Honorab le County Judge and 
Commiss ioners ' Court 

Jefferson County, Texas 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have aud ited the accompanying financial statements of the governmenta l activ iti es, the 
business·type activiti es, each major fund , and the aggregate remaining fund information of Jefferson 
County, Texas, as of and for the year ended September 30, 20 15, and the related notes to the tinancial 
statements, which co llective ly comprise Jefferson County, Texas ' basic financial statements as listed in 
the tab le of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Jefferson County, Texas ' management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of 
these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America; this includes the des ign , implementation, and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free ti"om material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
Ameri ca and the standards applicab le to financia l audits contained in Governmenl Auditing Siandards, 
issued by th e Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit ev idence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the 'financial statements. The procedures se lected depend on the auditors' judgment, 
including the assessment of the ri sks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error. In making those ri sk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 
entity 's preparation and fair presentation of the 'financ ial statements in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an op in ion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit a lso 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of signi'flcant 
accounting estimates made by management, as we ll as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

We believe that the aud it evidence we have obta ined is sufficient and appropriate to prov ide a 
bas is for our aud it opinions. 

Opinions 

[n ou r opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fa irl y, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major 
fund , and the aggregate remaining fund information of Jefferson County, Texas, as of September 30, 
2015, and the respective changes in financia l position and , where app li cable, cash flows thereof for the 
year then ended in accordance with accou nting principles generally accepted in the Un ited States of 
America. 

Change in Accounting Principle 

As discussed in Note [ to the financial statements, in 2015 the County adopted new accounting guidance, 
Governmental Accounting Standards (GAS B) Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting 
for Pensions-an amendment of CASE Statement No. 27 and Governmental Accounting Standards 
(GASB) Statement No. 71, Pension Transitionfor Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement 
Date ~ an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68. Our op inion is not modified with respect to this 
matter. 

Other Malters 

Required SupplementG/Y Information 

Accounting principles generall y accepted in the Un ited States of America require that the 
management 's discussion and ana lysis, the Schedul e of Revenues, Expend itures and Changes in Fund 
Balance-Budget and Actua l-General Fund , pension information, and the Other Post Employment 
Benefit - Schedu le of Funding Progress be presented to supplement the bas ic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financ ial reporting for placing 
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operat ional, econom ic, or historical context. We have 
app lied certa in limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
aud iting standards generally accepted in the United States of America, whi ch cons isted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the informat ion and comparing the information for 
cons istency with management' s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the bas ic financial statements. We do not express an opin ion 
or provide any assurance on the in formation because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opin ion or provide any assurance. 
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Other Informal ion 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opin ions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise Jefferson County, Texas ' basic financ ial statements. The introductory section, 
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules, capital asset schedules, and 
stati stical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the 
basic financial statements. 

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financia l statements and schedules and capital 
asset schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relates directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the aud it of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or 
to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards genera lly accepted in the United States of America. In our opin ion, the combining and 
individual nonmajor fund financia l statements and schedules and capital asset schedules are fairly stated, 
in all material respects, in relation to the basic financ ial statements as a whole. 

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the aud it of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on them. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 
17, 2016 on our cons ideration of Jefferson County, Texas' internal control over financial reporting and 
on our tests of its compliance with celtain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide 
an opin ion on internal control over financ ial reporting or on compl iance. That report is an integral part of 
an audit performed in accordance with Government Audiling Standards in considering Jefferson County, 
Texas' internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Waco, Texas 
March I 7, 2016 
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Jeffersoll COUllty, Texas 
Managemellt's Discussion and Analysis 

As management of Jefferson County, we offer readers of the Jefferson County's financial 
statement this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the county for 
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015. Please read it in conjunction with the 
additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be 
found in the introductory section of this report. 

Financial Highlights 

• The assets and defelTed outflows of resources of Jefferson County exceeded its 
liabilities at the close of fiscal year 2015 by $94,019,823 (net position), a decrease 
of $2,191,936 in net position from the previous year. As a result, the county's 
overall financial position has deteriorated from the previous year. 

• Of the net position, $137,700,866 is net investment in capital assets, $24,695,909 
is restricted for specific uses, and $(68,376,952) is umestricted. 

• As of the close of fiscal year 2015, Jefferson County's governmental funds 
reported combined ending fund balances of $76,509,32 1, a decrease of 
$1,381 ,289 in compatison with the prior year. About 43 % of the total amount, 
$32,564,805 is available for spending at the county's discretion (unassigned fund 
balance). 

• At the end of fi scal year 2015, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was 
$37,054,620, or 32.0% of total General Fund expenditures and transfers. In 
addition, the General Fund had a nonspendable fund balance of $873,260 and 
assigned fund balance of $9,952,977. 

• The Capital Projects Fund is classified as a major fund. It had a restricted fund 
balance of$5,789,022 and a cOlmnitted fund balance of $2,707,279. 

• The County's total bonds payable decreased by $4,836,869 dUling the cun·ent 
fiscal year. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the County's basic 
financial statements, which are comprised of the following tlu-ee components: 1) 
Govenunent-wide fmancial statements; 2) Fund financial statements and 3) Notes to the 
basic financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary infonnation 
which is included in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 

Government-wide Financial Statements are designed to provide readers with a broad 
overview of County finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 

The Statement of Net Position presents infonnation on all County assets, deferred 
outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference 
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representing net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as 
a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the County is improving or 
deteriorating. 

The Statement of Activities presents infomlation that indicates how net position changed 
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the 
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash 
flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that 
will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods. 

Both of these govenmlent-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County 
that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (govemmental 
activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or in part a portion of their 
costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The govenunental 
activities of the County include general govenU11ent, judicial and law enforcement, 
education and recreation, health and welfare, and maintenance of equipment and 
structures. The business-type activities of the County include an airp011 and an 
entertainment complex. 

Component units are included in our basic financ ial statements and consist of legally 
separate entities for which the County is financially accountable and they have 
substantially the same board as the County or provide services entirely to the County. 
The County's component unit, Southeast Texas Govenunent Employee Benefits Pool, 
has been reported as blended with the County as the primary goverl1111ent. For more 
detailed infornlation on this component unit refer to Note lA and Note 13 of the basic 
financial statements. 

Fund Fillancial Statemen.ts are groupings of related accounts that are used to maintain 
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The 
County, like other state and local govenun ents, uses fund accowlting to ensure and 
demonstrate finance-related legal compliance. All of the funds of the County can be 
divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary 
funds. 

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as 
govenU11ental activities in the govermnent-wide financ ial statements. However, unlike 
the government-wide financial statements, govenU11ental funds financial statements focus 
on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of 
spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be 
useful in evaluating the COWlty 'S near-ternl financing requirements. 

Because the focus of goverrU11ental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide 
financial statements, it is useful to compare the infOlmation presented for govenU11ental 
funds with similar infonnation presented for govelTU11ental activities in the govemment­
wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better Wlderstand the long-telm 
impact of the govenunent' s near-term financing decisions. Both the govermnental funds 
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balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fund balance provide a reconciliation to faci litate this comparison between 
govemmental funds and govemmental activities. 

The County maintains 74 individual govemmental funds. Infonnation is presented 
separately in the govemmental funds balance sheet and in the govemmental funds 
statement of revennes, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the major 
govenunental funds. Data from other govenunental funds are combined into a single, 
aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major govenunental 
funds is provided in the fonn of combining statements elsewhere in tlus repOli . 

Proprietary funds are maintained two ways. An enterprise fund is used to report the same 
functions presented as business-type activities in the govenun ent-wide financial 
statements. The County uses enterprise funds to account for the operations of an airpOli 
and entertaimnent complex. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to 
accumulate and allocate costs intemally among the County's various functions. The 
County uses internal service funds to account for its li abi li ty activities, workers 
compensation, and the public entity lisk pool that provides health insurance benefits. 
Because these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type 
functions, they have been included within govenunental activities in the govenunent­
wide financi al statements. 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of infonnation as the govenunent-wide financial 
statements, only in more detail. Both of the enterprise funds are considered to be maj or 
funds of the County. The County's internal service funds are combined into a single, 
aggregated presentation in the proplietary funds financial statements. Individual fund 
data for the internal service funds is provided in the fonn of combining statements 
elsewhere in this report. 

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of paliies outside 
the govenunent. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the govenunent-wide financial 
statements because the resources of those funds are not available to suppOli the County's 
own programs. The County's only fiduciary funds are 11 agency funds. Agency funds 
are purely custodial (assets equal li abilities) and thus do not involve measurement of 
results of operations. 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential 
to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financi al 
statements. The notes can be found staliing on page 30 of this report. 

Required Supplemenfmy Information is presented conceming the County's General 
Fund budgetary schedule. The County adopts an arumal budget for this fund. A 
budgetary compari son schedule, which includes the original and final amended budget 
and actual figures , has been provided to demonstrate compliance with this budget. 
Required supplementary infonnation can be found starting on page 69 of this report. 
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The combining and individual fund statements and schedules referred to earlier provide 
infonnation for non-major govemmental funds and intemal service funds and are 
presented immediately following the required supplementary infonnation. 

Government-Wide Financial Analvsis 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a govemment 's 
financial position. In the case of the County, assets exceeded liabi lities by $94,019,823 
for fiscal year 2015 and $96,211 ,759 for fiscal year 2014. 

Current and other assets 
Capital Assets 

Total Assets 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Deferred Loss on Refunding 
Deferred Outflows Related to 
Pensions 

Total Deferred Outflows of 
Resources 

Current and other liabilities 
Long-temlliabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Net Position: 

Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted net position 
Unrestricted net position 

Total Net Position 

Condensed Statement of Net Position 
September 30, 2015 

Primary Government 

Governmental 
Activities 

$102,112,5 13 
95,253,769 

$ 197,366,282 

$ 1,152,975 

13 ,502, I 09 

$ 14,655,084 

$ 12,667,639 
187,806,143 

$700,473,787 

$ 93,814,603 
24,695,909 

(106 ,962,928) 

$ 11 ,547,584 

8 

Business-type 
Activities 

$ 1,165,563 
83,107,097 

$ 84,272,660 

$ 

247,493 

$ 247,493 

$ 913,917 
1,133,997 

$ 7,047,9 14 

$ 83, 107,097 

(634 ,858) 

$ 82,472,239 

Reclassificat ions 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ (39 ,220,834) 

39,220,834 

$ 

Total 

$103,278,076 
178 ,360,866 

$281,638,942 

$ 1,152,975 

13,749,602 

$ 14,902,577 

$ 13 ,581 ,556 
188 ,940,140 

$202 ,521 ,696 

$13 7,700,866 
24,695,909 

(68,376,952) 

$ 94 ,019,823 
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Current and other assets 
Capita l Assets 

Total Assets 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Deferred Loss on Refunding 

Total DefelTed Outflows of 
Resources 

Current and other liabilities 
Long-term liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Net Position: 

Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted net position 
Unrestricted net position 

Total Net Position 

Condensed Statement of Net Position 
September 30, 2014 

Primary Government 

Governmental Business-type 
Activit ies Activi ties 

$ 98,226,987 $ 1,561 ,890 
87,103,428 84,297,573 

$185,330,415 $ 85,859,463 

S 1,324,830 $ 

$ 1,324,830 $ 

$ 7,340,425 $ 848, 194 
129,727,596 234 ,161 

$137,068,021 $ 1,082,355 

$ 85,095,478 $ 84,297,573 
28,9 19,622 

(64,427,876) 479,535 

$ 49,587,224 $ 84,777, 108 

Reclassifications Total 
$ $ 99,788,877 

171,401 ,001 

$ $27 1,189,878 

$ $ 1,324,8 30 

$ $ 1,324,830 

$ $ 8,188,6 19 
129,96 1,757 

$ $138 ,150,376 

$ (43,072,050) $ 126,32 1,001 
28 ,919,622 

43,072,050 (20,876,29 1) 

$ $134 ,364,332 

The largest pOliion of the County' s current fiscal year net position (146.4 percent) 
reflects its investments in capital assets (e.g. land, improvements, buildings, equipment, 
and infrastructure); less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is sti ll 
outstanding. The main use of these capital assets is to provide services to citizens; 
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the County's 
investment in its capital assets is repolied net of related debt, it should be noted that 
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital 
assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. Another portion of the 
County's ClllTent fi scal year net position (26.3 percent) represents resources that are 
subject to extemal restlictions on how they may be used. The County's current fiscal year 
net position is reduced by (72.7 percent) for the negative umestricted net position. 
Umestricted net position may be negative when entities incur long-tenn liab ilities which 
are not offset by corresponding assets or when it covers post-retirement benefits on a pay­
as-you-go basis rather than advance-funding such costs in a trust account. 

At the end of the fi scal year 2015 and the 2014 fi scal year, the County report positive net 
position in two of the three categories as a whole. The County reported positive 
balances in two of the tlu'ee categories of net position for its govenunental activities for 
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fi scal year 2015 and fiscal year 2014. Business-type activities had positive balances in 
one of the categories of net position for fi scal year 2015 and fiscal year 2014. 

The County had a reclassification of $39,220,834 in fiscal year 20 15 and $43,072,050 in 
in the prior fiscal year to move the debt associated with the construction of Ford Park 
from Unrestricted net position to Net investment in capital assets. The capital assets are 
reported in the business-type activities and the debt is rep011ed in the govemmental 
activities. The County's net position decreased by $2,191,936 during the current fiscal 
year. The following table indicates changes in net assets for govemmental and business­
type activities: 

Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended September 30,2015 

Revenues: 
Program revenues: 

Charges for services 
Operating grants and 

contributions 
Capital grants and contributions 

General revenues: 
Taxes - levied for general 

purposes 
Taxes - levied for debt service 
Sales Taxes 
Investment earnings 

Miscellaneous 
Total revenues 

Expenses: 
General government 
Judicial and law enforcement 

Education and recreation 
Health and welfare 
Maintenance - equipment and 

structures 
Interest and charges on long-

tem1 debt 
Airport 
Entertainment Complex 

Total expenses 

Excess (deficiency) before special 
items and transfers 

Transfers 

Change in net position 

Net position - beginning 

Prior period adjustment 

Net position - beginning - restated 

Net position - ending 

Governmental 
Activities 

$ 21 ,266,721 

10,935,535 
8,711 ,241 

76,925,495 
6,197,358 

24,995,680 
468,561 

29,686 

149,530,277 

40,203 ,444 
80,0 18,632 

1,425,539 
10,362,461 

14,076,436 

1,423,776 

147,5 10,288 

2,019,989 
(2,594,492) 

(574,503) 
49,587,224 

(37,465 ,137) 

12 ,122,087 

$ 11 ,547,584 

10 

Business-type 
Activities 

$ 6,939,251 

2,442,839 

788 
52,260 

9,435,138 

5,894,5 18 
7,75? ,545 

13 ,647,063 

(4,211,925) 
2,594,492 

(1 ,6 17,43 3) 

84,777,108 
(687,436) 

84,089,672 

$ 82,472,239 

Total 

$ 28,205,972 

10,935,535 
11 ,154,080 

76,925,495 
6, 197,358 

24,995,680 
469,349 

81 ,946 

158,965,415 

40,203 ,444 
80,018,632 

1,425 ,539 
10,362,461 

14,076,436 

1,423,776 
5,894,518 
7,752,545 

161 ,157,3 51 

(2,1 91 ,936) 

(2 ,191 ,936) 

134,364,332 
(38,152,573) 

96,2 11 ,759 

$ 94,0 19,823 
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Statement of Act ivit ies 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2014 

Governmental Business-type 
Acti vities Activities Total 

Revenues: 
Program revenues : 

Charges for services $ 22,334,745 $ 10,091 ,010 $ 32,425,755 
Operating grants and 

contributions 13,417,014 13 ,417,014 

Cap ital grants and contributions 4,287,420 231 ,418 4,518,838 

General revenues: 
Taxes - levied for general 

purposes 78,592,069 78 ,592,069 
Taxes - levied for debt service 6,024,469 6,024,469 

Sales Taxes 25,829,624 25 ,829,624 

Investment earnings 311 ,546 550 312,096 

Miscel laneous 30,355 52,457 82,8 12 

Total revenues 150,827,242 10,3 75 ,435 161 ,202,677 
Expenses: 

General government 42,93 3,889 42 ,933 ,889 

Judic ial and law enforcement 82,058,360 82,058,360 
Education and recreation 1,416,537 1,416,537 

Health and welfare 10,570,568 10,570,568 
Maintenance - equipment and 

structures 14,859,687 14,859,687 

Interest and charges on long-
term debt 1,61 1,661 1,6 11,661 

Airp0l1 6,943,749 6,943 ,749 
Entertainment Complex 9,760,675 9,760,675 

Total expenses 153,450,702 16,704,424 170,155,126 

Excess (deficiency) before special 
items and transfers (2 ,623,460) (6,328,989) (8,952,449) 

Transfers (3,4 70,353) 3,470,353 

Change in net pos ition (6,093 ,813) (2,858,636) (8 ,952,449) 

Net position - begi nning 56,297,440 87,635,744 143 ,933 ,184 

Prior period adjustment (616,403) (616,403) 

Net pos ition - beginning - restated 55,681 ,037 87,635 ,744 143,316,781 

Net position - ending $ 49,587,224 $ 84,777, 108 $ 134,364,332 
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Governmental activities 

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities 
Year Ended September 30 , 2015 

O~~'~~~~?i h~g':.r~a~n~t~s Investment earnings 
and 0.3% 

7.3% 

Taxes - levied for 
debt service 

4.2% 

Charges 

Capital grants and 
contributions 

5.8% 

Miscellaneous 
0.0% 

Taxes - levied for 
general purposes 

51 .5% 

Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental 
Activities 

~6,ggg,ggg 
75:000:000 
70:000:000 

~6~~8~8~ 
5 5:000:000 
50;000;000 
~6,ggg·ggg 
35:000'000 
30:000:000 
25:000:000 
I~ggg;ggg 
10:000:000 
5;000;000 

Year Ended September 30,2015 

General Judicial and Education Health and 
Oovemment Law and \Velfare 

Enforcement Recreation 
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IiIPrograrn Re\'enues 

:!Vlaint. -
Equipment 

and 
Structures 

Interest and 
Charges on 
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Debt 
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Governmental activities decreased the County's net position by $574,503. 

• Due to several recent construction projects, Capital Assets have increased by 
about $8.2 million which were partially offset by issuance of a new capital lease 
of $1.7 million for the purchase of electronic election system. 

• Bonds Payable decreased by about $4.8 million which provided increases to Net 
Position. 

• These increases just discussed were offset mostly due to the increase in the OPEB 
(Other Post Employment Benefits) Obligation of about $13 million. 
Commissioners' Court has decided to continue funding OPEB on the pay-as-you­
go basis. More discussion on OPEB can be found in Note 9 starting on page 57. 

For the most part, other changes (increases/decreases) in expenses typically had 
cOlTesponding changes in revenues as programs or proj ects ramp up or wind down. 

Business-type activities 

Business-type activities decreased the County's net position by $1,617,433. The largest 
area of decline is reduction in Net Investment in Capital Assets due to depreciation of 
assets. The other area of decline is due to implementation of GASB 68 and recording 
Pension Liability. The County continues to look for additional revenues sources as well 
as cost saving measures to have these business-type activities self-supporting without 
having to rely on transfers from the General Fund to subsidize operations. 

Revenue by Source - Business-type Activities 
Year Ended September 30,2015 

Capital grants and 
contributions 

25.9% 

Miscellaneous ~ 
0.6% 

Investment 
earnings 

.---.-.",0.0% 
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Expenses and Program Revenues - Business-type Activities 
Year Ended September 30, 2015 

DExpenses 

IiIProgram Revenues 

9000,000 

8,000,000 

7,000,000 

6,000,000 

5,000,000 

4,000,000 

3,000,000 

::: ,000,000 

LOOO,OOO 

Airp0l1 Entertainment Compl~ 

Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds 

Governmental Funds_ The focus of the County's governmental funds is to provide 
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such 
information is useful in assessing the County's financing requirements. In particular, 
umeserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government' s net resources 
available for spending at the end of the fisca l year. 

As of the end of the current fiscal year, Jefferson County 's governmental funds reported 
combined ending fund balances of $76,509,32 I , a decrease of$I,381,289 in comparison 
with the prior year. About 43% of this total amount ($32,564,805) constitutes unassigned 
fund balance, which is available for spending at the County's di scretion. The remainder 
of fund balance is nonspendable, committed, restricted, or assigned to indicate that it is 
not available for new spending. 

The Genera l Fund is the chief operating fund of the County. At the end of the current 
fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $37,054,620, while tota l 
fund balance reached $47,880,857. As a measure of the general fund's liquidity, it may 
be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund 
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expenditures and transfers. Unassigned fund balance represents 32.2 percent of total 
General Fund expenditures and transfers, while total fund balances represents 41.4 
percent of that same amount. 

The fund balance of the County's General Fund increased by $616,457 during the CUiTent 
fi scal year. Tlus increase is in most part due to decreases in transfers to other funds. 

The Capital Projects Fund has a total fund balance of$8,496,301, of which $5,06 1,920 is 
restticted for maintenance of structures and equipment, $727,102 is restricted for public 
interest, and $2,707,279 is committed for construction contracts. The net decrease in 
fund balance during the current year in the Capital Projects Fund was $2,708,105. This 
decrease was in large part as progression of ongoing projects wluch funding had already 
been provided in prior years. 

Proprietmy Funds. The County's proprietary fund statements provide the same type of 
infonnation found in the business type activities of the govenunent-wide financial 
statements, but in more detail. 

The Jack Brooks Regional Airport Fund is used to account for the day-to-day operation 
of the County airport. As of September 30, 2015, unrestricted net position is $(984,088), 
a decrease of $289,808 from the prior year. This decrease is mostly due to decrease in 
transfers from the General Fund. 

The Ford Park Fund is used to account for the day-to-day operation of Ford Park. As of 
September 30, 2015, unrestricted net assets are $349,230, a decrease of $137,149 from 
the plior year. Tlus decrease is mostly due to decrease in transfers from the General 
Fund. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

The total original budget adopted on September 22, 2014 did not have to be amended 
dUling the year. Budget transfers were done during the year to adjust departments as 
needed. 

During the year actual revenues and transfers were more than budgetary estimates by 
$3,926,88 1. Actual expenditures and transfers were less than budgetary estimates by 
$6,771,959. The budget had a projected reduction of $10,082,383 to the fund balance. 
The net effect of over-realization of revenues and under-utilization of appropliations 
resulted in a positive valiance of $10,698,840 thus causing the addition to the existing 
fund balance of $616,457 on a budgetary basis. 

The largest positive variance of $2,253 ,964 is due to an increase in Sales Tax revenue. 
The area continues to have growth due to several large industrial expansions. 
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Revenue from Property Taxes had the largest negative variance of $216,496 due to a 
settlement for a contested propelty tax valuation for one of the large industrial taxpayers . 
This settlement resulted in a reduction of about $655 thousand in property tax revenue. 

An additional transfer in the amount of $1.2 million was made to Liability Claims 
account that was not part of the original budget to provide additional funding for 
litigation expenditures. 

Many departments achieved savings over the fiscal year mostly due to unfilled staff 
positions and moving employees through their salary ranges whereby leaving unspent 
funds. The total amount of savings for salary and fringe benefits was about $4.3 million. 
Departments also did well in controlling their spending in other budgetary areas. 

Budget variances are not expected to impact future services or liquidity. 

Capital Assets and Debt Administration 

Capital Assets. The County 's investment in capital assets for its governmental and 
business-type activities as of September 30, 2015, amounted to $178,360,866 
(net of accumulated depreciation). Tlus investment in capital assets includes land, 
improvements, structures, park improvements and facilities, infrastructure, equipment, 
velucles, machinery, other tangible and intangible assets, and construction in progress. 

Major capital asset events during the cun"ent fi scal year included the following: 

• The County had a variety of building improvements, pur·chases of equipment, 
roads and bridges construction, and construction of airport facilities. 

• At September 30, 20 15, the ending fund balance for all capital projects funds was 
$9.99 million. 

For further infonnation regarding capital assets, see Note 5. 
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Governmental Activities: 

Land 
Construction in progress 
Infrastructure 
Buildings & Improvements 
Equipment 

Less: Accumulated 
depreciation 

Total governmental 
activities 

Business-type Activities: 
Land 
Construction in progress 
Buildings & Improvements 
Equipment 

Less: Accumulated 
depreciation 

Total business-type 
activities 

Balance 
September 30, 2015 
$ 3,840,787 

$ 

$ 

$ 

19,964,968 
59,114,166 

102,7 18, 1J 3 
41 ,301,248 

226,939,282 

(131 ,685,513) 

95,253,769 

5,154,600 
2,893,850 

129,843,264 
12,335,094 

150,226,808 

(67,119,7 11) 

83, 107,097 

Balance 
September 30, 2014 
$ 3,840,787 

$ 

$ 

$ 

14,283,860 
58,543,80 1 
98,773,482 
38,704,189 

214,146, 119 

(127,042,691 ) 

87, 103 ,428 

5,154,600 
753,686 

129,259,81 4 
12,399 ,535 

147,567,635 

(63,270,062) 

84,297,573 

Long-Term Debt. At September 30, 2015, the County had a total long-tenn debt 
outstanding of $188,940, 140. Refer to Note 7 for further infonnation on the County's 
long-tenn debt. County officials, citizens, and investors will find the ratio of net bonded 
debt to assessed valuation and the amount of bonded debt per capita as useful indicators 
of the County's debt position. This infonnation is presented in the statistical section of 
this report. 

Governmental Activit ies: 

Bonds Payable 
Capital leases 
Claims & Judgments 
Compensated Absences 
Pension Liability 
OPEB Obligations 

Total governmental 
activities 

Business-type AClivities: 
Compensated Absences 
Pension Liability 

Total business-type 
activities 

Outstanding at 
September 30, 2015 
$ 44,444,323 

$ 

$ 

$ 
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1,707,363 
2,685,623 

12,156,652 
47,988,665 
78,823,517 

187,806,143 

254,368 
879,629 

1,133,997 

Outstanding at 
September 30, 2014 -

Restated 
$ 49,281,192 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2,547,790 
12,174,444 
46 ,36 1,282 
65 ,724, 170 

176,088,878 

234, 161 
849,799 

1,083,960 
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The bond rating services of Moody's Investors Services, Inc. and Standard & Poor's 
Ratings services have assigned the County's long tenn bond ratings of Aa2 and AA­
respectively. 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates 

The COImnissioner's Court adopted the County' s 2015-2016 bndget on September 21, 
2015 for the General fund and debt service funds . The budget was adopted based on 
estimated balances that would be available at the end of fiscal year 2015 and estimated 
revenues to be received in fiscal year 2016. The total resources for all funds for fiscal 
year 2016 are estimated to be $167.9 million. The budget was adopted with estimated 
expenditnres in the amount of $129.5 million. The 2015-2016 budget forecast utilizing 
$9,952,977 of fund balance. 

For 2015-2016, the propeliy tax rate will remain at $.365 per $100 of taxable assessed 
value and taxable assessed property values are anticipated to decrease just below 2% for 
the 2015-2016 budget year. 

The average unemployment rate for Jefferson County for September 2015 was 7.8%; this 
is a decrease from the prior year rate of 6.6%. The state' s average unemployment rate for 
September 2015 was 4.4%. 

Request for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the County 's finances 
for all those with an interest in the County finances . Questions concerning any of the 
infonnation provided in tllis repOli or requests for additional financial infonnation should 
be addressed to the County Auditor's Office, 1149 Pearl St. - 71h Floor, Beaumont, Texas 
77701. 
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JEFFERSQ:"I COUNTY, T EXAS 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITIO:" 

SEPT£rHB ER 30, 2015 

PR[\IAR\> GO\'£.R.'"" IEi"T 

Go\·ER. .... :-.I E~,AL 8USIXESs-n·PE 

ACTI\1TIES ACTI\lnES RECLASSIFl CATIOSS 

ASSETS, 
CASH AND CASH EQUrv ALENTS S 65,45 1,645 726,766 
[J\,rvESTt-.'IENTS 15,115,306 
INTEREST RECEIVABLE 29,202 23 
ACCOUNTS RECErv ABLE, Net 326,004 167, 192 
DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITlES 10,752,831 100,780 
mVENTORlES, At Cost 538,522 160,864 
PREPAID ITEMS 391,273 9,938 
DELINQUENT TA ... XES RECE IVABLE, Net 4,380,003 
PENALTY AND INTEREST RECE IVABLE, Net 2,223,235 
OTHER RECEIVABLES, Net 2,828,992 
DEPOSITS 75,500 
CAPITAL ASSETS, 

LAND 3,840,787 5,154,600 
CONSTRUCTION IN PROG RESS ! 9,964,968 2,893,850 
OTHER CAP ITAL ASSETS, Net of depreciation 71,448,014 75,058,647 

TOTAL ASSETS S 197,366,28" 84,272,660 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOLllCES: 
DEFERRED LOSS ON BOND REFUNDING S 1, 152,975 
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS RELATED TO PENSIONS 13,502,109 "47,493 

TOTAL DEFERRED OUT FLOWS OF RESO Ull.CES S 14,655,084 247,493 

LL-\B ILITI ES: 
ACCOLINTSPAYABLE S 11 ,204,348 543 ,043 
INTEREST PAYABLE 255,687 
DUE TO OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITlES 520,095 
LINEARNED REVENUE 687,509 217,237 
CUSTOMER DEPOSITS 153,637 
LONG-TERM LlABfLlTIES 

DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR 8,427,693 62,601 
DUE IN MORE TH.A.N Ol\T£ l 'EAR 179,378,450 1,071,396 

TOTAl. LLUHLITIES S 200,473,782 2,047,914 

NET POSITION 
NET iNVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS $ 93,814,603 83,107,097 (39,220,834) 
RESTIUCTED FOR: 

DEBT SERVICE 1,096,051 
CONSTRUCTION 50,077 
PUBLIC INTEREST 3,353,863 
JUDICAL & LA W ENFORCEMENT 4,908,014 
EOUATION & RECREATION 1,468,983 

HEALTH & "VELF ARE 8,427,577 
MAINTENANCE OF STRUCTURES & EQUIPMENT 5,391,344 

UNRESTRICTED (106,962,928) (634,858) 39,220,834 

TOTALl\r:T POS IT IO.'l $ 11,547584 82,472,239 

TOTAL 

66,178,411 
15, II 5,306 

29,225 
493,196 

10,853,611 
699,386 
40 1,21 J 

4,380,003 
2,223,235 
2,828,992 

75,500 

8,995,387 
22,858,8 I 8 

146,506,661 

281,638,94 1 

1,152,975 
13.749,602 

14,902.577 

11,747,391 
255,687 
520,095 
904,746 
153,637 

8,490,294 
180.449,846 

202,52 1,696 

137,700,866 

1,096,051 
50,077 

3,353,863 
4,908,014 
J ,468,9S3 
8,427,577 
5,391,344 

(68,376,952) 

94,019,823 

77Je reclassificatioll is for the debt associated lI"ith the COllstrllctiOIl of Ford Park. The asset is accoulltedfor in the Business-ope 
activities colulIIlI and the debt is accoIIIJledfor ill the GOI'emmellta/ Actil,ities cO/llml/. 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part or this statement. 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

FUNCTIONSIPROGR'MS 
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES: 
GENE RAL GOVERNMENT 
JUD ICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT 
EDUCATION AND RECREATION 
HEALTH AND WELFARE 
MAINTENANCE - EQUIPMENT 

AND STRUCTURES 
ONTEREST AND CHARGES 

ON LONG-TERM DEBT 
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES: 
AIRPORT 
ENTERTAINMENT COI'vIPLEX 

TOTAL BUSONESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES 
TOTALP~RYGOVERN~IENT 

CHARGES FOR 
EXPENSES 

$ 40,203,444 S 
80,018,632 

1,425,539 
10,362,461 

14,076,436 

1,423,776 
5 147,510,288 S 

5,894,5 18 
7,752,545 

S 13 ,647,063 5 
S 161 ,157,351 S 

GENERAL REVENUES 
TAXES: 

SERVICES 

4,697,503 
10,602,406 

73,649 
4 11,006 

5,482,157 

21,266,72 1 

3,493,616 
3,445,635 
6,939,251 

28 ,205,972 

PROGRAM REVENUES 
OPERATING 

GRANTS AND 
CONTRIBUTIONS 

$ 
9,465,689 

67 
1,003,582 

466,197 

5 10,935,535 

$ 
$ 10,935,535 

PROPERTY TAX ES LEVIED FOR GENERAL PURPOSES 
PROPERTY TAXES LEVIED FOR DEBT SERVICE 
SALES TAXES 

UNRESTRICTED ONVESTMENT EARNON GS 
MISCELLANEOUS 

TRANSFERS 
TOTAL GENER'<l REVENUE AND TRANSFERS 

CHANGE ON NET POSITION 

NET POSITION - BEGONNlNG 
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 
NET POSITION - BEGfNNING, Restated 

NET POSITION - END ONG 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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CAPITAL 
GR<\NTSAND 

CONTRIB UTIONS 

$ 

8,711,241 

$ 8,711,24 1 

2,396, I 73 
46,666 

S 2,442,839 
S I I, 154,080 
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NET (EXPENSES) REVENUES AND C HANGES IN NET 
POSITION 

PRIMA RY GOVERNMENT 
GOVER.t~M.ENT AL BUSINESS-TYPE 

ACTIVITI ES ACTIVITIES TOTAL 

S (35,505,941 ) S S (35 ,505,94 1 ) 
(59,950,537) (59,950,537) 

(1,351,823) ( 1,351,823) 
(8,947,873) (8,947 ,873 ) 

583,159 583, 159 

(I ,473,776) ( 1,423,776) 
S ( 106,596,79 1) S $ ( 106,596,791) 

(4,729) (4,729) 
(4,260,244) (4,260,744) 

S S (4.'64,973) S (4,264,973) 
S (106,596,79 1) S (4,264,973) S (110,86 1,764) 

S 76,925,495 $ S 76,925,495 
6, 197,358 6,197,358 

24,995,680 24,995,680 
4G8 ,561 788 469,349 

29,686 52,260 8 1,946 
(2,594,497) 2,594,492 

S 106,022,288 S 2,647,540 S 108,669,878 

5 (574,503) S ( 1,617,433) S (2, 191,936) 

49,587,224 84,777,108 134,364,332 
(37,465,137) (687,436) (38,152,573 ) 
12,122,087 84,089,672 96,21 1,759 

S 11,547,584 5 82,472.239 S 94,0 19,823 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
BALA!\CE SHEET 

GOVER.!",' i\lENTAL FU!\ DS 
SEPTE i\mER 30, 2015 

CAPITAl, ;o;O:"-.\ I.U OR TOTAL 
PROJF.CTS GO\·ER..\~!E'"\TAL CO I· ER..\m;:"-T,\L 

GE>;EJUL rt-:"-fl n -:"-flS ft-:..-ns 

ASSETS: 

CASH A.ND CASH EQUIVALENTS 31.906,974 8,810,135 22.235,619 62,952,728 
INVESTMENTS 15,1 15J06 15,115,306 
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE. Net 133,348 163,267 296,6 15 
INTEREST RECEIVABLE 18,988 3,377 7,530 29,895 
DUE FROfl·1 OTHER FUNDS 3,612.248 23,148 3,635,496 
DUE FR01\·! OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 7,179.201 296,136 3,107, 123 10,582,461 
DELINQUENT TAXES RECEIVABLE, Net 4.272.106 107,897 4,380,003 
PENAL n' AND INTEREST RECEIVABLE, Net 2,168,468 54 ,767 2,223,235 
INVENTORIES, At Cost 482,768 55 ,754 538 ,522 
PREPAID ITEM 390.492 781 391.273 

TOTAL ASSETS 65 .279.900 9.109.648 25,755.986 100.145 .534 

LlABlLITlES, DEFERRW ~FLOWS OF 
RESOURCES, A.J'XD FUl\"D BALANCE 

LL.\BrLITIES : 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE , 8,958.897 317,211 1,909.536 11 , 185 ,644 
COMPENSATED ABSENCES PAYABLE 22,527 22.527 
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 1,484,98 1 1,484,981 
DUE TO OTHER GOVER."\~"IENTAl Ei,TlTJES 360 519,735 520,095 
VNE.J\R.NED REVE:--1.:E 11.676 675,833 687.509 

TOTAL U.\BILITIES S 8.993.460 3 [7.21 1 4.590.085 13.900.756 

DE FE RRED INFLOWS OF R ESOURC ES: 
UN AVAILABLE REVENUE- PROPERTY TA"'\ES 6,240,042 148,151 6,388,193 
!J1\A \ 'A!LABLE REVEl',UE- !:-;)I.-i.-\TE HOUSING 2, 165,541 2,165,541 
UNAVAILABLE REVEl\UE- GRA.NTS 296,136 885 .587 1.181.723 

TOTAL DEFERRED IN FLOWS OF 
RESOURCES 8,405,583 296.136 1.033.738 9,735,457 

FUiX D BA L \ :,,/CES: 
NONSPEKD.AHLE FOIt: 

INVENTORY S 482,768 55,754 538.522 
PREPAID ITEMS 390,492 781 391,273 

RESTRICTED FOR: 
DEBT SERVICE 1,069,797 1,069.797 
CONSTRUCTION 50,077 50,077 
PUBLIC INTEREST 717,102 2,570,226 3.297,328 
JUDICl4J. & LAW ENFORCEMENT 4,908,014 4,908,014 
ED UCATION & RECREATION 1,468,983 1,468,983 
HEALTH & WELFARE 8,427,577 8.427,577 
MAINTENANCE OF STRUCTURES 

& EQUIPMENT 5,061 ,920 329,424 5,391,344 
COMMITTED FOR: 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS 2,707,279 3,941,806 6,649,085 
ASSIGNED FOR C')'PITAL PROJECTS 1,799,539 1.799,539 
ASSIGNED FOR ADOPTED BUDGET 

UTILIZATION OF FUND BALANCE 9,952,977 9,951,977 
UNASSIGNED (DEFICIT) 37.054.620 (4,489.8 15) 32,564,805 

TOTAL FUl\" D BALANC[S $ 47.830.857 8.496.301 20.132. 163 76.509,321 

TOTAL LlABILITIES, DEFERRED lNFLOWS 
OF RESOURCES, AND FU~D BALA NC ES S 65.279,900 9. 109.648 25.755,986 100.145.534 

The flOles to Ihe financial st31emeflts are an integral part of this statement. 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEX.""S 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET 

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
SEPTEMBER 30,2015 

Total fund balances for govenuncmal funds 

Total net position reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position 
is different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and 
therefore are not reported in the funds. Those assets consist of: 

Land 
Consuuction in progress 
Infrastructure, net of S39, 190,806 accumulated depreciation 
Buildings, net of $66,666,395 accumulated depreciation 
Equipment, net 0(528,828,3 12 accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets 

Long-tenn assets are not recognized in the current pc!iod and accordingly 
are not reported as fund assets. Balances as of September 30, 201 5 were: 

Accrued interest receivable 

Long-tenn \iahi1i(ies applicable to Jefferson County's activities are not 
due and payable in d,e current pe liod and accordingly are not reported as fund 

liabilities. lnterest on long-teEm debt is not accrued in governmenta l funds, but 
rather is recognized as an expenditure when due. All liabili ties - both current 
and long-tenn are reported in !.he Statement ofNel Position. 
Balances as of September 30, 2015 were: 

Accrued interest on bonds and loans 
Bonds payable 
O PES Obligations 
Pension Liabili ty 
Capital leases 
Compensated absences 
Pensions - Contributions after 12/31120 14 
Pensions - Economic/demographic (gains) or losses 
Pensions - Investment (gains) or losses 
Gain/Loss on Refunding Bonds 
PremiumIDiscounts o n Bonds 

Internal service funds are used by the County. The assets and liabilities 
of the internal ser;ice funds are included in the governmental activities in the 
Statement o f Net Position. [nlernal service fund net position are: 

Some of the County's recei vables are classifi ed as long-term and therefore 
are not repolted in the funds. Receivable reported net of 52 ,243 ,357 allowance 
for uncollectible accounts. 

Some o f the County's revenues will be collected after year-end but are not 
available soon enough to pay for the current period's expenditures and 
therefore are reported as available resources in the fu nds. 

Total [let posi tion of governmental activities 

The no tes to the financial suuements are an integral part a fthis stalement. 
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S 3,840,787 

S 

19,964,968 
19,923,360 
39,051 ,718 
12.472.936 

( 1.277) 

S (2;; ,687) 
(40.660,000) 
(78,823 ,517) 
(47,988,66;) 

( 1,707,363) 
(12,134,125) 

9,2;9,693 
3,480,069 

762 ,347 
1,152,975 

(3.784.323) 

S 76,509,32 1 

95 ,2;) ,769 

(1 ,277) 

( 170,698,596) 

(2,080,082) 

2,828 ,992 

9,735.457 

S 11 ,547.584 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CH ANGES IN F UND BALANCES 
GOVERl~MENT AL FUl\'DS 

FOR T H E F l SCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

CAPITAL I'OJl,L\IAJOR 

PROJECTS GOVERNi\ IE NTAL 

GENERAL FUND FUNDS 

REVENUES, 

PROPERTY TAXES S 76,668,604 6,182 , 154 
SALES TAXES 23,703 ,964 1,291,716 
FEES 9,473,369 4,864 ,247 
LICENSES 459,198 
fNTERGOVER1\TMENTAL 1,757,619 998,739 13,912,006 
SALES, RENTAL & SERVIC E S 1,974,325 251 ,658 2,528,431 
FINES AND FORfEITURES 1,927,212 193 ,648 
lNTEREST 331 ,955 45 ,173 101 ,635 
MISCELLANEOUS 29,495 

CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS 375 ?500 54,967 

TOTAL REVENUES S 116.3 ')6,11 6 1,')98,070 ?9, 128 ,804 

EXPENDITURES, 

CURRENT 
GENER.AL GOVERNivlENT S 23,352 ,652 434 ,275 
JUDICiAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT 66 , 182,403 14,364,433 
EDUCATION AND REeREA nON 382,440 1,057,539 
HEALTH AND WELFARE 10,113,450 356,068 
MAlNTENANCE OF STRU('TURES 

AND EQUIPMENT 12,137,611 40,593 
CAPITAL OUTLAY 5,595 ,294 7,233,879 
DEBT SERVICE 

PRINClPAl 4,420,000 
lNTEREST AND COMMISSION 1,695,044 

TOTAL EXPE NDITURES S 112,178,557 5.595,294 19,601,831 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVEN UES 
OVE R EXPENDITUR ES S 4,147,559 (4 .297,124) (4 73,0')7) 

OTHER FINANCING SO URCES (US ES), 

TRANSFERS IN S 89,478 1.509,239 
TRANSFERS OUT (3,53 1,102) (207,722) (325,853) 
CAP IT AL LEASE OBLlGA nON 1,707,363 

TOTAL OT HER FI NANCING SOURCES (USES) S (3,531 .102) 1,589,119 1, 183,386 

!\'"£T CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES S 616,457 (2.708,105) 710.359 

FUND BALAf'-'CES, BEGI NNING S 47,164,400 11 ,204,406 19,383,474 
PRIOR PERIOD ADJ USTMENT 38.330 

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING (Restated) S 47 ,264 ,400 11.204,406 19,4 ') 1,804 

FUND BALANCES, ENDING S 47 ,880,857 8,496,30 I 20,132,163 

The notes to the fmancial statements are an integral part of this state ment. 
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TOTAL 

GOVERN,\ IE1'iTAL 

FtmDS 

82 ,850,758 
24 ,995,680 
14,337,616 

459,198 
16,668,364 
4,754,41 4 

2,120,860 
478,763 
29,495 

57,84' 

146,75 1 ,990 

23 ,786,927 

80,546 ,836 
1,439,979 

10,479,518 

12,178,205 

11,819,173 

4,410,000 
1,695,044 

147,375,682 

(6')'),692) 

1,598,7 17 
(4,064,677) 

1,707,363 

(758,597 ) 

(1,381.289) 

77,852 ,280 
38,330 

77 ,890,6 10 

76,509.321 
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J EFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CI-lAi'lGES IN FUI'I'D BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

SEPTEMBER 30,2015 

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 

Governmental funds repol1 capital outlays as expend irures. However, in the statement of activities 
the cost of these assets is allocated over their estimated use ful lives and reported as depreciation 
expense. 

Capital Expenditures 
Capital asset donations to Business type activiti~s 

Net adjustment for sale or disposal of capital as.s.elS 
Depreciation Expense 

Net adjustment 

Debt proceeds are reported as financing sources in governmental funds and thus contribute to the 
change in fund balance. In the statement of net position, however, issuing debt increases long-tenn 
liabilities and does no t affect the Statement of Activities. Similarly, repayment of pli ncipal is an 
expenditure in the governmental funds but reduces the liability in the Statement of Net Position. 

Debt issued: 
Capital Lease 

Repayments: 
To paying agent for bono principal 

Net adjustment 

Under the modified accrual oo.sis of accounting used in the governmental funds , expendirures are 
nOI recognized for transactions that are not nonnaUy paid wilh expendable available fmaneia l resources. 
In the statement o f activities, however, which is presented on the accrual basis, expenses and 
liabilities are reported regardless of when financ ial resources are available. In addition, interest on 
long-tenn debt is nOI recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting until due, rather as 
it accrues. The adjustment combines the net changes of nine balances. 

Compensated absences 
O PEB Obligations 
Pension Liability 
P<=nsions - Economic/demographic (gains) or losses 
Pensions - lnvestment (ga ins) oflosses 
Pensions - Difference in Contributions 
Amortization of bond premium 
Amortizatioo o frefuoding difference 
Accrued interest on debt 

Combined adjustment 

lntemal service funds are used by the County. The net change in position of the internal service funds 
are reported with governmen ta l acti vities. 

Some of the County's receivables are classified as long-tenn and therefore the nel of revenue and 
bad debt expense associated with theses receivables are not reported in the funds. 

Because some revenues will not be collected for severa l months a fter the County's fiscal year end, 
they do nOl provide current fmanc ial resources and they are not reported as revenues in the funds. 

Total change in net position of governmental activities 

The notes to the fmandal statementS are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 14,249, 114 

s 

(128,532) 
(33,848) 

(5,936,393) 

(1,707,363) 

4.420.000 

$ (8,380) 
( 13,099,3 47) 

(1 ,627,383) 
3,480,069 

762.347 
40 1,878 
416,869 

(171,855) 
26 ,254 

S (1,381 ,28 9) 

8, 150,341 

2,7 12,637 

(9,819,548) 

(2,336,373) 

111 ,6 75 

1,988,054 

(574.503) 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEX.<\S 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITlON-

PROPRIETARY FU!'.'DS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

El'o'T ERPRlSE fUi\'OS 

J _ ... CK 

BROOKS I:>'TER"Al. 

REGION..I.L SERVICE 

AIRPORT fORD P,\.Rh: TOT'li. Fmms 

ASSETS: 

CURRENT ASSETS: 

CASH A.ND CASH EQUIVALENTS S 20,773 705,993 126,766 2,498,9 17 

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE. Net 34,716 132,476 167,192 29,389 
INTEREST RECEIVABLE 23 23 584 

DUE FROM OTHER GOVERt'\MENTAL Ei\"TITIES 100,780 100,780 170,370 
PREPAID ITEMS 77 9,861 9,938 
INVENTORY, A1CoSI 111 ,031 49,833 160,864 

DEPOSITS 75,500 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS S 267,377 898,186 1,165,563 2,774,760 

NONCURRENT ASSETS: 

CAP ITAL ASSETS: 

LAND 3,024,815 2,129,785 5,154,600 
CO:\'STRUCTION [1\ PROGRESS 2,893,850 2,893,850 
OTHER CAPITAL ASSETS, l\'ET OF 

DEPRECIATION ? 4,736.773 50,321,874 75,058,647 

T OTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS S 30,655.438 52,451,659 83,107.097 

TOTA L ASSETS S 30,911,8 15 53.349,845 84,272,660 7,774,760 

DEFERRED O UTFLOWS or RESOLRCES: 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS RElATED TO PENSIONS S 247.493 ')47,493 

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOt.:RCES S 247,493 ')47,493 

LIABILITI ES: 

CURRENT LIABILITIES: 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE S 290,929 252,114 543 ,043 18,704 

CLAll'vlS LIABILITY 2,685,623 

DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 2,150,515 
CURRENT PORTION - COMPE\'SATED ABSENCES 23,532 39,069 62,601 
UNEAfu'\"ED REVENUE 36,736 180,501 2 17,237 
CUSTOMER DEPOSITS 76,365 77,272 153 ,637 

TOTAL ClJRRENT LIABILITIES S 427,562 548,956 976,518 4,8 54,842 

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES: 

NONCURRENT PORTIO\' . COMPENSATED ABSENCES 19 1,767 191 ,767 
PENSION LIABILITY 879.629 879.629 

TOTAL NONCURRE\'T LIABILITIES S 1.07 1,396 1.071,396 

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 1,498,958 548,956 ?,047 .914 4,854,842 

NET POSI TIO N: 

NET INVESTM ENT Ii\" eAPIT Al ASSETS S 30,655,438 52,451 ,659 83,107,097 

UNRESTRICTED (984 ,088) 349,230 (634.858) (,,080,082) 

TOTAL N ET POSIT IO N S '9.671.350 57 .800.889 82,472.239 (2,080 ,082) 

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, 

AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION -
PROPRIET ARY FU 'DS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

El'o'TERJ'RlSE FUNDS 

JA CK 

BROOKS I,"'TE~"'AL 

R£GIO~Al.. SEIn'ICE 

AIRPORT FORD PARK TOTAL FlI ..... 1>S 

OPER;\TI1\C REVENt;[S : 

CHARGES FOR SER VICES $ 3,493,6 16 3,445,635 6,939,251 16,98 5,217 
EIvlP LOYEE CONTRfBUTIONS 2, 156,897 

TOTAL OPERA. TlNG REVENUES $ 3,493,6 16 3,445,635 6,939,25 1 19, 142,114 

OPERATING EXPE NSES: 

S.'\LARIES & BENE FITS $ 1,688,707 1,468,4 11 3,157,118 
MATERIALS AJ\1'Q SUP PLIES 77,520 118,065 195,585 
r.,·!AINTENANCE AND REPAIRS 123,446 353,834 477,280 
UTILITIES 205,6 19 896,190 1,101 ,809 
COST OF GOODS SOLD 1,792,34 1 1,710,543 3,502,884 
tvll SCELLANEOUS 429,409 106,073 535,482 
ADMfNISTR.<\T1VE 692,345 692,345 1,782,985 
INCURRED & ESTIMATED CLAIMS 20,224,953 
DEPRECIATION 1,577,476 2,407.084 3,984,560 

TOTAL OPER~ TI:\'G EXPE~SES $ 5,894,518 7,752 ,545 13,647,063 22.007,938 

OrERATI)lG I~ CO:\ IE (LOSS) $ (2,400,902) (4,306,910) (6,707,8 12) (2 ,865,824 ) 

NO:\,OPER;\TlNG REVE1\IJES: 

INTEREST REVENUE $ 737 5 1 788 4,691 
G.'\IN/(LOSS) ON SALE OF CAPITAL ASSETS 139 139 
REFUNDS AJ\ro RECOVERJES 52,121 52,121 524,760 

TOTAL i\Oi\OP ERATlJ\G REVEi\ UES $ 52,997 51 53,048 529,451 

ll"Cm. IE (LOSS) BEFORE TRAl\SFE RS $ (2 ,347,905) (4,306,859) (6 ,654,764) (2,336,373) 

eAPIT f\.L CONTRIB UTIONS 2,396,173 175,198 2,5 71 ,371 
TRANSFER IN 750,000 1,715,960 2,465,960 

CFJA.'iGE IS !\[T POSITIO~ $ 798,268 (2,415,701) (1,617,433) (2,336,3 73) 

!\ET posrno:\', BEG I!\Nli'OG 29,560,518 55,216,590 84,777,108 256,291 
PRJGR PERIOD AD.IUSTi\IEl'T (687,436) (687,436) 
NET POSITION, BEG[N!\'I NG - Restated $ 28,873,082 55,216,590 84,089,672 256,291 

NET POSITI ON, E:\"O ING $ 29,671 ,3 50 52,800,889 82.472,239 (2,080,082) 

The notes to the fina ncial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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JEFFERS ON COUNTY, TEXAS 
ST ATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS ­

PROPRlET ARY FUNDS 
FOR THE FI SCAL YEAR El\'DED SEPTEI\'lBER 30, 2015 

!;;\TERPIUSI: Fcms 

J,lel' 

BROOKS 

R£GIO:\AL 

AIRPORT FUROP,IRK 

CAS H FLOWS FRm r OPERATING .-\CTIVITlES: 

RECEIPTS FRO:-'I CUSTo:-.rERS AND USERS S 3,515,885 3,4]0,169 
RECEIPTS FROM EMPLOYEES 

PA YME!'.'TS TO SUPPLIERS (2,474.967) (3,903,569) 
PA'r1'>1ENTS TO EMPLOYEES (1,728,801) (J ,463A1D) 

INTERNAL ACTIVITY-RECEIPTS(PA YMENTS) FROM 

(TO) OTHER FUNDS 

CLAlMS PAID 

OTHER RECEIPTS 16,113 

NET CASH PRQV1DED (USED) BY OPERA lING ACTIVITIES S (671.770) (1.9]6 .810) 

CAS H FLOWS FRO'I NONCAPI TAL FL"A.NClNG ACTIVITIES: 

TRA.'1SFERS (TO) FRO:\l OTHER Fl/l'.'DS S 750.000 1.715.960 

NET CASH PROVIDED {USED) BY NONCAPrT AL 

FINA.,"CING ACTrvfTlES S 750.000 1.715 .960 

CASH FLOWS FRO,\\ CAPITAL A.."D RELATED FlNA~CING 

ACTIVITIES: 

CAPITAL GRAl'lTS FRO.\\ FEDERAL ENTITlES S 2,426,966 
ACQUISITION AND CONSTRUCTION OF CAP!T AL ASSETS (2,G85,695) 
PROCEEDS FROM SALE OF CAPITAL ASSETS 7.663 -----

NET C,\,5H rROVIOED {USED) BY CAPITAL 

F1:-.'AJ'JCING ACTIV\T!E$ S (251,066) 

CAS H FLOWS FRml 1 :-;'\'ESH l r:~T ACT I\' ITIES: 

RECEIPTS OF INTER.EST 743 35 

KET CASH PROVIDED BY r,..'VESTMENT ACTIVITIES S 743 35 

NET INCREASE (DECRE. ... SE) IN CASH S (172 ,093) (220,815) 

CASH A."O CASIJ EQUIVALD,.S - Il£G I:\"NL\G 192,866 926.808 

CASH A."O CASII EQUIVALESTS. E,,"'DISC S 20.773 705,993 

RECONCiLIATION OFOPER ... TlNG INC Q;\IE(LOSS)TO:-;'ET 

CASH PROVIDED(USED) llY OPER .... TING ACTIVITlES: 

OPERATING INCOME(LOSS) S (2,400,902) (4,306,910) 

ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE OPERATING INCOME 

(LOSS) TO NET CASH 

PROVIDED BY OPER..ATING ACTIVITIES: 

DErRECIATlON 1,577,476 2,407,084 
OTHER. NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPEl\SES) 52 ,12 1 

CHANGES IN ASSETS A.,\iD LIABILITIES: 

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 27,582 (71 , 157) 

DUE FROM OTHER GOVER,'-:MENT AL ENTITIES (36,008) 

PREPAID ITEMS (6,947) 

Il'-.'YENTORY 77,13! ( 18,065) 

DEFERREDOurFLOWS RELATED TO PENSIONS (85,130) 

CUSTOMER DEPosrrs 34,617 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 76, 137 (8,453) 

ClA1MS LIABILITY 

OTHER LIABILITIES 39.723 33.021 

NET CASH PROVIDED (lJSED) BYOPERATli"G ACTl\'IT1ES S (671.770) (1.936.810) 

NON-C .... SH OPERATL"G. CAPITAL AN D RELATE D 

FlK"' .. !"CING, .4..."D Il'o'VESTING ACTIVi TiES 

CAPITAL CONTRIBuTIONS S 175, 198 

The no(es (0 (he financial Sla(ernmt5 are an inlegral part of (his s(a(ernml. 
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l'\,[IL~AL 

S[l(\"lC[ 

TOT,\!. n : .'iOS 

6,946,054 1.615,524 
2,158,010 

(6,378,536) (1.780,542) 
(3.192,2 11) 

17,568,110 
(20,087,120) 

16.113 524.909 

(2 .608.580[ (J.l 09) 

2.465.960 

2.465.960 

2.426,966 
(2,685,695) 

7.663 

(251,066) 

778 4.607 

778 4.607 

(392,908) 3,498 
1.119.674 2.495.419 

726.766 2.498.917 

(6.707,812) (2.865,824) 

3,984,560 
52,121 524,760 

(43,575) 1,262 
(36,008) 47,902 

(6,94 7) 
59, !66 

(85,130) 
34,617 
67,684 2,443 

137.833 
72.744 

(2.608.580) (Ll09) 

175.198 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

AGENCY FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

TOTALS 

ASSETS 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 15,891 ,776 
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Net 6,060 
DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 392,851 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 16,290,687 

LIABILITIES 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $ 12,427,300 
DUE TO OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 838,097 
OTHER PAY ABLES 3,025,290 

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 16,290,687 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

Note 1 - Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies 

The financial statements of Jefferson County, Texas ("County") have been prepared in confonnity 
with generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") as applied to governmental units. The 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") is the accepted standard setting body for 
establishing governmental and financial reporting principles. The most significant accounting and 
reporting policies of the County are described in the following notes to the financial statements. 

A. Reporting Entity 

The County is a public corporation and a political subdivision of the State of Texas. The County is 
governed by Commissioners' COUli, composed of four County Commissioners and the County 
Judge, all of whom are elected officials. 

The County provides a vast array of services, which include public safety, administration of justice, 
health and human services, recreation services, public improvements, and general administration. 

As required by GAAP, the financial statements of the reporting entity include those of the County 
(the primary govenunent) and its component units in confonnity with GASB Statement No . 14, The 
Financial Reporting Entity ("GASB 14"), GASB Statement No. 39, Determining FVhether Certain 
Organizations are Component Units ("GASB 39"), and GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial 
Reporting Entity: Omnibus-an amendment of CASE Statements No. 14 and No. 34, ("GASB 61 "). 

In accordance with these standards, a financial repOliing entity consists of the primary govenunent 
and its components units. Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected 
officials of the County are financially accountable, or the relationship to the County is such that 
exclusion would cause the County's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. Blended 
component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the County's operations, 
and so data from these units are combined with data of the County. 

The criteria used to determine whether an organization is a component unit of the County and 
whether it is a discretely or a blended component unit includes: financial accountabilityofJefferson 
County for the component unit, appointment of a voting majOlity, ability to impose the County's will 
on the component unit, fiscal dependency criterion, whether there is a financial benefit to or burden 
to the County or if operational responsibility for the component unit rests with management of the 
County, and whether services are provided entirely or almost entirely to the primary govenunent. 

Blended Component Units: 

For financial repOliing purposes, the Southeast Texas Govermnent Employee Benefits Pool (The 
Pool) is included in the operations and activities ofthe County as a blended component unit. The 
Pool is a public entity risk pool (see Note 13), which the County is the sponsor govemment. The 
Pool provides services almost entirely to the County. The Pool is accounted for as an intemal service 
fund. 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

Note 1 - SUnmlary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Excluded £i'om the reporting entity: 

The following agencies were considered in the determination of component units of the County's 
financial repOliing entity. It was detennined that these entities should not be included as component 
nnits of the primary govenunent: Jefferson County Navigation Dishict, Drainage District #3 , 
Drainage District #6, Drainage District #7, Foreign Trade Zone, Pleasure Island Park Board, 
Jefferson County Health Facilities Development Corporation, Jefferson County Housing Finance 
Corporation, Local Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC), and Jefferson County Industrial 
Development Corporation. 

B. Implementation of New Standards 

In the current year the County implemented the following new standards: 

GASB Statement 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans ("GASB 67"), replaces the 
requirements of Statement No. 25, Financial Reportingfor Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note 
Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans, and Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they 
relate to pension plans that are administered tlu'ough trusts or similar alTangements meeting certain 
criteria. GASB 67 enhances note disclosures and RSI for both defined benefit and defined 
contribution plans. The plan, Texas County and District Retirement System, implemented GASB 67. 

GASB Statement 68, Accounting and Financial Reportingfor Pensions ("GASB 68"), replaces the 
requirements of Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental 
Employers and Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to governments that provide 
pensions through pension plans administered as trusts or similar arrangements that meet ceriain 
criteria. Implementation of GASB 68 is refl ected in the County's financia l statements. 

GASB Statement 69, Government Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations ("GASB 
69"), requires disclosures to be made about govemment combinations and disposals of government 
operations to enable financial statement users to evaluate the nature and financial effects of those 
transactions. Implementation of GASB 69 did not have an impact on the County's reporting 
disclosures. 

GASB Statement 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement 
Dates, ("GASB 71"), amends GASB 68. Implementation of GASB 71 is reflected in the County's 
financial statements. 

C. Financial Statement Presentation, Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

Govenunent-wide Statements 
Govenunent-wide financial statements consist of the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of 
Activities. These statements report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities ofthe primary 
govemm ent and its component units. For the most pari, the effect of il1terfund activity has been 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2015 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

removed from these statements. However, interfund services provided and used are not eliminated 
in the process of consolidation. Govemmental activities, which nonnally are supported by taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues, are repotied separately from business-type activities, which rely to a 
significant extent on fees and charges for suppOti. Likewise, the primary govemment is financially 
accountable. 

The government-wide fmancial statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this measurement focus, revenues are recorded 
when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of the timing of 
cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Fines 
and forfeitures are recognized when they have been assessed and adjudicated and eamed. Grants and 
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the 
provider have been met. 

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of the County's 
programs are offset by those programs' revenues. Program revenues include; 1) charges to 
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or plivileges 
provided by the program and; 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the 
operational and/or capital requirements of a particular program. Program revenues include those 
generated from General Govemment, Iudicial and Law Enforcement, Education and Recreation, 
Health and Welfare, Contract Services, and Maintenance of Equipment and Structures. Taxes and 
other items not included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

Miscellaneous general revenues consist of non-program specific contlibutions. 

Agency funds are excluded in the govemment-wide presentation of the financial statements. 

Fund-level Statements 

All govemmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual 
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they become 
both measurable and available). "Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be 
detennined and "available" means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to 
be used to pay liabilities of the current peliod. The County considers property taxes and other 
revenues as available if they are collected within 60 days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded 
when the related fund liability is incurred. Principal and interest on govemmentallong-terrn debt are 
recorded as fund liabilities when due or when amounts have been accumulated in the debt service 
fund for payments to be made early in the following year. Grant and entitlement revenues are also 
susceptible to accrual. Encumbrances are used dming the year and any remaining encumbrances are 
liquidated at fiscal year end. These funds are accounted for on a spending "financial flow" 
measurement focus. This means that only current assets, deferred outflows (inflows) of resources, 
and current liabilities are generally included on their balance sheets. Their reported fund balance (net 
position) is considered a measure of " available spendable resources." Governmental fund operating 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2015 

Note 1 - Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

statements present increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and 
other financing uses) in net current assets . Accordingly, they are said to present a sUlmnary of 
sources and uses of "available spendable resources" during a period. 

All proprietary funds , including the enterprise funds and internal service funds, and fiduciaty funds, 
including agency funds, are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are 
recognized when earned, and expenses when they are incurred. Claims incUlTed but not reported are 
included in payables and expenses. These funds are accounted for using a cost of service or "capital 
maintenance" measurement focus . This means that all assets and liabilities (whether current or non­
current) associated with their activity are included in the funds' balance sheets. The Agency funds 
are custodial in nature and involve no nieasurement of results of operations. 

The accounts of the County are organized and operated on the basis of funds, each of which is 
considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a 
separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and 
expenditures/expenses. Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds 
based on the purpose for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are 
controlled. 

Funds are classified into three categories : Govenunental, Proprietaty, and Fiduciary. The County 
reports the following major funds: 

GOVERNIVIENTAL FUNDS: Used to account for all or most ofa govenunent's general activity. 

General Fund - used to account for the general operations of the County. 

Capital Projects Fund - used to account for all other capital projects of the County for which a 
separate fund has not been established. 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS: Used to account for operations that are financed in a mamler similar to 
those in the private sector, where the detennination of net income is appropriate for sound financial 
administration. 

Jack Brooks Regional Airport - used to account for the day-to-day operation of the County airport. 
These facilities are financed primarily through user charges. 

Ford Park - used to account for the day-to-day operation ofFord Park. These faci lities are fl11anced 
primarily tlu·ough user charges. 

Additionally, the County reports the following fund types: 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

Note 1 - Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Internal Service Funds - u sed to account for the financing of goods and services provided by one 
deparhnent or agency of the County to other County departments or agencies on a cost 
reimbursement basis. The County reports three internal service fund: 1) Liability Insurance - to 
account for the County's contribution and payment for liability claims, 2) Workers' Compensation ­
to account for County's contribution and payment for workers' compensation claims, and 3) 
Southeast Texas Govenunent Employee Benefits Pool - to account for the County's Public Entity 
Risk Pool, which provides group health insurance programs for member governments including 
comprehensive major medical and dental care. 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS: Used to repmi assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others and 
therefore calmot be used to support the govenunent's own programs. 

Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the County as an agent on behalf of a third 
party. The County reports eleven agency funds held for various third pmiies outside the primary 
govel11ment: Treasurer Maintained Fund, County Clerk Fund, District Clerk Fund, Sheliffs Fund, 
Justice of the Peace Fund, Tax Assessor/Collector Fund, District Attorney's Seizure Fund, 
Cmmnunity Supervision Trust Fund, Juvenile Probation Trust Fund, Flexible Spending, and 
Women's Center Trust Fund. 

Proplietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing goods in connection 
with the proplietary fund ' s principal operations. The principal operating revenues ofthe Jack Brooks 
Regional Airport and Ford Park are user fees. Operating revenues in the Internal Service Funds 
consist primarily of charges to the various County departments. Operating expenses in the enterplise 
and internal service funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, incurred 
and estimated claims, salaries & benefits, materials and supplies, maintenance and repairs, utilities, 
miscellaneous, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting these 
definitions are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are avai lable for use, it is the County's policy to use 
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources to the extent they are needed. 

D. Budgets 

The County follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financia l 
statements. 

o Depaliment annual budget requests are submitted by the Department or Agency Head to 
the County Auditor' s office during the third quarter of the fi scal year for the upcoming 
fiscal year to begin October 1. 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2015 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

o The County Auditor's office prepares an estimate of available resources for the upcoming 
fi scal year. 

o The County Auditor's office prepares the proposed aJUlual operating budget to be 
presented to the Commissioners' Court for their consideration. The budget represents the 
fi nancial plan for the new fiscal year. 

o Public hearings are held on the proposed budget. 

o TIle Commissioners' Court must adopt an aru1Ual operating budget by a majority vote of 
the COImnissioners' COUli before October I . The adopted budget must be balanced; that 
is, available resources must be sufficient to support aru1Ual appropriations. 

o The department is the legal level of budgetary control. COImnissioners' Court approval 
is necessary to transfer appropli ations between departments. Transfers may not increase 
the total budget. 

o The Commissioners' COUli may approve expenditures as an amendment to the budget in 
an emergency situation that could not have been foreseen at the time the original budget 
was approved. 

o Armual budgets are legally adopted for the General Fund and Debt Service Funds. 
Budgets for Grant Funds are established pursuant to grant awards and budgets for Capital 
Projects are estab li shed on a project basis. 

o Appropliations lapse at year-end for all budgeted funds. 

o Budgets are prepared on a basis consistent with GAAP. 

E. Deposits and Investments 

The County's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, 
certificates of deposits, and sholi-tenn investments with original maturities of three months or less 
from the date of acquisition. 

State statute authorizes the County to invest in obligations of the U.S . Treasury and Federal 
Agencies, commercial paper, repurchase agreements, Bankers' acceptances, money market mutual 
funds, and direct obligations of the State of Texas. 

Investments for the County are stated at fair value, which is based on quoted market prices with the 
difference between the purchase price and market plice being recorded as eamings on investments. 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2015 

Note 1 - Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

F. Encumbrances 

Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperfonned contracts for goods and services. 
Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commihnents for the 
expenditure of funds are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is 
employed. All encumbrances are liquidated at fiscal year end. 

G. Receivables and Payables 

Property taxes are levied based on taxable value at January 1 prior to September 30 and become due 
October 1,2014 and past due after JanuaJY 31,2015. Accordingly, receivables and revenues for 
property taxes are reflected on the government-wide statement based on the full accrual method of 
accounting. Prope11y tax receivables for prior year's levy are shown net of an allowance for 
uncollectible. 

Receivables £i'om other govemm ents include amount due from grantors for approved grants for 
specific programs and reimbursements for services perfonned by the County. Program grants are 
recorded as receivables and revenues at the time all eligibility requirements established by the 
provider have been met. 

Reimbursements for services perfonned are recorded as receivables and revenues when they are 
earned in the government-wide statements. Included are fines and costs assessed by court action and 
billable services for certain contracts. Revenues received in advance of the costs being incurred are 
recorded as unearned revenue in the fund statements. Receivables are shown net of an allowance for 
uncollectible. 

Lending or borrowing between funds is reflected as "due to" or "due from" (current p011ion) or 
"advances to/from other funds" (non-clUTent). Advances between funds, as reported in the fund 
financial statements, aJ'e offset by a fund balance reserve account in applicable govermnental funds 
to indicate that they are not available for appropliation and are not expendable available financial 
resources. hlterfund activity reflected in "due to" or "due from" is eliminated on the government­
wide statements. 

H. Interfund Transactions 

During the course of normal operations, the County has many transactions between funds. The 
accompanying nmd level financial statements reflect as transfers the resources provided and the 
expenditures used to provide services, constmct assets, and meet debt service requirements. The 
effect of interfund activity has been eliminated in the Govenunent-Wide financial statements, except 
for transactions between governmental and business-type activities. 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2015 

Note 1 - Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

I. Inventories and Prepaid Items 

inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the "first-inlfirst-out" method. 
RepOJ1ed inventories in the governmental funds are offset by a fund balance reserve, which indicates 
they are unavailable for appropriations even though they are a component of net CUITent assets. 
Inventory policy on govemment-wide statements is consistent with fund statements. 

Certain payments to vendors reflect cost applicable to future accounting peliods and are recorded as 
prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements and in the fund financial 
statements are offset by a fund balance reserve, which indicates they are unavailable for 
appropliations even though they are a component of net current assets. 

The cost of govemmental fund type inventories and prepaid items are recorded as expenditures when 
consumed rather than when they are purchased (consumption method). 

J. Capital Assets and Infrastructure 

Capital assets include: land, land improvements, buildings and building improvements, park 
improvements and facilities, equipment, machinery, vehicles, other tangible and intangible assets, 
and infrastructure that are used in the County's operations and benefits more than a single fiscal year. 
Infrastructure assets are long-lived assets that are generally stationary in nature and can typically be 
preserved for a significantly greater number of years than other capital assets. Infrastructure assets of 
the County include roads and bridges. 

Capital assets of the County are defined as assets with individual costs of $10,000 or more and 
estimated useful lives in excess of one year. All capital assets are stated at historical cost or 
estimated historical cost if actual cost is not available. Donated capital assets are stated at their 
estimated fair value on the date donated. 

It is the County's policy not to capitalize interest on construction fo r capital assets repOJ1ed in the 
govenunental activities of the govenunent-wide financial statements. 

Capital assets are depreciated in the govemment-wide financial statements using the straight-line 
method over the following useful lives: 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Asset Years 

Runways 20-35 

Buildings 40 

Building Improvements 15-25 

Equipment 3-7 

Machinery 15 

Vehicles 4-15 

Other tangible assets 7-10 

Computer sofuvare 3-5 

Infrastructure: 

Bridges 25 

Roads 40 

K . Compensated Absences 

Accumulated compensatory leave, vacation and sick leave that have matured (reimbursable leave 
still outstanding following an employee's resignation or retirement) are reported as expenditures in 
the respective govelmnental funds . Accumulated compensated absences that have not matured are 
repOlied as long-tenn liabilities in the govemmental activities column of the govemment-wide 
Statement of Net Position. The majOlity of these have typically been liquidated from the General 
Fund in previous years. Accumulated compensated absences of Proprietary Funds are recorded as an 
expense and liability in the respective fund and the business-type activities column of the 
govenunent-wide Statement of Activities as the benefit aCC111es for the employee. 

Employees are allowed to accme 13 days of sick leave per year. Sick leave benefits are recognized 
as expenditures as they are used by the employees. Employees may accumulate up to 1,440 hours of 
sick leave. For employees with 8 years of service and hired prior to October 1, 2002, unused sick 
leave benefits are paid at 50% at tennination. For employees with 8 years of service and hired after 
October 1, 2002, unused sick leave benefits are paid at 10% at tennination. 

Employees with more than one year of service aCC111e from two to five weeks vacation per year, 
depending on years of service. Unused vacation benefits lapse on March 15 for the previous 
calendar year. Upon termination from County employment, an employee shall be entitled to payment 
for total accmed but unused hours of vacation. 

Non-exempt employees earn compensatory time at one and one-halftimes their full rate of pay times 
the excess of 40 hours per week worked. The compensatory time balance for non-exempt employees 
may not exceed 80 hours except for Law enforcement employees, which may accumulate up to 480 
hours. Hours in excess of the maximum must be paid to the non-exempt employee at the rate of one 
and a half times the regular rate. Upon tennination, non-exempt employees will be paid for 
compensatory time at their wage rate at time oftennination. Compensatory time is carried forward 
indefinitely. 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2015 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

L. Long-Term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial 
statements, long-tenn debt and other long-tenn obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable 
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. 
Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the 
effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or 
discount. In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and 
discounts during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing 
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financial sources while 
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. 

M. Deferred outflows/inflows of resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. Tllis separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of 
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not 
be recogIlized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The County has two 
items that qualifies for reporting in thi s categOly. It is deferred loss on refill1ding bonds reported in 
the government-wide statement of net position. A deferred loss on refunding bonds results from the 
difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred 
and amoliized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt. The second is deferred 
inflows related to pensions 

In addition to liabilities in the statement offinancial position will sometimes report a separate section 
for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of 
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not 
be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The County has only one type of 
item, which arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting, wllich qualifies for repoliing in 
this category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable, is repOlied only in the govermnental funds balance 
sheet. The govemmental funds repOli unavailable revenues from property taxes and gI·ants. These 
amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become 
available. 

N. Pensions 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expenses, infonnation about the Fiduciary Net 
Position of the Texas County and District Retirement System (TCDRS) and additions to/deductions 
from TCDRS's Fiduciary Net Position have been detennined on the same basis as they are reported 
by TCDRS. For this purpose, plan contributions are legally due. Benefit payments and refunds are 
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Note 1 - Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefits tenns. Investments are reported at 
fair value. 

O. Net Position and Fund Balances 

Net Position Classifications 

Net position represents the difference between assets, deferred outflows (inflows) of resources, and 
liabilities. 

Net position in the proprietary fund financial statements and the goverrunent-wide financial 
statements are classified in three categories: I) Net investment in capital assets, 2) Restricted net 
position, and 3) Unrestricted net position. 

In the proprietary fund financial statements and in the govemment-wide financial statements, 
restricted net position is reported for amounts that are extemally restricted by I) creditors (eg. bond 
covenants), grantors, contributions, or laws and regulations of other governrnents, or 2) law through 
constitutional provision or enabling legislation. 

Fund Balance Classification 

The govemmental fund financial statements present fund balances based on classifications that 
complise a hierarchy that is based primarily on the extent to which the County is bound to honor 
constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in the respective goverrunental funds can be 
spent. The classifications used in the goverrunental fun financial statements are as follows: 

• Nonspendable: This classification i.ncludes amounts that calmot be spent because they are 
either (a) not in spendable fonn or (b) are legally or contractually required to be maintained 
intact. Nonspendable items are not expected to be converted to cash or not expected to be 
converted to cash within the next year. 

• Restricted: This classification includes amounts for which constraints have been placed on 
the use of the resources either (a) externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributions, or 
laws or regulations of other govemments, or (b) i.mposed by law through constitutional 
provisions or enabling legislation. 

• Committed: This classification includes amounts that can be used only for specific purposes 
pursuant to constraints imposed by court resolution of the Commissioners' Court, the 
County's h.ighest level of decision making authority. These amounts cannot be used for any 
other purpose unless the Commissioners' Court removes or changes the specified use by 
taking the same type of action that was employed when the funds were initially committed. 
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Note 1 - Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

This classification also includes contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources 
have been specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements. 

• Assigned: This classification includes amounts that are constrained by the County's intent to 
be used for a specific purpose but are neither restl~cted nor committed. When it is 
appropriate for fund balance to be assigned, the Commissioners' COUli retains the 
responsibility to assign funds . Assignments may occur subsequent to fiscal year end. 

• Unassigned: This classification includes the residual fund balances for the General Fund. 
The unassigned classification also includes negative residual fund balance of any other 
govemmental fund that caml0t be eliminated by offsetting of assigned fund balance amounts. 

When expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unresh~cted fund balance is 
available, the County considers restri cted fund to have been spent first. When expenditure is 
incurred for which cOlmnitted, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available, the County 
considers amounts to have been spent first out of cOlmnitted funds , then assigned funds, and finally 
unassigned. 

P. Statement of Cash Flows 

For purposes of cash flows, the County considers all highly liquid investments (including restricted) 
with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. 

Q. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in confonnity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at 
the date of financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses dUl~ng the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Note 2 - Deposits and Investments 

The County had the following investments as of September 30,2015: 

U.S. Agency SecU1~ties 
Money Market Account 
Celiificates of Deposits 
Total 

Fair Value 
$1 4,115,593 

7,713 
997 .000 

$15.11 5.306 

4 1 

Weighted Average 
Matul~ty (Days) 

996 
30 

633 
972 
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Note 2 - Deposits and Investments - continued 

Interest Rate Risk - Fair value fluctuates with interest rates and increasing rates may cause fair 
value to decl ine below cost. III compliance with the County's illvestment Policy, the County 
minimized interest rate risk by limiting the weighted average maturity of the portfolio to 1,096 
days with a stated final maturity date not to exceed 3 years from the date of purchase. ill 
addition, the portfolio is structured so that securities mature to meet cash flow requirements, 
thereby avoiding the need to sell securities prior to matulity and below the Oliginal cost. 

Credit Risk - ill compliance with the County's investment policy, as of September 30, 2015, all 
of the County's purchased inveshnents in u.S. Agency Securities were rated AA+ and Aaa by 
Standard & Poor's and Moody's respectively. 

Concentration Risk - The County's investment policy is to diversify its portfolio to eliminate the 
risk ofloss resulting from over concentration of assets in a specific maturity, a specific issuer, or 
a specific class of investment. As of September 30,201 5, the County had one investment that 
was with Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB), and six investments that were with Federal Home 
Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC). 

Custodial credit risk - deposits - Ill the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank 
failure, the County's deposits may not be returned to it. The County's investment policy is to have 
all checking accounts placed at the County DepositolY Bank under a depository contract. The 
$8 1,462,467 bank balance and the Money Market account were covered by federal depositOlY 
insurance or collateralized with securities held by the Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company. 
All of the certificates of deposits are covered by federa l depository insurance. 

Note 3 - ProperlY Taxes and Other Receivables 

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are levied on October 
1 and payable by January 31 of the following year. The County bills and collects its own property 
taxes and it also bills and collects taxes for Jefferson County Navigation District, Jefferson County 
Drainage District #3, #6, and #7, Port of Beaumont, Port of P0l1 Arthur, Water Dishict #10, 
Nederland Illdependent School District, Northwest Forest Municipal Utility District, Emergency 
Services Distri ct #2, Trinity Bay Conservation District, Port of Sabine Pass, Sabine Pass illdependent 
School District, Port Arthur illdependent School District, City of P0l1 Al1hur, Hamshire Fannett 
Independent School District, Port Neches-Groves illdependent School District, Beaumont 
illdependent School District, City of Beaumont, City of Groves, City of Nederland, City of Port 
Neches, City of Bevil Oaks, Emergency Service District #1, Emergency Service District #3, and the 
Emergency Service District #4. Collections of these taxes and remittance of them to the various 
districts are accounted for in the Tax Assessor - Collector Agency Fund. TIle County is pennitted by 
the State Constitution to levy taxes up to $.80 per $1 00 of assessed valuation for general govemment 
services and the payment of principal and interest on Long-Tenn Debt. III addition to its taxes 
subject to the $.80 tax limitation, the County's voters have authorized the levy of a special tax of$. 15 
per $100 assessed valuation solely for road maintenance expenses. TIle County is also authorized by 
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Note 3 - Property Taxes and Other Receivables (continued) 

the voters to levy the Farm to Market and Lateral Road Tax of$.30 per $100 of assessed value for 
the purpose of maintaining roads and bridges. 

For the year ended September 30, 2015, the combined tax rate to finance general govemment 
services and the payment of plincipal and interest on long-tenn debt was $.365. 

On February I ofthe following calendar year the tax bill becomes delinquent and penalty and interest 
is assessed by the County. The County Commissioners issue a tax levy for the County's General and 
Debt Service Funds. The levy and collections are restricted to the funds they are allocated for. The 
delinquent tax receivables and penalty and interest receivables represent the past thirty years of 
uncollected tax levies. The allowance for uncollectible was set at thirty percent of the gross tax 
receivable and sixty percent on penalty and interest as of September 30, 2015. The allowance has 
been recorded for property taxes and Penalty and Interest, which are estimated to be uncollectible as 
required by generally accepted accounting. 

Property tax receivables of$4,380,003 as of September 30, 2015 are repOlted net of an allowance for 
uncollectible taxes of $1 ,877,144. 

Penalty and Interest receivables of $2,223,235 as of September 30, 2015 are repOlted net of an 
allowance for uncollectible accounts of$3,334,853. 

Receivables as of September 30, 2015 consist of the following: 

J3ck 
Capital Brooks lntemal 
Projects Non Major Regional Service Agency 

General Fund Funds A~rt Ford Park Funds Funds Total 

Receivables: 

Accounts S 10\,893 S S 157,981 S 34,310 S 134,513 S 29,389 S 6,060 S 464,146 

Employee 31,455 5,286 528 37,269 

Taxes 6, 103,008 154,139 6,257,147 

Penalty & 
Interest 5,421,170 136,9 18 5,558,088 

Inter-
governmental 7,179.202 296, 136 3,107,123 100.780 170.370 392,85 1 11,246.462 

Gross 
Receivables S 18,836,728 S 296,136 S 3,561,447 S 135,618 S 134,513 S 199,759 5398,91 1 S 23,563, 11 2 

Less : Allowance 

fo' 
Unco llectiblcs 5,083,604 128,393 122 2,037 5.214,156 

Net total 
receivables S 13.753,124 S 296.136 $ 3.433,054 S 135.496 S l32 ,476 S 199.759 S 398.91 1 S 18.348.956 

43 

95



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

Note 3 - Property Taxes and Other Receivables (continued) 

As of September, 30, 20 IS, the various components of unearned revenue reported m the 
governmental funds were as follows : 

Unearned 

Advanced Funding (General Fund) $ 11 ,676 
Advanced Funding (Non-major Special Revenue Funds) 675,833 

Total Unearned Revenue for Governmental Funds $ 687,509 

Note 4 - Interfund Receivables, Pavables, and Transfers 

In the fund fmancial statements, interfund balances are the result of nonnal transactions between 
funds and will be liquidated in the subsequent fiscal year. Balances between individual 
govemmental funds and between governmental funds and internal services funds are eliminated in 
the govenunent-wide financial statements. 

The composition of inter fund balances as of September 30, 2015, is as follows: 

Due to/from other funds: 

Receivable Fund 

General Fund 

Nonmajor governmental 
funds 

Pavable Fund 

Nonmajor governmental funds 
Internal Service funds 

Nonmajor governmental funds 

Total 

Amount 

$ 1,461,733 
2, 150,515 

23 ,248 

$ 3,635,496 

All of the due to/from transactions are routine in nature. 

The following is a summary of the County's transfers for the year ended September 30,2015 : 

General Fund 

Transfers In: 

General S 

Capital Projects Fund 89,478 

Norunajor Funds 975,664 

Jack Brooks Regional Airport 750,000 

Ford Park 1,7 15,960 

S 3 ,531.1 02 

44 

Transfers Out: 

Capital 
Project Fund 

s 

207,122 

S 207,722 

Nonmajor 
Governmental 

s 

325 ,8 53 

S 325,853 

Total 

$ 

89,478 

1,509,239 

750,000 

1,715,960 

S 4,064.677 

96



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

Note 4 - Intel·fund Receivables. Pavables. and Transfers - continued 

Transfers in the amount of $750,000 from the General Fund to the Jack Brooks Regional Airport 
were to subsidize operations at the airport. Transfers in the amount of$I,715 ,960 to Ford Park were 
to subsidize operations of the complex. All other transfers are routine in nature such as grant 
matches, ongoing capital projects, and residual fund balance transfers for close out of funds. 

Transfers in the amount of$128,532 for Ford Park were made between govenunental activities and 
business-type activities for capital assets purchases which were donated to business-type activities in 
the government wide statements. 

Note 5 - Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2015 was as follows: 

Balance October 1, Balance 
20 14 Additions Deletions Transfer Se~tember 30, 2015 

Governmental Activities: 

Land S 3,840,787 S S S S 3,840,787 

Construction work in progress 14.283,860 10.038,686 (4,357.578) 19.964.968 

Total capital asseL" not depreciated S 18, 124,647 S 10,038,686 S S (4,357,578) S 23,805,755 

irIfrastruC{llre 58,543,801 570,365 59,114, 166 

Buildings & Improvements 98 ,773,482 157,418 3,787,2 13 102,7 18, 113 

Equipment 38.704.189 3,924,478 ( 1.327.419) 41 .30 1.248 

Total capital assets depreciated S 196,021 ,472 S 4,081,896 S (1,327,4 19) S 4,357,578 S 203 ,133,527 

Less accumulated depreciation fo r: 

Infras tructure (3 7,908,280) ( 1,282,526) (39,190,806) 

Buildings & Improvements (61,825,889) (1,840,506) (63,666,395) 

Equipment (27,308.522) (2.813.361) 1.293.571 (28 ,828.312) 

Total accumulated depreciation S (127.042.691 ) S (5.936,393) S 1.293.571 S S (131.685,5 13) 

Total capital assets depreciated, net S 68,978.781 S (1,854.497) S (33,848) $ 4.357,578 S 71.448,0 14 

Governmental activities capital assets, net S 87, 103,428 S 8,184,189 S (33.848) S S 95.253.769 
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Note 5 - Capital Assets (continued) 

Balance October I, Balance 
2014 Additions Deletions Transfer SCEtember 30, 2015 

Business-type Acti vities: 

Land $ 5, 154,600 S S S $ 5, 154,600 

Construction work in progress 753 ,686 2,635 ,478 (495 ,314) 2,893,850 

Tota] cap ital assets not depreciated 5 5,908 ,286 $ 2 ,635 ,478 S S (495,314) $ 8,048 ,450 

Buildings & Improvements 129,259,814 142, 132 (53 ,996) 495,314 129,843,264 

Equipment 12,399,535 23,999 (88 ,440) 12,335,094 

Total capital assets depreciated S 141,659,349 5 166, 131 S ( 142,436) S 495 ,314 S 142, 178,358 

Less accumulated depreciation for : 

Buildings & Improvements (55 ,211 ,899) (3,2 88 ,032) 49, 180 (58,450,751) 

Equipment (8,058 , 163) (696,528) 85,731 (8,668 ,960) 

Total accumulated depreciation S (63,270,062) S (3,984,560) $ 134,91 t S 5 (67 ,119,711) 

Total capital assets depreciated, net S 78,389,287 S (3,8 18,429) S (7,525) S 495 ,314 S 75 ,058,647 

Business-type activities capital assets, n et S 84 ,297,573 S (Ll82 ,951) S (7,525) S S 83,107,097 

Depreciation expense was charged to the programs of the primary govenunent as follows: 

Governmental activ ities: 

General Government 
judicial & Law Enforcement 
Health & Welfare 
Maintenance - Equipment & Structures 

Total depreciation expense - governmental 
activities 

Bus iness-type activit ies: 

Southeast Texas Regional Airport 
Ford Park 

Total depreciation expense - business-type 
activities 
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$ 596,856 
2,601,147 

74,253 
2,664,137 

$5,936,393 

$1,577,476 
2,407,084 

$3,984,560 
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County as Lessor 

The County has entered into various operating leases of County-owned property to others as 
described below: 

The County's airport conducts a major part of its operations from leased facilities , which 
include office and parking lot spaces for car rental agencies, tenninal space for a travel 
agency and advertising agency, and hanger space. All leases are classified as operating 
leases. The rental payments under the leases for the car rental agencies are based on a 
minimum rental plus a percentage of sales. The rental payments under the leases for the 
hanger spaces and travel agent are based on a fixed amount per square foot of space leased. 
All of the operating leases are month to month and will expire over the next two years and 
include 3~-day cancellation clauses. In most cases, the County expects that in the nonnal 
course of business, leases will be renewed or replaced by other leases. 

The County's airport has eight leases for land located either in the Private Hangar Park or 
sun·ounding the Airport. These leases are classified as operating leases. The rental payments 
under the leases for the land are a fixed amount for a twenty-five or thi11y year pell0d. These 
leases are noncancellable. 

The following schedule provides an analysis of the County's inveshnent in propel1y on operating 
leases and property held for lease by major classes as of September 30, 2015: 

Airport Tenninal & Buildings $ 11,111,487 

Airport Private Hangar Park and Land 3,249 ,396 

$ 15,47 1,883 

Less: accumulated depreciation (4,156,346) 

$ 11 ,3 15,537 

The following is a schedule by years of minimum future rentals on noncancellable operating leases 
as of September 30,2015: 
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Note 6 - Operating Leases (continued) 

Fiscal Year Ending Seplember 30 

2016 

2017 

2018 

2019 

2020 

2021·2025 

2026·2030 

2031·2035 

2036·2040 

2041-2044 

Total 

$ 263 ,024 

263,024 

259,824 

225,502 

226,731 

855 ,276 

378,667 

319,078 

329,620 

241.639 

S 3,362,385 

Minimum future rentals do not include contingent rentals, which may be received as stipulated in the 
lease contracts . TIlese contingent rental payments occur only if the use exceeds a certain level of 
activity each year. There were no contingent rentals on Airport cancellable operating leases for the 
year ended September 30, 2015. 

Note 7 - Long-Term Debt 

General Obligation Bonds 

The County issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of 
major capital facilities . All of the 2012 Refunding Bonds and 72% ($1 ,630,83 4) of the 2011 
Refunding Bonds funded and benefited business-type activities, though resources of the 
govermnental activities are being used to liquidate the debt. All other General obligation bonds have 
been issued for govennnental-type activities. The original amount of general obligation bonds issued 
in prior years was $54, 195,000_ 

General obligation bonds are direct obligation and pledge the full faith and credit on the govenunent. 
General obligation bonds currently outstanding are as follows: 

$1,340,0002013 Refunding Bonds due in 31illual installments from $265 ,000 to 
$275 ,000 through August I , 20 18; interest rates ranging from .62% to 1.93%. 

$47 ,305,0002012 Refunding Bonds due in annual installments from $780,000 to 
$4,465 ,000 through August 1, 2025; interest rates ranging from 2.0% to 5.0%. 

$5,550,000201 1 Refunding Bonds due in annual installments from $55,000 to 
$1,150,000 through August 1, 2017; interest rates ranging from 2.0% to 3.0%. 

Total General Obligation Bonds 
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$805,000 

37,590,000 

2,265,000 

$40,660,000 
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Note 7 - Long-Term Debt (continued) 

Annual debt service requirements to matUlity for general obligation bonds are as follows: 

Govemmental Activities 
Fiscal Year Ended September 30 Principal Interest Total 

2016 $ 4,590,000 $ 1,534,121 $ 6, 124, 121 
2017 4,690,000 1,4 10,930 6,100,930 
2018 3,640,000 1,264,257 4,904,257 
2019 3,450,000 1,158,000 4,608,000 
2020 3,620,000 1,020,000 4,640,000 
2021 -2025 20,670,000 2,398,000 23,068,000 

Total $ 40,660,000 $ 8,785,308 $ 49,445,308 

There is currently $1,069,797 available in the Debt Service Funds to service the general obligation 
bonds. The County has no authorized but unissued bonds at September 30, 2015. 

There are a number oflimitations and resttictions contained in the various bond debentures regarding 
authOlized uses of bond proceeds. The County is in compliance with all significant limitations and 
reshictions. 

Capital Lease Obli gations: 

The county has entered into lease agreement for financing the acquisition of electronic election 
system hardware and software. This lease agreement qualifies as a capital lease for accounting 
purposes and, therefore, has been recorded at the present value of their future minimum lease 
payments as of the inception date. The asset acquired through capital leases is recorded at 
$1,707,363 for govemmental funds . The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value 
of these minimum lease payments as of September 30, 2015, were as follows: 

Governmental 
Year Ending SeQtember 30 Activities 

2016 $ 369,835 

20 17 369,835 

2018 369,835 
2019 369,835 

2020 369,836 
Total minimum lease payments $ 1,849,176 

Less: amount representing interest (141 ,8 13) 

Present value of minimum lease payments $ 1,707 ,363 
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Note 7 - Long-Term Debt (continued) 

Conduit Debt Obligations 

The County has issued Housing Finance Corporation Bonds and Industrial Development Corporation 
Bonds to provide financial assistance to plivate-sector entities for the acquisition and construction of 
facilities deemed to be in the public interest. The bonds are secured by the property financed and are 
payable solely from payments received on the underlying loans. Upon repayment of the bonds, 
ownership of the acquired facilities transfers to the private-sector entity serviced by the bond 
issuance. Neither the County, the State, nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any 
manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the 
accompanying fmancial statements. As of September 30,2015, there were two series of Jefferson 
County Housing Finance Corporation Bonds with an aggregate principal amount payable of 
$12,4 13,837, and one selies of Jefferson Industtial Development Bonds with an aggregate principal 
amount payable of$45,51O,000. 

Arbitrage Rebate Liability 

The Tax RefOllll Act of 1986 established regulations for the rebate to the federal govel11l11ent of 
arbitrage eamings on cel1ain local govel11l11ent bonds issued after December 31, 1985, and all local 
govel11mental bonds issued after August 31, 1986. Issuing govel11ments must calculate any rebate 
due and remit the amount due at least every five years. As of September 30, 2015, there are no 
estimated liabilities for arbitrage rebate on goveml11ental debt. The Debt Service Fund and the 
residual balance in the Capital Project Fund have typically been used to liquidate the arbitrage 
liability in previous years. 

Changes in long-term liabilities 

Long-term liability activity for the year ended September 30, 2015 was as follows: 
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Beginning 
Balance -
Restated Additions Reductions Endins: Balance 

Governmental Ac[jvities: 

Bonds Payable 

Generdl obligation bonds $ 45,080,000 5 5 (4,420,000) $ 40,660,000 
Less deferred amounts: 

Premiums 4.20 1, 192 (416,869) 3,784,323 
Total bonds payable $ 49,281,192 S S (4,836,869) 5 44,444,323 

Capital Leases 1,707,363 1,707,363 
Claims and Judgments 2,547,790 22,628,8 19 (22,490,986) 2,685,623 

Compensated Absences 12, 174,444 951 ,8 1l (969,605) 12,156,652 

Pension Liability 46,361 ,282 21 ,754,938 (20,127,555) 47,988,665 
OPES Obligations 65.724.170 20,847,988 (7,748,641) 78.823,5 17 

Governmental Activities 

Long-term liabilities $ 176,088,878 5 67,890,921 5(56, 173,656) 5187,806,143 

Busin ess-ty pe Activities: 

Compensated Absences $ 234,161 5 73,807 $ (53,600) $ 254,368 
Pension Liability 849,799 398,767 (368,937) 879,629 

Business-type Activities 

Long-tenn liabilities 5 1,083,960 S 472 ,574 5 (422.537) 5 1,133,997 

Due within 
One Year 

54,590,000 

S 4,590,000 

369,835 
2,685,623 

782,235 

58,427,693 

$ 62,60 1 

5 62,601 

Compensated absences liabilities are nonnally liquidated by the general fund for govenU11ental 
activities and by the corresponding enterprise fund for business type activities. Claims and 
judgments of govemmental funds are nOl111ally paid from the corresponding intemal service fund. 
Claims and judgments of the public entity risk pool are nonnally paid from the corresponding 
intemal service fund. Pension liabilities are nOl111ally liquidated by the corresponding funds in 
goveml11ental activities and by the corresponding enterp1ise fund for bU5iness type activities. OPEB 
Obligations are nonnally liquidated by the general fund. 

Note 8 - DefIned BenefIt Pension Plan 

Plan Description, The County participates in a nontraditional defmed benefit pension plan in the 
statewide Texas County and District Retirement System ("TCDRS"). The Board of Trustees of 
TCDRS is responsible for the administration of the statewide agent, multiple-employer, public 
employee retirement system consisting of nontraditional defined benefit pension plans. TCDRS 
issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) that can be obtained at 
www.tcdrs.org. 

All eligible employees of the County are required to participate in TCDRS. 
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Note 8 - Dermed Benefit Pension Plan - continued 

Benefits Provided. TCDRS provides retirement, disability and death benefits for all of its full time 
employees. Benefit provisions are adopted by the governing body of the County, within the options 
available in the state statutes goveming TCDRS. 

Members can retire at age 60 and above with 8 or more years of service, with 20 years of service 
regardless of age, or when the sum of their age and years of service equals 75 or more. Members are 
vested after eight years of service, but must leave their accumulated contributions in the plan to 
receive any employer-financed benefit. Members who withdraw their personal conttibutions in a 
lump sum a.re not entitled to any amounts contributed by their employer. 

Benefit amounts are detemlined by the sum of the employee's contributions to the plan, with interest, 
and employer-financed monetary credits. The level of these monetary credits is adopted by the 
goveming body of the employer within the actuarial constraints imposed by the TCDRS Act so that 
the resulting benefits can be expected to be adequately financed by the employer's cOlIDllitment to 
contlibute. At retirement, death or disability, the benefit is calculated by converting the sum of the 
employee's accumulated contributions and the employer-financed monetary credits to a monthly 
ammity using annuity purchase rates presclibed by the TCDRS Act. 

Employees covered by benefit ter1l/S 

At the December 31 , 2014 valuation and measurement date, the following employees were covered 
by the benefit telms: 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 

Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 

Active employees 

733 

568 

P03 

2504 

Contributions. The contlibution rates for employees in TCDRS are either 4%, 5%, 6%, or 7% of 
employee gross eamings, as adopted by the employer's govelning body. Participating employers are 
required to contribute at actuarially determined rates to ensure adequate funding for each employer's 
plan. Under the state law goveming TCDRS, the contribution rate for each entity is detenllined 
ammally by the actuary and approved by the TCDRS Board of Trustees. The replacement life entry 
age actuarial cost method is used in detennining the contlibution rate. The actuarially detenllined 
rate is the estimated amount necessary to fund benefits in an orderly mamler for each participate over 
his or her career so that sufficient funds are accumulated by the time benefit payments begin, wi th an 
additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. 

Employees for the County were required to contribute 7% of their annual gross eamings dUling the 
fi scal year. The contribution rates for the County were 17.41 % and 17.66% in calendar years 2014 

51 

104



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2015 

Note 8 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan - continued 

and 2015, respectively. The County's contributions to TCDRS for the year ended September 30, 
2015, were $11 ,476,313, and were equal to the required contributions. 

Net Pension Liability. The County's Net Pension Liability (NPL) was measured as of December 31, 
2014, and the Total Pension Liability (TPL) used to calculate the Net Pension Liability was 
detennined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. 

Actuarial Asslimptions 

The Total Pension Liability in the December 31,2014, actualial valuation was detennined using the 
following actuarial assumptions: 

Inflation 

Overall payroll growth 

Investment rate of return 

3.0% per year 

3.5% per year 

8. 1 %, net of pension plan investment expense, including 
inflation 

M011ality rates for active members, retirees, and beneficiruies were based on the following: 

Depositing members 

Service retirees, beneficiaries 
and non-depositing members 

Disabled retirees 

The RP-2000 Active Employee Mortality Table for males Willi a 
two-year set-forward and the RP-2000 Active Employee Mortality 
Table for females with a four-year setback, both with the 
projection scale AA. 

The RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table with the projection scale 
AA, wi th a one-year set-forward for males and no age adjustment 
for females. 

RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Table for males with no age 
adjustment and RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Table for females 
with a two-year set-forward, both with the projection scale AA. 

The actuarial assumptions that determined the total pension liability as of December 31 , 2014, were 
based on the results of an actuarial expetience study for the period January 1, 2009 through 
December 31 , 2012, except where required to be different by GASB 68. 

The long-tenn expected rate of return on pension plan investments is 8.10%. The pension plan's 
policy in regard to the allocation of invested assets is established and may be amended by the 
TCDRS Board of Trustees. 

The long-tenn expected rate of return on TCDRS is detelmined by adding inflation to expected long­
tenn real returns, and reflecting expected volatility and cOlTelation. The capital market assumptions 
and infornlation below are based on January 2015 infonnation for a 7 to 10 year time horizon. The 
valuation assumption for long-tenn expected return is re-assessed at a minimum of every four years, 
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Note 8 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan - continued 

and is set based on a 30-year time horizon; the most recent analysis was perfOlmed in 2013. The 
target allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates retum for each major assets class are 
summarized in the following table: 

Asset Class 

US Equities 

PI;vate Equity 

Glohal Equities 

International Equities - Developed 

International Equities - Emerging 

Investment-Grade Bonds 

High-Yield Bonds 

OpPOItunistic Credit 

Direct Lending 

Distressed Debt 

REIT Equities 

Commodities 

M aster Limited Partnerships (M LPs) 

Private Real Estate Palwerships 

Hedge Funds 

Benchmark 

Dow Jones U.S. Total Stock Market Index 

Cambridge Assoc iates Global Plivate Equity & 
Venture Capital Index (3) 

MSCI World (net) Index 

50% MSCI World Ex USA (net) + 50% MSel 
World ex USA 100% H edged to US D (net) 
Index 

50% MSCI EM Standard (net) Index + 50% 
MSel EM 100% Hedged to USD (net) Index 

8ru-clays Capital Aggregate Bond Index 

Citigroup High-YicJd Cash-Pay Capped Index 

Ci[igroup High-Yield Cash-Pay Capped tndex 

Citigroup High-Yield Cash-Pay Capped Index 

Citi grOllp High-Yield Cash-Pay Capped Index 

67% FTSE NAREIT Equity REITs Index + 33% 
FRSE EPRAINARE IT Global Real Estate Index 

Bloomberg Commodities Index 

Alerian MLP lndex 

Cambridge Associates Real Estate Index 14) 

Hedge Fund Research, Inc. (HFRl) Fund of 
Funds Composite Index 

(I) Target assel allocation adopted at the April 201 j TCDRS Board meetillg. 

Geometric Real 

Rate of Return 

Target 
(Expected 

minus 
Allocation (I) Inflation) (2) 

16 .50% 5.35% 

12.00% 8.35% 

1.50% 5.65% 

11.00% 5.35% 

9.00% 6.35% 

3.00% 0.55% 

3.00% 3.75% 

5.00% 5.54% 

2.00% 5.80% 

3.00% 6.75% 

2.00% 4.00% 

2.00% -0.20% 

2.00% 5.30% 

3.00% 7.20% 

25.00% 5.15% 

(11 Geometric real rales ofrewl"Il in addition 10 aSSlimed injlatioll of 1.7% per Cliffi"ater's 2015 capital markel assumplions. 

13) 1ncludes '!i//lage years 2006-presenr ofQuarler Pooled Horizon IRRs. 

(4) Includes rilliage years 2007-present a/Quarrel" Pooled HorizonlRRs. 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 8.1 %. TI1e projection of cash 
fl ows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee and employer contributions will be 
made at the rates specified in statue. Based on that assumption, the pension plan's Fiduciary Net 
Position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active 
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Note 8 - Defm ed Benefit Pension Plan - continued 

and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-tenn expected rate of retum on pension plan investments 
was applied to all period of projected benefit payments to detelmine the Total Pension Liability. 

Changes in the Net Pension Liability 

Increase (Decrease) 

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Net Pension 
Liabili ty Position 

(a) (b) 

Balance at 12/31120 13 $ 389,135,022 $ 341 ,923,940 $ 

Changes for the year: 

Service Cost 8,802 ,884 

Interest on total pension liability (I) 31,100,2 11 

Effect of economic/demographic gains or losses 970,40 1 

Refund of contributions (603,550) (603,550) 

Benefit payments (18,768,699) (18,768 ,699) 

Administrative expenses (270,923) 

:Member contributions 4,514,879 

Net investment income 23,395,891 

Employer contributions 11 ,131,00 1 

Other (2) 445,436 

Balance at 12/3112014 $ 410,636,269 $ 36 1,767,975 $ 

(I) Reflects the change in the liability due to the time value of money. TCDRS does Dot charge fees or interest 

(2) Relates to allocation of system-wide items. 

Sensitivity A nalysis 

Liability 

(a) - (b) 

47,2 1l ,082 

8,802,884 

31, 100,21l 

970,40 I 

270,923 

(4,51 4,8 79) 

(23 ,395,891) 

(11, 131,001) 

(445,436) 

48,868,294 

The following presents the net pension liabili ty of the County, calculated using the discount rate of 
8.1 %, as well as what the County's net pension liabi lity would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is I-percentage-point lower (7. 1 %) or I -percentage-higher (9.1 %) than the current 
rate: 
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Current 
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1 % Increase 

7.1% 8. 1% 9.1% 

Total pension liability $ 461,960,556 $ 410,636,269 $ 368,137,840 
Fiduciary net position 361.767.975 361.767.975 36 1.767.975 
Net pension 

$ 100192 581 $ 48 868 ?94 $ 6.369 865 
liability/Casset) 

Pension Plan Fiducia/y Net Position 

Detailed infonnation about the pension plan ' s Fiduciaty Net Position is available in a separately­
issued TCDRS financial report. The repmi may be obtained on the Internet at H1HO.v.tcdrs.org. 

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions 

For the year ended September 30, 3015, the County recognized pension expense 0[$8,468,035. 

At September 30, 2015, the County reported defen'ed outflows of resources and defened inflows 
of resources related to pensions li-mn the following sources: 

Differences between expected and 
actual economic experience 

Difference betv.teen projected and 
actual investment earnings 

Contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date 

Total 

$ 

$ 

Deferred 

Inflows 
of Resources 

Deferred 
Outflows 

of Resources 

$ 776,321 

3,543,858 

9,429,423 

$ 13,749,602 

$9,429,423 reported as defened outflows of resources related to pension resulting limn 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net 
pension liability for the year ending September 30, 2015. Other amounts reported as defened 
outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expenses as 
follows: 
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Year Ended 
December 31, 

2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 

Thereafter 

Note 9 - Other Post-Employment Benefits 

Plan Description -

$ 1,080,045 
1,080,045 
1,080,045 
1,080,044 

The County sponsors a single-employer defined benefit post-employment benefit plan. 

Retiree Benefi ts 

ACTUARIAL VALUATION INFORMATION 

Actuarial Valuation Date 

Actuarial Cost Method 

Amortization Method 
Remaining Amortization 
Period 

Asset Valuation Method 

Discount Rate 

General Inflation Rate 

October 1, 2014 
Projected Unit 
Credit 

Level Dollar (open) 

30 years 

Market Value 

4.00% 

3.00% 

The County provides post-retirement health care benefits to all employees who retired on or after 
April 9, 1990. Effective January 1, 1997, Commissioners ' Court adopted the following policy 
detailing eligibility requirements for participation in this benefit: 

A) the employee must have retired under the Texas County and District Retirement 
System (TCDRS) guidelines described in Note 8; and 

B) the employee must have at least 8 years of TCDRS credible service with J effersotl 
County. 

For retirees prior to FebIUary 1, 2003, the County pays 100 percent of health insurance premiums for 
those retirees that qualifY. After FebIUary 1, 2003, the County wi ll pay on the following scale for 
retirees that qualifY: 
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Note 9 - Other Post-Employment Benefits (continued) 

Percentage Percentage 
Years of Paid by Paid by 
Service Retiree County 

8-11 30,){ 70% 

11-15 10,){ 80% 

16-19 10,){ 90% 

10+ O'){ 100% 

Retiree Spouse Benefits 
The employee's spouse is eligible for County paid health insurance benefits following the employee's 
retirement if: 

A) the employee met the above requirements A and B; and, 

B) the employee's spouse was enrolled in the health plan either as a dependent or an 
active County employee. 

Spouse participation will end in the event of a divorce, at which time COBRA continuation will be 
offered as described below. 

For retirees prior to February I, 2003, the County pays 100 percent of health insurance premiums for 
those retirees' spouses that qualifY. For retirees between February 1, 2003 and February 28,2005, the 
County will pay the same scale as described above for retirees' spouses that qualify. For retirees 
after February 28,2005, the County requires the following premiums to be paid for retirees' spouses 
that qualifY: 

A fS oe a .,pouse P remlUm AI n Ollnt D ue 

Less than 65 during ten year Equal to the active employee 
maXlll1Um contribution made for a spouse 

Less than 65 after ten year 
maX11llum Full Premium 

Same percentage as retiree see 
Over 65 table above 

As of September 30, 2015, there were 570 participants receiving benefits. 

Funding Policy and Annual OPEB Cost-

In June 2004, the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 45 
(GASB 45), creating accounting standards for Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) provided by 
govemmental entities separately from a pension plan. This Statement establishes standards for the 
measurement, recognition, and display ofOPEB expense/expenditures and related liabilities (assets), 
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Note 9 - Other Post-Employment Benefits (continued) 

note disclosures, and if applicable required supplementary infonnation (RSI) in the fillancial reports 
of state and local govenunents. 

The Plan contribution rates are set annually by Commissioners' COUl1 based on the combination of 
premiums and plioryear costs of the self-funded p0!1ion of the plan. The Plan is fi.mded on a pay-as­
you-go basis. In 2015 the total contribution was $4,094,919. 

The calculations are based on the OPEB benefits provided under the tenns of the substantive plan in 
effect at the time of each valuation and on the pattem of sharing of costs between the employer and 
plan members to that point. Actuarial valuation for OPEB plans involve estimates of the value of 
repol1ed amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future . Actuarially 
detennined amounts are subject to continual revision as results are compared to past expectations 
and new estimates are made about the future . Actuarial calculations of the OPEB plan reflect a long­
tenn perspecti ve. 

The County's alillual OPEB cost is calculated based on the amlllal required contribution of the 
employer (ARC), an amount actuarially detelmined in accordance with the parameter ofGASB 45. 
The ARC represents a level of funding that, ifpaid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover nonnal 
cost each year and to amortize any unfunded actuarial liab ilities (or fi.mding excess) over a period not 
to exceed thirty years . The County had its most recent OPEB actuarial valuation perfonned for the 
fiscal year begimung October 1,2014 as required by GASB. The County' s annual OPEB cost fo r the 
CUITent year is as follows: 

Annual Required Contribution 
Interest on prior year Net OPEB 
Obligation 

Adjustment to ARC 

Annual OPEB Cost 
County's Contribution made 

Increase in Net OPEB Obligation 

Net OPEB Obligation - begimung of year 

Net OPEB Obligation - end of year 

59 

$ 18,219,021 

2,628,967 

(3,654,649) 

$ 17,193 ,339 
(4,094,919) 

$ 13 ,098,420 

$ 65,724,170 

$ 78,822,590 
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Fiscal Year Annual Percentage 
Ending OPEB ofOPEB 

Cost ContJibuted 

09/30/2013 $16,497,527 21.20% 

09/30/2014 $17,017,533 22.27% 

09/30/2015 $17,193,339 23.86% 

Funded Status and Funding Progress -

Net 
OPEB 

Obligation 

$52,495,987 

$65,724,170 

$78,822 ,590 

As of October 1, 2014, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 0% funded. The 
actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $170,556,354, and the actuarial value of assets was $0, 
resulting in an unfunded actualial accrued liability (UAAL) of$170,556,354. The covered payroll 
(annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $65,067,626, and the ratio of the 
UAAL to the covered payroll was 262%. 

The schednle of funding progress is presented as RSI following the notes to the financial statements, 
presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or 
decreasing over time relative to the actuatial accrued liability for benefits. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions -

Projection ofbene±its for financial reporting are made on the substantive platl (the plan as understood 
by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each 
valuation and the historical pattem of sharing of benefits costs between the employer and plan 
members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that 
designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuatial value of 
assets, consistent with the long-tenn perspective of the calculations. In order to perfoml the 
valuation, it was necessary for the County and the actuary to make certain assumptions regarding 
items such as rates of employee tunlover, retirement, and mortality, as well as economic assumptions 
regarding healthcare trend and interest rates. 

The Projected Unit Credit actualial cost method is used to calculate the GASB ARC for the County's 
retiree health care platl. Using the plan benefits, the present health premiums and a set of actuarial 
assumptions, the anticipated future payments are projected. The projected unit credit method then 
provides for a systematic funding for these anticipated payments. The yearly ARC is computed to 
cover the cost of benefits being earned by covered members as well as to amortize a portion of the 
unfunded accrued liability. 

In the October 1,2014, actuarial valuation, a 4% discount rate and a general inflation rate of3 .00% 
per year was used. The medical trend rates 10% for 2015, 9.5% in 2016, 9.0% in the third year, 
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Note 9 - Other Post-Employment Benefits (continued) 

8.50% in the foutih year, and ultimately grading down to 4.5% per year after the twelfth year was 
used. 

There has not been a separate, audited GAAP-basis postemployment benefit plan report issued. 

Note 10 - Deferred Compensation Plan 

Employees of Jefferson County, Texas may paliicipate in a deferred compensation plan adopted 
under the provisions of Internal Revenue Code Section 457 (DefelTed Compensation Plans with 
Respect to Service for State and Local Governments) . 

The deferred compensation plan is administered by an unrelated financial institution. Amendments 
to the laws governing Section 457 deferred compensation plans substantially became effective 
January I, 1997. The County approved plan amendments such that plan assets are held in trust by a 
third party custodian, for the exclusive benefit of the plan participants and their beneficiaries. The 
assets will not be divelied to any other purpose. The County's beneficial ownership of plan assets 
will be held for the further exclusive benefit of the plan for the exclusive benefit of participants and 
beneficiaties. 

Accordingly, the County perfonns minimal administrative functions and does not perf 01111 any 
investment functions for the plan. Consequently, the assets held by the custodiatl are not included in 
the financial statements as of September 30, 2015 . 

Note 11 - Individual Funds Deficit Equitv Balances 

The following funds had deficit equity balances as of September 30, 201 5: 
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Governmental Activities 
law library 
Juvenile Probation and Detention - State Aid 
Mental H ealth Services 
Juvenile Drug Court 
Drug Diversion Program 
Juvenile TlPC A 
Sheriff Training Grant 
JAG Grant 
Sheriff Dept Grants 
Auto Theft Grant 

Drug Intervention Grant 
Cheek Water and Sewer Phase 4 
CETRZ Grant 
Total for Governmental Activities 

Business-type Activities 
Southeast Texas Government Employee 
Benefits Pool Fund 

Total for Business-type Activities 

$ 1,139 
15,075 

8,289 
4,913 
4,203 

57,201 
1,938 
8,094 

95 
6,754 

140 
88,969 

395,226 

$ 592 ,036 

$2,809,885 

$2,809,885 

If funding does not become available to cover these deficit fund balances from other governmental 
entities, the County plans to transfer funds to cover the deficit fund balance. 

Note 12 - Risk Management 

The Liability Insurance Fund was established to account for the contJibutions from the General Fund 
for payment of general liability claims. Under the laws of the State of Texas, claims for torts are 
limited to $100,000 per person and $300,000 per incident. The Liability Fund records a claim as 
payable when infonnation prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is 
probable that a liability has been incUlTed at the date of the financial statements and the amount of 
the loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities of the fund are reported when it is probable that a 
loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an 
amount for claims that have been incurred but not reported. Claim liabilities are calculated 
considering recent claim settlement trends. Changes in the Liability Insurance Fund's claims liability 
(including an estimate for claims incurred but not reported) were; 

Liability for claims, beginning of fiscal year 

Incurred claims and changes in estimates 
Claim payments 

liability for claims, end of fiscal year 
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2015 

$371 ,096 

1,327,720 
(389,841) 

$1 ,308,975 

2014 

$370,760 

268,378 
(268 ,042) 

$371,096 
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The Workers' Compensation Fund was established to account for the County's workers' 
compensation claims. Contributions are made from the General, Special Revenue, and Enterprise 
Funds for employees covered under the County's workers' compensation policy. Contributions to the 
fund are detennined by position class code within each department. From October I , 1999, to 
February 14,2005 the County was fully insured for workers' compensation claims and employers' 
liability. As of Feb mary IS, 2005, the County is self insured for workers' compensation claims and 
employers' liability. The County has excess coverage for workers' compensation claims and 
employers' liability claims limiting the County's liability to $500,000 per occurrence for losses 
occurring prior to October 1,1999 and after February IS, 2005. Settled claims have not exceeded 
commercial coverages in any of the past three fiscal years . Liabilities of the fund are reported when 
it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. 
Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred but not reported. Claim liabilities 
are calculated considering recent claim settlement trends. Changes in the Worker's Compensation 
Fund's claims liability (including an estimate for claims incurred but not reported) were: 

Liability for claims, beginning of fiscal year 

Incurred claims and changes in estimates 
Claim payments 

Liabil ity for claims, end of fiscal year 

Note 13 - Public Entity Risk Pool 

2015 

$396,044 

864,227 
(724,048) 

$536,223 

20 14 

$30 1,48 1 

774,404 
(679,841) 

$396,044 

On November 27, 2000, the Jefferson County Commissioners' Comi pursuant to Texas Local 
Goverrunent Code Ann. Sec. 172.001 organized the Southeast Texas Goverrunent Employee Benefits 
Pool (The Pool). The Pool was organized for the benefit of Texas Political Subdivisions and Special 
Districts to make available accident, life, and health benefits for Pool member employees. Twelve 
trustees govem the Pool. Five of these trustees are the Jefferson County Auditor, Jefferson County 
Insurance and Benefits Manager, Jefferson County Human Resources Director, Jefferson County 
Purchasing Agent, and the Jefferson County Assistant District Attomey. Two of the trustees are 
members of Commissioners' Court. The remaining five trustees are appointed by COlmnissioners' 
Court. 

The Pool is responsible for adopting underwriting standards, qualifications for membership in the 
pool , and establishing the types of benefits to be provided and associated fees for these benefits. The 
members of the Pool are responsible for their members' eligibility in the pool and payment of 
monthly contlibutions for participation in the Pool. The Pool members are not subject to 
supplemental assessments in the event of deficiencies. If the assets of the Pool were to be exhausted, 
members would not be responsible for the Pool's liabilities. Pool members cun·ently include 
Jefferson County, Texas (repOliing entity), Jefferson County Drainage District #3, and Jefferson 
County Drainage District #6. The total number of members in the Pool is 1,652. Operations of the 
Pool are accounted for as an internal service fund. 
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The Pool uses reinsurance agreements to reduce its exposure to large losses on medical and 
prescription claims. For the fi scal year ended September 30, 2015, the Pool had stop loss insurance 
contracts to limit the medical and prescription claims per individual member to $250,000 in a 
calendar year with a $1,250,000 aggregating group deductible. The Pool did not exceed these limits 
during fiscal year 2015 but did exceed these limits by $78,291 during fiscal year 2014, and by 
$187,182 during fiscal year 2013. 

Liabilities ofthe Pool are reported when it is probable that a loss has occuned and the amount of the 
loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incUlTed 
but not reported. Claim liabilities are calculated considering recent claim settlements trends. 

Changes in the Pool's claims liability (including an estimate of claims incun'ed but not reported and 
claim adjustment expenses) were: 

2015 2014 

Liability for claims, beginning of fiscal year 

Incurred claims and changes in estimates 
Claim payments 

$1 ,780,650 $1,625,837 

20,436,872 18,709,205 
(21,377,097) (18,554,392) 

Liability for claims, end of fiscal year $840,4)5 $1 ,780,650 

Additional infonnation including ten-year revenue and claim development are addressed in a 
separate arumal report. The aillual report may be obtained from Southeast Texas Govenunental 
Employee Benefits Pool, 215 Franklin Street Suite 200, Beaumont, Texas 77701. 

Note 14 - Construction and Other Significant Commitments 

As of September 30, 2015, the County had the following commitments with respect to unfinished 
capital projects: 

Capital Project 

Courthouse Restoration 

Public Health Building 

Roads 

McFaddin National Wildlife 
Refuge Dune Restoration 

Public Interest Projects 

Remaining Construction 
Commitment 

$ 2,507,179 

237,807 

245,822 

3,300,060 

358,217 

$ 6,649 ,085 
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Expected Date 
of Completion 

09/30/2016 

12 /3112015 

03/31/2016 

12/31 /2016 

09/30/20 16 
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Note 15 - Contingent Liabilities 

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor 
agencies, principally the State of Texas. Any disallowed expenditures or claims, including amounts 
already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of 
expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be dete1111ined at this time although the 
County expects such amounts, if any, to be immatelial. 

The County is involved in lawsuits and other claims in the ordinary course of operations. The 
outcome of these lawsuits and other claims are not presently detenninable and the resolutions of 
these matters are not expected to have a material effect on the financial condition of the County. 

Note 16 - Prior Period Adjustments 

In the fund level financial statements for the year ended September 30,2015, increases to begirming 
fund balance in the amount of$38,330 were made to Non Major Special Revenue funds for Juvenile 
Community Corrections Program ($34,163) and to Juvenile Advocate Incentive ($4,167) for 
corrections to prior year adjustments to revenues. 

As a result of implementing GASB Statement 68, the County has decreased beginning net position as 
of October 1, 2014 by $37,503,467 for the goveITU11ental activities. This decrease results from 
recording Net Pension liabili ty of$46,36 1 ,282 which was partially offset by a Deferred Outflow of 
Resources for Contributions made after 12/31/2013 of $8,857,815. In addition, the County has 
decreased beginning net position as of October 1,2014 by $687,436 for the business-type activities. 
This decrease results from recording Net Pension liability of$849, 799 which was paliially offset by 
a DefelTed Outflow of Resources for ContJibutions made after 12/3112013 of$162,363 . 

The total effect of these adjustments decreased begilming net position of the govenunental activities 
by $37,465, 137 and decrease begim1ing net position of the business-type activities by $687,436. 

Note 17 - Restatements and Reclassifications 

Certain restatements have been made to the plior year financial statements in order to confonn to the 
presentation of the current year financial statements. 

Note 18 - Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

GASB Statement 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application ("GASB 72"), addresses accounting 
and financial reporting issues related to fair value measurements by providing guidance for 
detennining a fair value measurement for financial repoliing purposes and guidance for applying fair 
value to certain investments and disclosures related to all fair value measurements. GASB 72 will be 
implemented by the County in fiscal year 2016 and the impact has not yet been determined. 

GASB Statement 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting/or Pensions and Related Assets that are 
not within the Scope o(GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions o/GASB 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2015 

Note 18 - Recent Accounting Pronouncements - continued 

Statements 67 and 68 ("GASB 73"), establishes requirements for defined benefit pensions that are 
not within the scope of Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting/or Pensions, as well 
as for the assets accumulated for purposes of providing those pensions. In addition, it establishes 
requirements for defined contribution pensions that are not within the scope of Statement 68 . It also 
amends certain provisions of Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting/or Pension Plans, and 
Statement 68 for pension plans and pensions that m'e within their respective scopes. GASB 73 will 
be implemented by the County in fiscal year 2016 and the impact has not yet been detem1ined. 

GASB Statement 74, Financial Reporting/or Postemployment Benefit Plans Other than Pension 
Plans ("GASB 74"), replaces GASB Statement No. 43, Financial Reporting/or Postemployment 
Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans. GASB 74 addresses the financial reports of defined benefit 
OPEB plans that are administered through trusts that meet specified criteria. GASB 74 will be 
implemented by the County in fiscal year 2017 and the impact has not yet been detennined. 

GASB Statement 75,Accounting and Financial Reporting/or Postemployment Benefit Plans Other 
than Pension Plans ("GASB 75"), replaces the requirements ofGASB Statement No. 45,Accoul1ting 
and Financial Reporting by Employers/or Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. GASB 
75 require govemments to r eport a liability on the face of the financial statements for the OPEB that 
they provide. GASB 75 will be implemented by the County in fiscal year 2018 and the impact has 
not yet been detennined. 

GASB Statement 76, The Hierarchy o/Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State and 
Local Governments ("GASB 76"), has the objective to identify - in the context of the current 
govenunental financial reporting enviromnent - the hierarchy of generally accepted accounting 
plinciples ("GAAP"). GASB 76 will be implemented by the County in fiscal year 2016 and the 
impact has not yet been detennined. 

GASB Statement 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures ("GASB 77"), requires govemments that enter into 
tax abatement agreements to make certain disclosures conceming the agreements to be able to assess 
how tax abatements affect their financial position and results of operations, including their ability to 
raise resources in the future. GASB 77 will be implemented by the County in fiscal year 2016 and 
the impact has not yet been detennined. 

GASB Statement 78, Pensions Provided Through Certain Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit 
Pension Plans ("GASB 78"), amends the scope and applicability of GASB 68 in association with 
pensions provided through certain multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans and to state of 
local govemmental employers whose employees are provided with such pensions. GASB 78 will be 
implemented by the County in fiscal year 2016 and the impact has not yet been detennined. 

GASB Statement 79, Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participants ("GASB 79"), 
establishes critelia for an extemal investment pool to qualify for making the lection to measure all of 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

Note 18 - Recent Accounting Pronouncements - continued 

its investments at amortized cost for financial reporting purposes. GASB 79 will be implemented by 
the County in fi scal year 2016 and the impact has not yet been detennined. 

67 

119



68 

120



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY 
INFORMATION 

121



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY Il'lFORMATlON 

GENERAL FUND 
SC HEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET .>\1'\')) ACTUAL (GAAP) 
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

BUDGETED A;\IOUNTS ACTUAL 

ORIG I~AL FINAL AMOlr?<.i 

REVEi\'UES: 

TAXES, 
PROPERTY $ 76,885,100 76,885,100 76,668,604 
SALES TAX 21,450,000 2 1,450,000 23,703,964 

FEES 8,680,744 8,680,744 9,473,369 
LICENSES 418,200 418,200 459, 198 
SALES, RENTALS, AND SERVICES 1,429,876 1,429,876 1,974,325 
~ERGOVERNMENTAL 1,5 74,315 1,574,3 15 1,757,619 
FINES AND FORFEITURES 1,725,000 1,725,000 1,927,212 
INTE REST 212,000 212,000 33 1,955 
MISCELLANEOUS 24,000 24,000 29,495 
CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS 375 

TOTAL REVEl'iUES $ 112,399,235 112,399,235 116,326, 11 6 

EXPEI'D1TUR£S, 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT $ 23,355,928 24,446,442 23,352,652 
JUDICIAL AND l A IV ENFORCEMENT 69,404,254 69,549,855 66, 182,403 
EDUCATION AND RECREATION 404, 159 404,159 382,440 
HEALTH M'D WE LFARE 10,79 1,110 10,819,132 10,123,450 
MAINTENANCE· EQUIPMENT Ai~D STRUCTURES 13 ,649,961 13,696,346 12,137,612 
CMIT AL OUTLAY 

TOTAL EXPENDlTln u:S $ 117,605,4 12 11 8,915,934 112,178,557 

EXCESS (DEF ICIENCY) OF REVEl\'l JES 

OVER EXPENDITURES $ (5,206, 177) (6,516,699) 4, 147,55 9 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES), 
TRANSFERS OUT (4,876,206) (3 ,565,684) (3,531 ,102) 

TOTAL OT J.f[R FL\'A.J\'CI.'\'C SO URCES (USES) $ (4,876,206) (3,565,684) (3,53 1, I 02) 

i'ET CHANGE IN FU1'\O BALt\J,CES $ ( 10,082,383) (l 0,082,383) 616,457 

FlJND BALA~CES, BEGINi\l NG $ 4 7,264,400 47,164,400 47,264,400 

FUl\T> BALA~CES. ENDING $ 37,182,017 37,182,0 17 47,880,857 
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\' ARlAi'iCE WITH 

FL"IAJ.. BUDGET 

(216,496) 
2,253,964 

792,625 
40,998 

544,449 
183,304 
202,2 12 
119,955 

5 ,495 
375 

3,926,881 

1,093,790 
3,367,452 

21,7 19 
695,682 

1,558,734 

6,737,377 

10,664,258 

34,582 

34,582 

10,698,840 

10,698,840 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SEPTEMBER 30,2015 

1. Budgetary Basis 

o Budgets are prepared on a basis consistent with GAAP. 

o The department is the legal level of budgetary control. Commissioners' Comi 
approval is necessary to transfer appropriations between departments. Transfers may 
not increase the total budget. 

o Arumal budgets are legally adopted for the General Fund and the Debt Service Funds. 

o TIle Capital Project Fund - Capital Projects Fund which is considered a major fund 
does not have a legally adopted budget. 

2. Analysis of Significant Expenditure Variances from Original Budget 

Commissioners' Court approved approximately $1 million in budget transfers over the original 
budget for General Services for additional cost for funding to the Liability Claims account. 

In addition, the Court approved approximately $350,000 in budget transfers over the original 
budget for the increased cost for indigent defense. These transfers were not part of the original 
budget. 

The above budget transfers were funded with the savings from various departments. 
Commissioners' Court was able to achieve $6,771.959 in actual savings from the total budget, 
with the assistance from all County departments. 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFO RMATION 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Plan Year Ended December 31 

Total Pension Liability 

Service Cost 
Interest total pension liabi lity 
Effect of economic/demographic 

(gains) or losses 

Benefit payments/refunds 
of contributions 

Net change in total pension liabi li ty 

Total pension liability - begirming 

Total pension liability - ending (a) 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Employer contributions 
Member contributions 
Investme.nt income net of 

investment expenses 
Benefit payments refunds of 

contributions 

Administrative expenses 
Other 

Net change in plan fiduc iary net position 

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 

Plan fidu ciary net position - ending (b) 

Net pension liability - ending (a) - (b) 

Fiduciary net position as a percentage 
of total pension liabi li ty 

Pens ionable covered payroll 

Net pension liability as a percentage 
of covered payroll 

* Reporting began in fi scal year 2015. 
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2014 

$ 8,802,884 
31,100,21 1 

970,401 

19,372,249) 

$ 21 ,501,247 

389,135,022 

$ 410,636,269 

$ 11 ,131,001 
4,514,879 

23,395,891 

19,372,249) 
270,923) 
445,436 

$ 19,844,035 

34 1,923,940 

$ 361 ,767,975 

$ 48,868,294 

88.10% 

$ 63,934,561 

76.43% 
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Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 

2014 
2015 

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

TEXAS COUNTY AND DISTRICT RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

Actuarially Actual Contribution Pensionable Actual Contribution 
Determined Employer Deficiency Covered as a % of Covered 

Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payroll (1) Payroll 

10,889,473 10,889,473 63,521 ,999 17.1 % 
11 ,476,313 11 ,476,313 65,197,649 17.6% 

(1) Payroll is calculated based on contributions as reported to TCDRS. 

* Information prior to fiscal year 20 14 is not available. 
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Valu ation T iming 

Actuaria l Cost Method 

Asset Valuat ion Method 

Smoothing period 
Recognition method 

Corridor 

Inflation 

Sala ry Increases 

JEFfERSON C O UNTY, TEXAS 
REQ UrRED SU PPLEM ENTARY .lJ'(FORMATlON 

NOTES TO SC HED ULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRlB UTlONS 
FOR TH E FISCAL YEAR ENDE D SEPTEM BER 30,2015 

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of December 31, two 

years prior to the end of the fiscal year in which the contributions are reported. 

Entry age nonnal 

5 years 
Non.asymptotic 

None 

3.0% 

Annual salary increase rales assumed for individual members vary by length of 

service and by entry-age group. TIle ann ual rates consist of general wage inflation 

component of 3.5% (made up of 3.0% inflation and 0.5% productivity increase 
assumptions) and a merit, promotion and longevity component that on average 

approximates 1.4% per year for a career employee. 

Investment Rate of Return 8.1 0% 

Cost-of Livin g Adjustments 

Retirem ent Age 

Turnove r 

Mortality 
Depositing members 

Cost-of-living Adjustments are not considered to be substantively automatic 

under GASB 68. Therefore, no assumption for the future cost-of-living adjustments 
is included in the GASB calculations. No assumption for future cost-of-living 

adjustments is included in the fundin g valuation. 

Experience-based tables of rates based on a study of the period 2009-2012. 

New employees are assumed to rep lace any tenninated members and have simi lar 

entry ages. 

The RP-2000 Active Employee Mortaliry Table for males with a two-year set­
forward and the RP-2000 Active Employee Mortality Tables for females with a fou r­

year setback, both with the projection scale AA. 

Service retirees, beneficiaries TIle RP-2000 Combined Morta lity Table with the projection scale AA..., with a one-

and non-deposition members year set-forward for males and no age adj ustment for femal es. 

Disabled retirees RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Table for males wi th no age adjusnnent and RP-2000 

Disabled Mortality Table for females with a two-year set-forward, both with the 
projection scale AA. 

Other Information There were no benefit changes during the year. 

73 

126



Actuarial 
Valuation 

Fiscal Year Date 

2013 10/1 /2012 

2014 10/1 /2013 

2015 10/1/2014 

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORl\1ATION 

OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BEI'I'EFITS 
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS 

Actuarial 
Actuarial Accrued 
Value of Liability Unfunded Funded 

Assets (AAL)* AAL(UAAL) Ratio 
(a) (b) (b-a) (alb) 

$0 $149,094,287 $149,094,287 0% 

$0 $159,551,852 A $159,551,852 0% 

$0 $ 170,556,354 $170,556,354 0% 

• Actuarial liabil ity determined under the projected unit credit cost method. 

Annual 
Covered 
Payroll 

(c) 

$62,180,294 

$63,647,485 

$65,067,626 

/I Actuarial accrued liability estimated based on roll·forward of prior year October 1 valuation results. 
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UAALas a 
Percentage 
of Covered 

Payroll 
[(b-a)/c] 

239.78% 

250.68% 

262.12% 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHED ULE OF EXPEI'DITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (GAAP) 
FOR TH E FISCAL YEAR ENDE D SEPTE!\'ffi ER 30, 2015 

BUDG ETED Ai\'IO ill\T S ACTUAL 
ORIG INA L FINAL A:\IOUNT 

GENERAL GOV[R.,"'-M£ NT, 

T IV{ ASSESSOR-COLLECTOR ],668.340 3,668,340 3,517,206 
HUMAN RESOURCES 430,962 430,962 376,157 
COUNTY AUDITOR 1,421.573 1,42 1,573 1,36],388 
COlJ}."YClERK 2,217,027 2,217,027 2,130,778 
COUNTY JUDGE 894,428 894,428 825, 128 
RISK MANAGEMEl\'T 240,745 240,745 228.692 
COUNTY TREASURER 378,326 378.326 369,794 
PRIl\'TIKG DEPARTMEl\'T 168,274 168.274 148,141 
PURCHASNG AGDIT 547,37 1 541,371 496,97] 
GEKERAL SERVICES 9,988,708 11 ,042,419 10,8]],956 
DATA PROCESSNG 2,076,244 2, 113,047 1,971 ,981 
VOTERS REGISTRATION DEPARTMENT 226,010 226,0[0 207,586 
ELECTIONS OEPARTMEKT 815 ,383 815,383 605.345 
VETER.M·S SERV ICE 282.537 282.537 277.427 

TOTAL GE~[RAL GO\'EIt."''' IE~T S 23.355.928 24.446.442 23.352.652 

JUDICIAL AND LA \\' E~FORCE"'E~T: 
OISTRICT ATTOR."IEY S 6,481,869 6,481,869 6,006,333 
DISTRICT CLERK 1,799,632 1,799,632 1,759,989 
CRI.\IINAL DlSTRJCT COURT 1,509,10 1 1,509,101 1,408,957 
5l1TH DISTRICT COURT 305,686 305.686 283,960 
60TH DISTRICT COURT 287,724 287,724 281,685 
136TII DISTRICT COURT 293,706 293,706 291,170 
1721'10 DISTRICT COURT 295,125 295, 125 262,8 15 
2~ 2NO DISTRICT COLiRT 1, 158,506 1,358,506 1,356,8 12 
279TH DISTRICT COURT 387.285 412,285 410, 156 
'> 17TH DISTRICT COURT 699, 183 79{), I 83 754,761 
Jl,jRY 1,086,240 795,240 766,944 
J.P. PRECl"'CT NO. I - PLACE NO. I 355,094 355,094 342,468 
J.P. PRECJ~CT ~O. I - PLACE NO. 2 349,550 349,550 324,912 
J.P. PREGNCTNO. 2 330,558 330,558 282,561 
J.P. PRECL'\CT NO. '; 355 ,319 355 ,319 337,629 
J.P. PRECINCT NO.6 364,634 364,634 348,028 
J.P. PRECL ..... n ~O. 7 362 ,270 362,270 317,186 
J.P. PRECL'\iCTNO. 8 364,959 364,959 319,578 
COUNTY COURT AT LAW NO. I 474,535 474,535 458,790 
COUNTY COURT AT LAW NO.2 653.755 644,1 53 590,11 6 
COUNTY COURT AT LAW NO.3 635.528 672, 130 644,545 
COURT MASTER 483,603 494,103 465,840 
DISPLITE RESOLUTION CENTER 254,682 254,682 202,966 
JlNEN ILE AL TERI-IA TIVE SCHOOL 381,977 381 ,977 337,127 
COM/IIIl/NITY SUPERVISION 14,728 14,728 14,259 
SHERIFF 13,169,790 13, 196,368 12 ,455,543 
CRIME lABORATORY 1.469,693 1,469,693 1,337,962 
JAIL 27,520,354 27,520,354 26,859,063 
JUVENILE CORRECTIONAL PROBATION 1,602.440 1,602,440 1,379,633 
JUVEN n..E DETENTION HOl'oIE 2,042, 112 2,042,112 1,789,213 
CaNST ABLE PRECINCT ",0. J 784,351 810,851 740,764 
CaNST ABLE PRECINCT NO. 1 464,729 464,729 446,432 
CONSTABLE PRECINCT NO.4 4 26.867 426,867 389.192 
CONSTABLE PRECL\lCT NO.6 569, 176 569, 176 556,526 
CONSTABLE PRECINCT NO.7 455,985 455,985 437, 194 
CaNST ABLE PRECINCT NO.l! 453,508 458,53 1 443,333 
COUNTY MORGUE 760.000 785.000 777.961 

TOT.AI. JUDICIAL A,",'D LA W E"'FORCE ,\JE~T S 69.404.254 69.549.855 66.1 82.403 

7S 

VARL-\NCE W ITH 
fL~A L BGDGET 

IS 1,1]4 
54 ,805 
58,ISS 
86,249 
69,300 
12 ,053 
8,532 

20,033 
50,398 

208 ,463 
141,066 

18,424 
210.038 

5.110 

\.093,790 

475,536 

39,643 
100, 144 
21 ,726 

6 ,039 
2,536 

32,310 
1,694 
2, 129 

35 ,422 
28,296 
12,626 
24.638 
47,997 
17,690 
16,606 
45,084 
45,381 
J 5,745 
54,037 
27,585 
28,263 
5 1.7 16 
44,850 

469 
740,825 
131,731 
661 ,29! 
222 ,807 
252 ,899 

70,087 
18 ,297 
37,675 
12,650 
18 ,79 1 
15 , 198 
7.039 

3.367.452 

[CONTINUED] 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (GMP) 
FOR THE FISCAL YE.<\R El\,,])ED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL 
ORIGI1',AL Fl!'o'AL Ai\IOliNT 

EDUCATION Al"iD RECREATION: 

AGRICULTURAL EXTENSION SERVICE S 404,159 404.159 382.440 

TOTAL EDUCATI ON A:"ID RECRE,\T1ON S 404,159 404,159 382.440 

HEALTH A,"D WELFARE: 

PUBLIC HEALTH lJ}\'IT I S 1,308,594 1,267,355 1,169,089 
PUBLIC HEALTH UNIT 2 1,256,570 1,233,831 1,160,679 
NURSE PRACTITIONER 299,070 299,070 287,160 
CHILD WELFARE 153,900 153,900 115 ,787 
DN1RONMENT AL CONTROL 408,121 408, 121 392,096 
INDIGENT MEDICAL SERVICE 4,900,891 4,992,891 4,960,1]7 
MOSQUITO CONTROL 2,189,276 2, 189,276 1,771,414 

EMERGENCY Jl.IA1'l' AGEMENT 224,688 214,688 217,088 
TOBACCO SETTLEMEf','T FUND 50.000 50.000 50,000 

TOTAL HEALTH ,\, ... ·0 WELFARE S 10.791.110 10.819.132 10.123.450 

I< l ... I:-.'TE"';A.'KE _ EQUlP,\IENT & STRUCT URES: 

COURTHOUSE &. A,\fNEXES S 2,754,648 2.769,1 17 2,525,011 
PORT ARTH UR BUlLDlNGS 746,362 759,246 700,948 
MID-COuNTY BUILDINGS 2)2,218 231,228 195,953 
ROAD &. BRIDGE peT. I 1,644,279 1,644,279 1,439,171 

ROAD &. BRIDGE PCT. 2 1,855,393 1,786,915 1,630,947 
ROAD &. BRJrxiE peT. 3 1,751,562 1,751,562 1,582,57 1 
ROAD &. BRIDGE peT. 4 2, 174.214 2,269,214 1,994,511 

ENGINEERJJ\G 985,864 985.864 926, 173 

PARKS &. RECREATION 197,532 190,032 11 8,249 
SERVICE CENTER 1.307.879 1.307.879 1,024.078 

TOTAL i\1A1-",·TENA.\"CE - EQUlPi\lE1H &. STRUCT URES S 13.649.961 13.696.346 12.137.612 

CAPITALOUTLAl': S 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDIT URES 11 7.605,4 12 118,9 15.934 11 2.173.557 

OTHER f l!'OAi\"Ci:"iG USES: 

TRA1'lSfERS OlIT 4.876 .206 3.565.634 3,531.102 

TOTAL OTHER FINA.'KfNG USES 4.876.206 3.565,634 3,531.102 

TOTAL GE NER.-\.L fUNO EXPENOITURES 122.481,618 122,481.618 115.709.659 
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VARIANC E WITH 
FL"'iAL B UDGET 

21.719 

2 1,719 

98,266 
73 , 152 
11 ,9 10 
38,1 I3 
J6.025 
32,754 

417,862 
7,600 

695.682 

244.106 
58,298 
36,275 

205,108 
155,978 
168,99 1 
274,703 

59,69 1 
71 ,781 

283.301 

1.558.734 

6 .737 .377 

34.582 

34.582 

6 .771.959 
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J EFF E RSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHE ET 

i'lOi\'MAJ O R GOVE R..\'M E NT AL FUl\"DS • SUM.\'lARY 
SEPTEiUBER 30, 20 15 

TOTAL 

SOS~IAJOR 

SPECIAL CAPITAL DEBT GO\~R"~rESTAl 

REn::-'"lIE r ROJ I:CTS SER\lCE FUXDS 

ASSETS: 

CASH .-\NO CASH EQVJVALENTS S 19,261,464 1,875,050 1,099,105 22,235,619 
ACCOUNTS RECEIVAB LE, Net 142,277 20,990 163,267 
INTEREST RECE IVAB LE 6,41 1 706 413 7,530 
DUE FROM OTHE R FUNDS 23,2-1 8 23,248 
DUE FROM OTHE R GOVERNMENTAL ENTITLES 1,508, 157 1,598,966 3,107,123 
DELINQUENT T /\.XES RECEJV ABLE, Net 107,897 107,897 
PENALTY AND INTEREST RECEIVABLE, Net 54,767 54,767 
INVENTORY, AI Cost 55,754 55 ,754 
PREPAID ITEM 781 78 1 

TOTAL ASSETS S 20,998.092 3,495,712 1.262,182 25,755.986 

LIABILITI ES, DEF ERRE D INFLOWS OF 
RESO L"RCES, AN D FUND BALA.\"cE 

LIABLLITl ES: 
ACCOUNTS PA YABLE S 872,5 14 992,788 44,234 1,909,536 
DUE TO OTH ER FUNDS 875,700 609,281 1,484,98 1 
DUE TO OTHER GOYERNl\'IENTAl ENT ITlES 51 9,735 519,735 
UJ\TEARNED REVENUE 675.833 675.833 

TOTAL LlABILITl ES S 2,943,782 1,602,069 44,234 4,590,085 

DEFERRED I ~FLOWS OF RESOURCES: 
UNA V AJlABLE REVENUE· PROPERTY T /\.XES $ 148,15 I 148, 151 
UNA V AlLABLE REVENUE· GRAl~TS 490,36 1 395,226 885.587 

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES $ 490,361 395,226 148, 151 1,033,738 

F lJl'D BALAI\'C ES: 
NONS PENDA BLE FOR, 

INVENTORY S 55,754 55,754 
PREPAID ITEMS 781 78 1 

RESTRICTED FOR, 
DEBT SERVICE 1,069,797 1,069,797 
CONSTRUCTION 50,077 50,077 
PUB LIC INTEREST 2,570,126 2,570,116 
JUD ICIAL & LA W ENFORCH"IENT 4,908,014 4,908,01 4 
EDUCATION & REC REATION 1 ,468,983 1,468,983 
HE..<\L TH & WELFARE 8,427,577 8,427,577 
MAINTENANCE OF STRUCTURES 

& EQUfPMENT 329,424 329,424 
COMM ITTED FOR, 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS 3,941,806 3,941,806 
ASS IGNE D FOR CAPITAL PROJECTS 1,799,539 1,799,539 
UNASSIGNED (DEFICIT) (196.810) (4, ' 93,005) (4 ,489,8 15) 

TOTAL f UN D BALA1\'CES S 17.563 .949 1,498,417 1.069,797 20,132, 163 

TOTAL LL<\..BILlTl ES, DEFERRED IXFLO WS 
OF RESO URCES, ASD FL~D BALA.\'CES S '0,998,092 3,495.712 1,26',182 15,755 ,986 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SUMMARY 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2015 

TOTAL 

r-;ONt\ I.·\JOn 

SPECIAL CAI'ITAL DEBT GOVERNi\fE .... 'T AL 

REVEi'.'lJE PROJECTS SERV ICE Fli]\,'DS 

REVENUES: 
PROPERTY TAXES $ 6,182,154 6,182,154 
SALES TAXES 1,291,716 1,291 ,716 
FEES 4,864,247 4,864,247 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL 8,689,966 5 ,222,040 13,912,006 
SALES, RENTAL & SERVICES 1,033,489 1,494,942 2,528,431 
FINES AND FORFEITURES 193,648 193,648 
CONTRIB UTIONS AND DONA n ONS 4,967 50,000 54,967 
INTEREST 80,947 5,127 15,56 1 101,635 

TOTAL REVENUES $ 16,158 ,980 6,772, I 09 6,197,715 29,128,804 

EXPENDITURES: 
CURRENT 

GEl\'ERAL GOVERNMENT $ 434,275 434,275 
JUDlClAL AND LA W ENFORCEMENT 14,364,433 14,364,433 
EDUCATION AND RECREATION 1,057,539 1,057,539 
HEALTH AND WELFARE 356,068 356,068 
MAlNTENANCE OF STRUCTURES 

ANDEQUlPMENT 40,593 40,593 
CAPITAL OUTLAY 7,233,879 7,233,879 
DEBT SERVICE 

PRlNClPAL 4,420,000 4,420,000 
lNTEREST AND COMMISSION 1,695,044 1,695 ,044 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 16,'52,908 7,233,879 6,115,044 29,601 ,831 

EXCESS (DEFJCIENC)~ OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES $ (93 ,928) (461 ,770) 82,671 (473,027) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
TRANSFERS IN $ 1,137,084 372,155 1,509,239 
TRANSFERS OUT (325,853) (325,853) 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) $ 8 I 1,231 372,155 1,183,386 

NET CHA1'lGE IN FUND BALANCES $ 717,303 (89,615) 82,671 710,359 

FUND BALANCES, BEGL'INING $ 16,808,316 1,588,032 987,126 19,383,474 
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 38 ,330 38,330 

FUND BALANCE, BEGlNNING (Restated) $ 16,846,646 1,588,032 987,126 19,421,804 

FUND BALANCES, ENDING $ 17,563,949 1,498,417 1,069,797 20,132,163 
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue 
sources other than expendable trusts, or major capital projects that are legally restricted 
to expenditures for specified purposes. Included in this heading are the following 
individual funds: 

Lateral Road Fund - This fund is used to account for expenditures of materials 
incurred in the maintenance of the lateral roads of the County. Financing is provided 
by contributions from the State. 

Breath Alcohol Testing Fund - This fund is used to account for fees collected by the 
courts on D.W.!. convictions and the expenditure of those funds. 

Law Library Fund - This fund is used to account for the maintenance of the County 
Law Library. Financing is provided by fees from law suits filed in the District Courts 
and County Comis-at-Law. 

Juvenile Probation and Detention Fund - This fund is used to account for receipts 
specifically designated for use in juvenile programs. 

County Clerk Records Management and Preservation Fund - This fund is used to 
account for fees collected by the County Clerk for the maintenance of their records and 
the expenditure of those funds . 

County Clerk Records Archive Fund - This fund is used to account for fees 
collected by the County Clerk for the preservation of records prior to 1990 and the 
expenditure of those funds. 

ASAP Constable Pct 8 Program - This fund is used to account for fees collected 
from the Port Arthur Independent School for the administration ofthe Absent Student 
Assistance Program (ASAP) by the Constable Pct 8 and the expenditure of those funds 
for the program. 

County Records Management and Preservation Fund - This fund is used to 
account for fees collected by the County Clerk, District Clerk, and Sheriff for the 
maintenance of County records and the expenditure of those funds . 
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Justice Court Building Security - This fund is used to account for fees collected by 
the justice courts to finance security services and equipment for justice courts not 
located in the County courthouse. 

Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection of a 2% 
Hotel/Motel Occupancy tax. Revenues collected from this tax are to be used for 
tourism projects in the County. 

County and District Court Technology Fund - This fund is used to account for fees 
collected from defendants convicted in a County, Statutory County, or District court 
and the expenditures ofthose funds on technological enhancements for the previously 
mentioned courts. 

Sheriff and Constable Education Fund - This fund is used to account for the 
expenditures associated with the education of Sheriffs deputies and Constables ofthe 
County. 

Tax Office Auto Dealer Fund - This fund is used to account for taxes collected from 
Local Auto Dealerships to be used by the County's Tax Office. 

Unclaimed Funds Management Fund - This fund is used to account for Unclaimed 
Funds for all County departments. 

Family Protection Fund - This fund is used to account for fees collected by the 
District Clerk for family violence prevention or intervention and the expenditure ofthis 
money. 

District Attorney Forfeiture Fund - This fund is used to account for forfeitures 
received by the District Attorney from criminal convictions and the expenditure of 
those funds. 

Hot Check Fund - This fund is used to account for fees received by the District 
Attorney for the prosecution of hot check offenders and the expenditure ofthose funds. 

Justice of the Peace Courtroom Technology Fund - This fund is used to account for 
the fees collected by the Justices of the Peace on misdemeanor convictions and the 
expenditure of those funds on technological enhancements for the justices' courts. 
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District Clerk Records Management Fund - This fund is used to account for fees 
collected by the District Clerk for the maintenance oftheir records and the expenditure 
of those funds. 

County Clerk Election Contracts - This fund is used to account for fees collected by 
the County Clerk for election contracts with local governments and the expenditure of 
those funds. 

County Clerk HA VA Fund - This fund is used to account for fees collected by the 
County Clerk for the rental of equipment purchased by the Help Americans Vote Act 
(HAVA) grant. 

Child Abuse Prevention - This fund is used to account for fees collected for certain 
child sexual assault and related convictions and the expenditure of those funds. 

Sheriff's Special Revenue Funds - This fund is used to account for fees , forfeitures, 
and other revenue received by the Sheriff in association with Security Fees, Law 
Officer Training fees, D.A.R.E. Contributions, Sheriff's Forfeitures, Sheriff's 
Commissary, Sheriff - Spindletop Grant, and the Marine Division reimbursements, and 
the expenditure of those funds. 

Guardianship Fee Fund - This fund is used to account for fees collected by the 
County Clerk to supplement the support of the judiciary in cases involving 
guardianships. 

Juvenile Delinquency Prevention - This fund is used to account for fees collected by 
the courts for certain offenses and the expendihlres associated with juvenile 
delinquency prevention and graffiti eradication measures. 

District Court Records Technology - This fund is used to account for fees collected 
by the District Clerk for the preservation and restoration of District Court records . 

Probation Department Funds - These funds are used to account for the expenditures 
of maintaining probation services as authorized by the County and District Courts. 
Financing is provided by State grant and probationary fees. Included in this heading 
are the following individual funds: 

Juvenile Probation and Detention - State Aid 
Juvenile Community Corrections Program 
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IV-E Foster Care Fund 
Juvenile Grant A - State Aid 
Mentally Impaired Offenders 
Community Supervision 
Women's Center 
Mental Health Services 
Community Corrections 
DWI Pretrial Diversion 
Juvenile Drug Court 
Drug Diversion Program 
Juvenile Accountability #2 
Juvenile TJPC A 
Juvenile Advocate Incentive 

Grant Funds - These funds are used to account for receipts of Federal and State grants 
designated for special projects or services. Included in this heading are the following 
individual funds: 

Family Group Conferencing 
SheritfTraining Grant 
JAG Grant 
Sheriff Dept Grants 
SCAAP Grant 
Crime Victims Clearing - I 
Regional Communication 
Crime Victims Clearing - 2 
EMPG Grant 
Forensic Science Improvement Grant 
Port Security Grants 
Auto Theft Grant 
FEMA Emergency 
Drug Intervention Grant 
Violence Against Women - 1 
Violence Against Women - 2 
Family Treatment Court 
SHSP & LETPP Grants 
Cheek Water and Sewer Phase 4 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENT AI. FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

BREATH 

UTEIU.L ALCO BOL L-\W 

ROAD T E$T1!';G LIBRARY 

FUNDS FUND FliND 

ASS ETS: 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 350.097 24.133 12.178 
ACCOUNTS RECErVABLE. Net 
INTEREST RECEIVABLE JJ2 9 
DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS 

DUE FROM OTHER 

GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 
INVENTORY. At Cost 

PREPAID ITEMS 

T OTAL ASSETS 350.229 24.14? 12 .181 

LL>\BILlTlES, DEFERRED INFLOWS 

OF RE SOURC ES, I\)\"D FUi'\D BA LAl'\'C E 

LIABILITIES: 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 20.805 13.320 
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 

DUE TO OTHER 
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 

VNEARNED REVENUE - GRANTS 

TOTAL LIABILIT IES S 20.805 13.320 

DEFERRED [~ FLO\VS OF RESO URCES: 

UNAVAILABLE REVENUE-GRANTS S 

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS 

OF RE SOlJRCES 

FUND BALANCES: 

NONSPENDABlE FOR: 

JNVENTORY 

PREPAID ITEMS 

RESTRICT ED FOR: 

PUBLIC rNTEREST 

JUDIClAL& lAW 

EN FORCEMENT 24,142 

EDUCATION & RECREATION 

HEALTH & WELFARE 

MAINTENANCE OF 

STRUCTURES & EQUrPMENT 329,424 

UNASSIGNED (DEFICIT) (1.139) 

TOTAL F UND BALANCES 329.424 24.142 (1.139) 

TOTA L LIABILITIES, DEF E RRED 

Il\FLOWS or RESO URCES, 

AND F UND BALA~C ES S 350.229 24,142 12,181 

80 

JUVE:\' ILE 

PROBATION &: 

DETENTION 

FUND 

542.036 

212 
23248 

3.788 

569.284 

2.587 

2.587 

566,697 

566.697 

569.284 
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Cour;n" CnRI\ 

RECORDS 

~IGl\IT. I\:"' D 

PRESERVATION 

""0 

848.47J 

307 

848.780 

848.780 

848.780 

848.780 

COliNW 

CLERK 

RECORDS 

ARCHI\""£ 

ru!'\"o 

565.161 

199 

565360 

55,479 

55 .479 

509.881 

509.881 

565.360 

ASA P 

CO r-:STABLE 

PCT S 

PROGRAM 

92.125 

92. 125 

D.483 

58.642 

92.125 

92.125 

COmiTY 

RECORDS 

MGMT. A-~O 

PRESER\"AT IO:-': 

FUND 

666.952 

245 

667.197 

\.749 

1.749 

665.448 

665.448 

667.197 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COiVffiINING BALANCE SHEET 

NON~HJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECL<\L REVENUE 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

J lJST1CE HOTEL CO UNTI' & 

COURT OCCUPAI"'CY DISTRICT CO URT 

DUl LD L"\G TA .. X TECII:-;OlOGY 

S[ClJRln' "-UNO FlJl\D 

ASSET S: 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS S 94.848 1.404.060 16.873 

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE. Net 105.329 

INTEREST RECEIVABLE 35 492 6 
DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS 

DUE FROI'vl OTHER 

GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 

INVENTORY, At COSI 

PR£PAJD ITEMS 

TOTA L ASSETS S 94.883 1.509.881 16.879 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS 

OF RESOURCES, A:,\D FUJ';D BA LAi\"c E 

LiABILITIES: 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE S 40.893 228 

DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 

DUE TO OTHER 

GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 
UNEARl\IED REVENUE - GRANTS 

TOTA L LIABILITIES S 40.898 228 

DE FERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES; 

UNA VAIL.A.BLE REVENUE-GRANTS 

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS 

OF RESOURCES 

FUND BALANC ES: 

NONSPENDABLE FOR: 

INVENTORY $ 

PREPAID ITEMS 

RESTRJCTED FOR: 

PUBLIC INTEREST 

JUDICIAL & LA \V 

ENFORCEMENT 94,883 16.651 

EDUCA nON & RECREATION 1,468.983 

HEALTH & WELFARE 

MAINTENANCE OF 

STRUCTIJRES & EQUIPMENT 

UNASSIGNED (DEFICIT) 

TOTA L FUKD BALAr-iCES , 94.883 1.468.983 \6.651 

TOTAL LIAB ILITIES, DEFERRED 

INFLOWS O F RESOURCES, 
AND FUl\'D BALANCES S 94.883 1.509.88\ 16.879 
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SEl EIUFF AL'i1) 

CONSTABLE 

EDUCATION 

FI.; ND 

26.083 

9 

26.092 

348 

348 

25.744 

25.744 

26.092 

TAX OFFICE 

AUTO 

D£.AL£R 

FU.'iD 

158.654 

60 

158.7 14 

158.7 14 

158.714 

158.714 

UJ\'CLA1MEO 

FUN OS 

i\IA:"AG EM [i"'T 

FUND 

149.949 

149.949 

10,420 

10.420 

[39.529 

139.529 

149.949 

FAMILY 

PROTECT ION 

FUl'o' D 

17.333 

6 

17.339 

17.339 

17.339 

17.339 

83 

DISTRICT 

ATIOR]'l.'EY 

FO RFEITURE 

FUN D 

244.097 

244.097 

244.097 

244.097 

244.097 

1l0T 

CII ECh: 

ftJ'N D 

60.202 

60.202 

1.182 

1.182 

59.020 

59.020 

60.202 

JP 

CO URTROO"I 

T ECl:l :,\OLOGY 

FU"D 

521.2 30 

195 

521.425 

151 

151 

521.274 

521.274 

521.475 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COl\'ffiINING BALAt,\lCE SHEET 

NONl"L>\,JOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECLU REVENUE 
SEPTEMllER 30, 2015 

DISTRICT COUNTY COUNTY 

CLERK CLERK CLERK CHILD 

RECORDS ELECTION HA VA ABUSE 

,\ L-\.J"' A GEl\[EN T CQi\TR..4CT S FliND PR£Y~"H ION 

ASS ETS: 

CAS H AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2,187 22.080 35.334 7.115 
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE. Net 
INTEREST RECEIVABLE 8 13 
DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS 

DUE FROM OTHER 

GOVERl\'M ENTAL ENTITIES 

INVENTORY, At Cost 

PREPAID ITEMS 

TOTAL ASSETS 2. 187 22.088 35.347 7.1 18 

LIABILIT IES, DEfERRED I:"I'FLOWS 

OF RESO URCES, A~D FtND BALANCE 

LIABILITIES: 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 640 

DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 
DUE TO OTHER 

GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 

Ut>lEARNED REVENUE - GRANTS 

TOTAL UABILITIES 640 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESQl:RCES: 

UNA VA ILABLE REV ENUE-GRANTS 

TOTAL DEFERRED Ii\"FLOWS 
OF RESOURCES 

r UKD BALAN"CES: 
NONSPENDA BlE FOR: 

INVENTORY 

PREPAID ITH.-1S 
RESTRICTED FOR: 

PUBLIC INTEREST 22.088 35.347 

JVDICIAL& LAW 
ENFORCEMENT 1.547 7.1 1 S 

EDUCATION & RECREATION 
HEALTH & WELFARE 
MAINTENANCE OF 

STRUCTURES & EQUIPMENT 
UNASSIGNED (DEFICIT) 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 1.547 /2.088 35.]47 7.118 

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED 
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, 
A~D FUl\'ll BALAi\"CES 2.1 87 22.088 35.347 7.1 18 
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SHERJfF'S 

SPECIAL 

RE\ 'ENUE 

FUNDS 

1.845,4 16 

30.134 

174 

649.979 
55.754 

2.581.457 

157.083 
587.167 

744.250 

55 .754 

1.78 1.453 

1.837.207 

?58 1.457 
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G UARD L-\.NSHII' 

FEE 

Fl.o~ D 

190.568 

71 

190.6]9 

190.439 

190.439 

190.639 

JU\E'HL[ 

OEI..INQ UE..'>;CY 

1'R£\ '£'''\Tl ON 

82.587 

" 

82.618 

82.618 

82.618 

82.618 

DISTRICT 

CO URT 

RECORDS 

TECHi\'OLOGY 

125. 130 

46 

125.176 

125 ,176 

125.176 

125.\ 76 

rROBATlO N 

DEPARTM E.."\T 

f UNDS 

2.677.1]0 

6.8 14 

930 

179.877 

78 1 

'J .865.532 

78 1 

1.21 1.53] 

(89.681) 

122.6]] 

2.865.5]2 
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G RA",'IT 

FLl'DS 

8.571.558 

].225 

582.388 

9. 157. 171 

128.722 

8.427.577 

(105.990) 

8.450.309 

9.1 57.171 

TOTAL 

19.261.464 

142 .2 77 

6.41 1 

13.248 

1.508.1 57 

55 .754 

78 1 

20.998.092 

55.754 

781 

2.570.126 

4.908.01 4 

1,468.983 

8.427.577 

329.424 

(196.810) 

17.563 .949 

20.998.092 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE 

FOR THE FI SCAL VEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

BREATH 

LAT ERAL AL COUOL LAW 

RO.-ill TESTlNG L m RARY 

FUI\Tl Flrl\TI FIJND 

REVEi'UES: 
TAXES S 
FEES 10,936 61 ,600 
F(l\,f£S AAro FORfEITURES 
S.t..LES, RENTAL & SERVICES II 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL 29,249 

INTEREST 1,618 115 6 
CONTRIBUTIONS MID DONATIONS 

TOTAL REVE:\lJES S 30,867 11,051 61,617 

EXPEi'DITVRES: 
GEN ERAL GOVERNNfENT $ 
JUD1CLA.L MTD LAW ENFORCEMENT 17,575 

EDUCATION AND RECREA nON 63,973 
HEALTH AND WELFARE 
MAINTENANCE OF STRUCTURES 

Al\.'D EQUIPMENT 40,593 
CAP IT AL OVTlA Y 

TOT Al EXPE~D1TURES S 40,593 17.575 63,973 

EXCESS (DEFIClENCY) O F REV ENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES S (9,726) (6,524) \2.356) 

OTHER Fli\"ANClNG SOlJR eES (USES): 
TRANSFERS IN S 
TRANSFERS OUT 

TOTA L OTIIER FlNAl\ CING 
SO URCES (USES) S 

!\ET C HANGE I~ FUND BALANCES S (9,726) (6,524) (2.356) 

FUI'\D BALAl\C[S, I3 EG INNL"IG S 339, 150 30,666 1,217 

PRI O R P E RIOD ADJUST ME :"IT 

F UN D BA LA NCES, BEGINNI \ 'G (Resta ted) S 339.150 30,666 1.217 

F UND BALANCES, ENDING S 329,424 24.142 (1,139) 

86 

JUVEi\TLE 

rRO BATIQ:--.' & 

DET El\TION 

FUl\ll 

29,885 

248,425 
2,133 

280,543 

288,305 

288,305 

(i,762) 

59,244 
(7.704) 

51540 

43.778 

522,919 

522.919 

566.697 
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COliJII'T\' C L£RIo.: COlJ1l,T Y COlil\TY 

RECORDS CLERK ASAP RECORDS 

l\ lGl\IT. A.l'\'D RECORDS CONST ABLE i\1Gi\ IT. AND 

PRESERVAT IO:'" ARCHIVE PCT , PRESERVATIO .... 

Fli1l.1> FlJ1I,"I) PROGRA:\I FUND 

412,025 429,538 213,233 

3,577 
758,782 

3,186 1,964 2,631 

415.211 431.502 762,359 2 15,864 

156,046 202,198 60,367 
762,359 

156.046 202.198 762.359 60,367 

259,165 229,304 155,497 

259.165 2'9.304 155,497 

589,615 280,577 509,951 

589,615 280,577 509,951 

848.780 509,88 [ 665.448 

[CONTINUED) 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBmlNG STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES m FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE 

FOR THE FISCAL VEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

JUSTICE HOTEL COlfl",TY &: 

COURT OCCUPA)iCY DISTRICT COURT 

BliILDL'i'G TA.X TECH.'OLOGY 

SECURITY FliND FUND 

REVENCES: 
TAXES 5 1,291,716 
FEES 10,858 7,275 
Fll,,rES AND FORFEITURES 
SALES, RENTAL & SERVICES 12,038 
INTERGOVERM\.'IENT AL 
INTEREST 401 5,355 66 
CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS 67 

TOT AL REVE~U[S 5 11,259 1,309.176 7.34 1 

EXPE~DlTURES: 

GENERAL GOVERJ':MENT $ 
nJDlCiAL Al\'1J LAW ENFORCH1fNT 3,644 
EDUCATION AND RECREATION 993 ,566 
HEALTH AND WELFARE 
MAINTENANCE OF STRUCTURES 

MTD EQUIPMENT 
CAPITAL OUTLAY 

TOTAL EX1'El\;DITLTRES S 993 ,566 3,644 

EXCESS (DEFIClEKCy) OF REv[,\UES 
OVER EXPEI\DITURES 5 11,259 315,610 3,697 

OTHER FINAl\"CIi\"G SOURCES (USES): 
TRANSFERS IN 5 
TRANSFERS OUT (164,433) 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCl i\G 
SOURCES (USES) S (164,433) 

KET CJ-I.A~GE IN FUND BALANCES $ J J,259 J51.1 77 3.697 

F UN D BALA!'"CES, BEGlJ'l"NL\'C $ 83,624 1,317,806 12,954 
PRIOR PERIOD ADJ VST!\'I[NT 

Fill''';D BALA NCES, BEGI.'\\,I'\'C (Restated) S 83.624 1,317,806 12,954 

FUND BALANCES, HIDL"\'G 5 94,883 1,468.983 16,651 
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SHERIFF AJ .... D TAX OFFICE UNCL\BlED DISTRICT JP 

CO~STABLE AlIfO FU:\TIS FA_\ULY ATTOR.,\""[\' HOT COURTROO;\1 

EDUCATION DEALER 1\lANAGDlEl\. r ROTECTIO;'" FORFEITURE CHECK TECH:XOLOGY 

Fli1\:D FUl\TI ruND FUl\TI FUl\TI Flii'oll Fli"ll 

4,009 18,440 16,185 20,032 43.908 
68,964 

29,231 
159 2,655 44 527 2,304 

29.390 6,664 ! 8.440 16.229 69,491 20,032 46,212 

32 ,09 1 15,000 81,759 5,853 27,934 

32.091 15,000 81,759 5,853 27 .934 

(2,701) 6,664 18.440 1,229 (12,268) 14,179 18,278 

(2,701 ) 6,664 18.440 1.229 (12,268) 14,179 18,278 

28,445 152,050 121,089 16,110 256,365 44,84 1 502,996 

28,445 152,050 121,089 16,110 256,365 44,841 502,996 

25,744 158,714 139,529 17.339 244.097 59,020 521,274 

[CONTINUED] 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINH'IG STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES 11'; FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

DISTRICT COUl\TY COUl'IT Y 

(LER'" CLERK CLERK 
RECORDS ELECT10N ElAVA 

CHILD 

ABUSE 

i\IANAGEl\lEl\'T COl\TR.\CTS FUi\"l) PREVEr-.'TIO ..... 

REVENUI:S; 
TAXES $ 

FEES 16,948 2,041 

FINES AND FORFEITURES 
SALES, RENTAL & SERVICES 22,968 26,352 
INTERGOVERm1ENT AL 

INTEREST , 72 lSI 28 

CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS 

TOTAL REVIl'"lJES S 16,950 23,040 26.503 2,069 

EXPENDITURES: 
GENERAL GOVERNMENT S 8,864 
JUDICIAL AND LAW EI',fFORCEMENT 20,128 
EDueA nON AND RECREATION 
HEALTH AND \VHF ARE 

MAINTENANCE OF STRUCTURES 
AND EQUIP/'o.·IENT 

CAPIT.A.L OUILA Y 

TOTAL EXPPiDITLRES S lO,PS 8.864 

EXCESS (DE FICIENCy) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPEi\DITURES S (3.178) 14,176 26,503 2,069 

OTHER FINANCI~G SOURCES (USES) : 
TRANSFERS IN S 
TR.A..NSFERS OUT 

TOTAL OTHER FI~ANCING 
SOURCES (USES) $ 

NET CHANGE IN FUN D BALANCES S (3,178) 14.1 76 26,503 2,069 

FU1\D BALANCES, BEGINNING S 4,725 7,912 8,844 5,049 

PRIOR PERIOD ADJ USTMENT 

rtJ1\' D BALANCES, BEGINNING (Restated) S 4,725 7,912 8,844 5.049 

FUI\"D BALANCES, ENDING $ 1,547 22 .088 35,347 7,118 

90 

SHERIFF'S 

SPECIAL 

REVE"'UE 

FUl",DS 

373,995 
124,684 
968,366 

2,099,556 
4,963 
4,900 

3.576,464 

4,029,166 

4,029.166 

(452,701) 

550,000 
(20,330) 

529,670 

76.968 

1,760,239 

1,760,239 

1,837.207 
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DISTRICT 

GUARD lA."SIllP J U\'E1\lLE CO u RT PROBATION 

FEE DEU "\'QUE"CY RECORDS DEPARTM"Ei\T GRA:"! 

J'Ul\-U PREVPHION T"ECH!'\OLOGV FL').1}S Hi:\1)S TOTAL 

1,29 1,7 16 
29,140 135 32,735 3,131.329 4,864.247 

193,648 
177 1,033,489 

4,705.719 819,004 8,689,966 
802 367 489 12,713 38,096 80,947 

4,967 

29,942 502 33,224 7,849,761 85 7.277 16,158,980 

6,800 434,275 
8,146,2 14 934,405 14 ,364,433 

1,057 ,539 
356,068 356,068 

40,593 

6,800 8. 146,21 4 1.290,4 73 16.252,908 

23,141 502 33.224 (296.453) (433.196) (93.928) 

143,713 384, 127 1,137,084 
(1 33.386) (325,853) 

10.327 384.1 27 8 11 .231 

23,142 502 33,224 (286. 126) (49.069) 717.303 

167,297 82,116 91,952 1,370,42 9 8,499,378 16,808,316 
38.330 38 ,3 30 

167.297 82,11 6 91,952 1.408.759 8.499.378 16.846.646 

190 ,4 39 82,6 18 125,176 1.122,633 8.450,309 17.563 .949 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR GOVERL,\,MENT AL FUNDS -

SPECLU REVENUE - PROBATION DEPARTMENT FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

CASH AND CASH EQU IVALENTS 
ACCOUNTS RECE[v ABLE, Net 
INTEREST RECEIV ABLE 
DUE FROM OTHER 

GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 
PREPAID ITEMS 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LLo\B l LITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

L1.o\B ILITlES, 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 
DUE TO OTHER 

GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 
UNEARNED REVEl\ruE 

TOTAL LI AB ILITIES 

FUI\'O BALANCES, 
NONSPENDABLE FOR: 

PREPAID ITEMS 
RESTRICTED FOR: JUDICIAL & 

LAW ENFORCEMENT 
UNASS IGNED (DEFICIT) 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 

TOTAL LIAB ILITI ES AND 
FUND BALANCES 

5 

JUVEl'I'lLE 

PROBATI ON 

.-\J"D 

DETENTlON­

STATE AID 

26,954 

4,558 

S ===",3",,1 ;;.5",,12,= 

5 2 ,29 1 

44,296 

5 46.58 7 

S 

(1;.075) 

S (15,07;) 

S 31.512 

93 

J U\'E~ I L E 

COM~lUi\"ITY 

CORRECTIO:-;S 

PROGRA,\I 

IV-E FOSTER 

CARE 
Flj j\'D 

523,882 

198 

;24.080 

217 

217 

523,863 

523,863 

524,080 

JlJ\'Ei"ilLE 

GRAiWA­

ST.-HE AID 

11 9,787 

119.787 

52 ,431 

52,431 

67,3;6 

67,356 

119,787 

[CONTINU ED] 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS ­

SPECIAL REVENUE - PROBATION DEPARTMENT FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

i\IEJ'TALLY 

IMPAIRED MENTAL 

OFFENDERS COMMUNITY WOM.E\'S HEALTH 

PROGR.\..M SUPERVISION CEro.'T ER SERVICES 

ASSETS, 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVAlENTS $ 60,588 968,072 603,878 
ACCO UNTS REC EIVAB LE, Net 3,652 1,146 
INTEREST RECEIVABLE 722 
DUE FROM OTH ER 

GOVERNMENT AI ENTITIES 
PREPAID ITEMS 540 92 

TOTAl ASSETS $ 60,588 972,986 606,116 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANC ES 

LIABILITIES, 
ACCOUNTS PAY ABLE S 5,778 241,236 75,530 5,792 
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 2,497 
DUE TO OTHER 

GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 19,96 1 266,947 
UNEARNED REVENUE 23.344 197.260 241 ,103 

TOTAL LIABILITIES S 59,083 438,496 583,580 8.289 

FUND BALANCES, 
NONS PENDABLE FOR 

PREPAID ITEMS S 540 92 
RESTRICTED FOR: JUDICIAL & 

LA W E1'~,1FORCEMENT 1,505 533,950 22,444 
UNASSIGNED (DEFICIT) (8,289) 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 5 1,505 534 ,490 22.536 (8.289) 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 
FUl'.'D BALANCES $ 60,588 972.986 606.116 
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COI\ I.\l lii\ ITY 

CORRECTIONS 

345,797 
1.0 16 

149 

346,962 

18.196 

222 ,827 
90,54 1 

33 1.564 

149 

15,249 

15,398 

346,962 

D\\l 

I'RETRJAL 

DIYERSIOi\ 

50,023 

50,023 

2,857 

2,857 

47, 166 

4 7,166 

50.023 

JU\'Ei\I LE 

DRUG 

COL:RT 

55,532 

55,532 

34,193 
2 1,339 

4,9 13 

60.445 

(4,913) 

(4.9 13) 

55,532 

DRUG 

DI VERSION 

PROGR..-\!\ I 

97,936 

97.936 

27.763 

74,376 

102, 139 

(4.203) 

(4,'03) 

97,936 

95 

JL"\'E;';ILE 

ACCOU'IiT . 

" 

JUVEiS'I LE 

TJPC 

,\ 

10 

10 

36,461 
20,750 

57,21 1 

(57.201 ) 

(57.'0 1) 

10 

JUVENI LE 

ADVOCATE 

I :XCE1IiT I \ 'E 

1015 

TOTAL 

2,677 ,130 
6,814 

930 

179,877 
78 1 

2.865,532 

502,745 
44,586 

519,735 
675.833 

1,742.899 

781 

1,2 11,533 
(89.68 1 ) 

1.122.633 

2,865,532 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS­
SPECLAL REVENUE - PROBATION DEPARTMENT FUNDS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2015 

REVENUES: 
FEES 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
INTEREST 

TOTAL REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES: 
JUDICIAL Al'lD LAW ENFORCEMENT 
CAPITAL OUTLAY 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

EXCESS (DEFICIENC Y) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDIT URES 

OTHER FINANCIAL SOURCES (USES): 
TRANSFERS IN 
TRANS FERS OUT 

S 

S 

JliVENILE 

PROBATI ON Jl;Y ENlLE 

AtXO CO.\IMUi'\ ITI' 

DETEf'IITI ON- CORRECTIONS 

ST AT E AJD PROGRAM 

50, 144 

50, 144 

55,443 

55.443 5_--",=,-

(5.299) 

S 
(,,778) 

TOTAL OTHER F INANCL~G SOURCES (USES) 5 __ ---''- ('.278 ) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BAL.'"'1CES 

FUl'fD BALA.NCES, BEGIi\'1\'ING 
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 

FUI\'D BALANCES, OCTOBER 1 (Restated) 

FUND BALANCES, ENDING 

S (5 ,299) (2,278) 

(9,776) () I ,885) 
34, 163 

(9,776) 2,278 

(1 5,075) 

97 

IV.[ FOSTER 

CARE 

FUKD 

2,49 1 

2,49 1 

59,512 

59,5?? 

(57 ,03 I) 

(57,0) 1) 

580,894 

580,894 

523,863 

JUVEl\" ILE 

GRA:,'T A· 

STATE AID 

11 9,787 

11 9,787 

52,4) I 

52 ,43 I 

67,)56 

67,356 

67,356 

[CONTINUED] 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERl~MENTAL FUNDS­
SPECIAL REVENUE - PROBATION DEPARTMENT FUNDS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

MENTALLY 

IMPAIRED 

OFFENDERS C01\'E\:ruNTTY \\'O]\'1£N'S 

P RO GRA,M SUPERVISIO N CENTER 

REVENUES, 

FEES S 2,758,934 222,400 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL 96,802 1,63 1,46 1 984,674 

INTEREST 9.523 

TOTAL REVENUES S 96,802 4,399,918 1,207,074 

EXPENDITURES, 
JUDICIAL AND LA IV ENFORCEMENT S 120,017 4.066 ,436 1,461,240 
CAPITAL OUTLAY 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 120,017 4,066 ,436 1,46 1,240 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 5 (23,2 15) 333,482 (254,166) 

OTHER FINANCIAL SOURCES (USES) , 
TRANSFERS IN S 
TRANS FERS OUT (127,646) 

TOTAL OTHER FINAl'K ING SOURCES (USES) $ (127,646) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ (23 ,215) 205,836 (254,166) 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 24,720 328,654 276,702 
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 

FUI\'D BALANCES, OCTOBER 1 (Restated) $ 24,720 328,654 276,702 

FUND BALANCES, ENDING S 1,505 534,490 22,536 

98 

MEl\"TAL 

HEALTH 

SERVICES 

110,765 

110,765 

130,331 

130,331 

(19,566) 

(19,566) 

11 ,277 

11 ,277 

(8,289) 
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D\\'l JUVE"I LE DRUG JUVEi\ILE JL-VENILE JL'VE:-'-ILE 

CG:\ Ii\H.i 1\"ITY PRETRIAL DRUG DJVERSI O~ "CCOUYI'. TJPC ADVOCATE 20 15 

CORRECTIONS D1vERSIO~ COURT PROGRAM " A I~C[""'T I V[ TOTAL 

69,257 80,692 46 3,131,329 
308,476 81,83 1 409,067 912,712 4,705,719 

699 12,7 13 

308.476 69.257 81.831 489,759 913,457 7,849,761 

426,589 22,091 102 .1 50 610,374 1,039,590 8,146,2 14 

426,589 27,091 102, 150 610,374 1.039,590 8, 146,2 14 

(118 ,11 3) 47,166 (20.3 19) (120,615) ( 126,133) (296,453 ) 

16,067 127,646 143,713 
(6) (3,456) (133,386) 

16,067 127,646 (6) (3,456) 10,377 

(118,113) 47,166 (4,252) 7,031 (6) ( 126 ,133) (3,456) (286, 126) 

133 ,511 (661 ) (11,234) 6 68 ,932 (71 1 ) 1,370,429 
4,167 38.330 

133.5 11 (661 ) (11.234) 6 68,932 3.456 1.408,759 

15,398 47,166 (4,913) (4,203) (5 7,201 ) 1,122,633 

99 

159



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NOl'l'MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -

SPECIAL REVENUE - GRANT FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

FAMILY 

GROUI' SHERlFF SHERIFF 

CONFERENClNG TR>\.llill'.'G JAG DEPT 
PROJECT GRA.NT GRMT GRANTS 

ASSETS: 

CASH AND CASH EQUlV ALENTS S 33,500 
INTEREST RECEIV AB LE 13 
DUE FROM OTHER 

GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 1,949 18,991 

TOTAL ASSETS S 33,513 1,949 18,991 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS 
OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCE 

LIABILITIES: 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE S 862 

DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 1,938 8,094 18,224 

TOTAL LIAB ILITIES S 1,938 8,094 19,086 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES: 
UNAVAILABLE REVENUE-GRANTS S 1,949 

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS 
OF RESOURCES S 1,949 

FUND BALANCES: 
RESTRICTED FOR: 

JUDICIAL & LAW 
ENFORCEMENT S 33,513 

HEALTH & WELFARE 
UNASSIGNED (DEFICIT) (1 ,938) (8,094) (95) 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES $ 33 ,513 (1 ,938) (8,094) (95) 

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED 
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, 
AND FUND BALANCES S 33 ,513 1,949 18,991 
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SCAAI' 

GRA,\T 

30,578 
12 

30,590 

30,590 

30,590 

30,590 

CRIM E 

VICTll\'IS 

CLEARL'IG - I 

7,997 

5,779 

13,776 

13,037 

13,037 

739 

739 

13,776 

REGIONAL 

COMi\IUl\"ICATlO:'ll 

61,641 
23 

6 1,664 

533 

533 

61,131 

61 , 131 

61,664 

CRIi\'1E 

VICTL\'IS 

CLEARL"XG- 2 

10,496 

10,496 

9,??J 

9 ,??? 

1,274 

1,274 

10,496 

101 

n 'lrG 

GR.A.\'T 

93,670 

35 

93 ,705 

309 

309 

93,396 

93,396 

93,705 

FORENSI C 

SC IENCE 

LMPROVEMENT 

GRA.'\'T 

237 

237 

237 

237 

237 

[CONTINUED] 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBTh'ING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR GOVERl\'MENTAL FUl\'DS­

SPECIAL REVENUE - GRAJ'\'T FUl\'DS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

PORT AUTO DRUG 

SECURITY THEFT FEilIA INTERVENTION 

GRA..!"'TS GR'\'!'\'T E!\'I ERGE~CY GR~'1T 

ASSETS: 

CASH AND CASH EQUrv ALENTS 5 8,33 1,039 

INT EREST RECErv ABLE 3, 142 
DUE FROM OTHER 

GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 29,780 366,692 4,835 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 29,780 8,700,873 4,835 

LI AB ILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS 
OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BAL ANC E 

LI AB ILIT IES: 
ACCOUNTS PA Y ABLE $ 4 ,579 2,923 

DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 25 , 196 1,9 12 

TOTAL LLABILITIES 5 29,775 4,835 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESO URCES: 
UNA VAlLABLE REVENUE-GRANTS $ 6,759 366,692 140 

T OTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS 
OF RESO URCES 5 6,759 366,692 140 

FUND BALANCES: 
RESTRICTED FOR: 

JUDICIAL & LA W 
ENFORCEMENT $ 

HEALTH & WELFARE 8,334, 181 
UNASSIGNED (DEFICIT) (6,754) (140) 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES $ (6,754) 8,334, 181 (140) 

TOTAL LIAB ILITIES, DEFERRED 
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, 
AND F UND BALANCES 29,780 8,700,873 4,835 
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VIOLE~CE 

AGA l"5T 

WOi\ I ES-J 

17,689 

17,689 

500 
17,189 

17,689 

17,689 

VIOLE='IC[ 

AGA INST 

WQj\'I [l'\' ... 2 

1,163 

5,989 

7, 15? 

7,152 

7, 152 

7, 15 ' 

FAi'I'1I LY 

TREATM ENT 

COURT 

5.647 

5,647 

1,301 
2,828 

4,129 

280 

280 

1,238 

1,238 

5,647 

SHSP & 

LET I'P 

GRANTS 

103 

CHEEK 
WATER A:'ID 

SEWE R 

PHASE 4 

11 ,733 

114.54 1 

126,274 

100,702 

100,702 

114,541 

114,54 1 

(88,969) 

(88,969) 

126,274 

2015 

GRA_'IT 

T OTALS 

8,571,558 
3,225 

582,388 

9,1 57, 171 

31 , 196 
185,305 

,)16,501 

490,361 

490,361 

128,722 
8,427,577 
(105,990) 

8,450,309 

9,1 57, 171 

163



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
CO~1BINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUl\'DS­
SPECIAL REVENUE - GRANT FUNDS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR EI\'DED SEPTEMBER 30,2015 
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FORENSIC 

CRll\lE CRIME SClE""CE 

SCA . .I,.P \' ICTli\IS REGIO\'AL VICTI:\,IS E,\IPG 1i\IPRO'·DIE.\'T 

GR..I,.!\'T CLEARI:,\'G -1 COi\'IMVi\ICAT IO:,\' CLEARING - 2 GRANT GRA.i\T 

17,676 5,778 50,000 30,753 
161 4 284 393 8 

17,837 5.781 284 50,000 31,146 8 

7,553 22,766 6,3 17 258,188 2,321 
42 ,153 

7.553 22.766 6.317 258.18S 42.153 2.321 ----- ------

10.234 ( It~:2.84) _______ (6,033) (J08,' 88) ._( 11.00'1 (2 J13) ----

1 {-d87 212.350 ------ ----

16,987 212.350 ------ ----
10.284 3 (6,033) 4,162 ( 11,007) (2,3 13) 

_ 20,306 736 67, 164 I' .SSS) 104,403 2,550 

30,590 739 6 1, 131 1,274 93.396 237 

[CONTINUED] 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPEI'I'DITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERl"lMENTAL FUNDS­
SPECIAL REVENUE - GRANT FUNDS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2015 

PORT AUTO DRUG 

SECURITY THEFT fEMA INTERVEi\'TION 

GRAinS GRANT EMERG Ei'\CY GR.\. i'\T 

REVENUES, 
INTERGOVERMvfENT Ai S 146,199 85,965 16,314 51,979 

INTEREST 36,992 
SALES, RENTA L & SERVICES 

TOTAL REVENUES S 146,299 85,965 53,306 51.979 

EXPENDITURES: 
JUDICIAL AND LA\,V ENFORCEMENT S 195,723 111 ,874 52 ,119 

'-TEAL TH & YI''£LF ARE 

CAPITALOVTLAY 

TOTAL £Xf' Ei\Dl TU Rt::S S __ 195,7~3 __ 11_1 , 87~ 5?, 11 9 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVEi\LJES 
OVER EXPE~'DI TUHES S (49 .424) _ (1 5,909) 53,306 (l40) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
TRf\NSFERS II': " ::0.330 ~5,770 ------

TOTAL OTHER F'lNA.NCING 
SOURCES (USES) S ___ 20,330 '"i5 .770 -------

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES S (2 9,094) ( 139) 53 ,306 (140) 

FU ND BALANCES, BEGINNING 29,094 (6,615) 8,230,875 

FU~D BALANCES, ENDlNC (6 ,754) 8,334, 181 ( 140) 
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CHEEK 

VIOLENCE VIOLE\"CE FMlllY SHSP &: WATER AND 2015 

AGAl .... ST AGA INST TREATMENT LETPP SEWER GR..\\"T 

W01\I£i\' -1 WO:\IEN- 2 COURT GR.-\i"l'TS PHASE 4 TOTALS 

80,000 5,989 30,533 59,915 157,459 8 19,004 

3 101 38,096 

177 

80.003 5,989 30,533 59,915 157 ,560 857,"177 

163.36 1 12.220 27.771 934,405 
59,915 254,000 356,068 

163.361 12 .220 27.771 59,915 254,000 1,290,473 ------

(83,3S8) __ (6231) 2.762 (96,440) (433.196) 

QO,612 6.' 31 384. 1')7 ------
90.622 6.23 1 384.127 

7,264 2,762 (96,440) (49,069) 

__ (7.264) (1,524) 7,471 8 ,499 .378 

1 ')38 (88.969) 8.450.309 
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 

The Capital Projects Funds are used to account for all resources used for the 
acquisition or construction of capital facilities except those financed by Enterprise 
Funds or Internal Service Funds. Included in this heading are the following individual 
funds: 

BP Settlement Shoreline - This fund is used to account for the proceeds received 
related to the BP Deepwater Horizon lawsuit settlement. Planned expenditures for 
these proceeds will be for the County shoreline and dune restoration project staring in 
Sabine Pass to High Island. 

Southeast Texas Entertainment Complex - This fund is used to account for the 
construction costs of a multi-facility park which has been renamed Ford Park. 

1957 Road Bond Fund - This fund is used to account for the purchase of right-of-way 
for highway and utility adjustments in conjunction with the Texas State Highway 
Department. 

GLO Ike Round 2 - This fund is used to account for the grants from the General Land 
Office for the McFaddin National Wildlife Refuge Dune Restoration project. 

TCEQ - First Time Sewer - This fund is used to account for the expenditures for the 
installation of a low pressure sewer system to approximately 81 low income residential 
customers in the Candlelight and Martel subdivisions. Funds for this project are from 
penalties assessed by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality. 

CETRZ Grant - This fund is used to account for the revenues and expenditures 
related to the County Energy Transportation Reinvestment Zone (CETRZ) Grant from 
the State of Texas. This grant will be used to rehabilitate County roads within all the 
Road & Bridge precincts. 

Keith Lake Fish Pass - This fund is used to account for the expenditures to construct 
erosion control devices in the Keith Lake Fish Pass. 
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ORA Capital Grants - This fund is used to account for the grants from the Office of 
Rural Affairs (ORA) and Community Development Block Grants for Disaster 
Recovery Programs. 

Ford Park Kayak Launch - This fund is used to account for the expenditures for the 
construction ofthe Katherine Huey Phelan Kayak Launch from funding received from 
a private donation. Kayak launch will be located adjacent to the Ben J Rogers 
Regional Visitors Center. 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - CAPITAL PROJECTS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

ASSETS : 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Net 
INTEREST RECEIVABLE 
DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCE 

LL>\llILITIES: 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES: 
UNAV AJLABLE REVENUE- GRANTS 

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES 

FUND BALANCES: 
RESTRlCTED FOR CONSTRUCTION 
COMMITTED FOR CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS 
ASSIGNED FOR CAPITAlL PROJECTS 
UNASSIGl\'ED (DEFICIT) 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 

TOTAL LIABILITI ES, DEFERRED INFLOWS 
OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES 

BP 

SETfLEi\lE"T 

SHORELE\'E 

$ 1,496,261 

564 

$ 1,496,825 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

1,496,825 

$ 1,496,825 

$ 1,496,825 

110 

SOUfS"EAST 

TEXAS 

Ei\TERTAL"li\LEl\"T 

COi\lPLEX 

1957 ROAD 

BO:XO FlJII,'D 

206,080 

78 

206,158 

23,818 

_ 23,818 

182,340 

182,340 

206,158 

GLO I"-""E 

ROlil'\'lJ2 

572,158 

572,158 

207,441 
364,717 

572,158 

3,300,060 

(3,300,060) 

572,158 
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TCEQ - FmST 

TJl', IE SEWER 

14 

14 

14 

14 

14 

CET RZ 

GR.-\:,\, 

835,889 

835,889 

663,868 
172.021 

835,889 

395,226 

395,226 

245,822 

(64 1,048) 

(395,226) 

835,889 

KEIT H LAKE 

FISH PASS 

120,329 

45 

120,374 

120,374 

120,374 

120,374 

OR..\ FORD PARK 

CAPITAL 

GR.\..Vf S 

2,322 
20,990 

190.919 

214,23 1 

97.661 
72 ,543 

170,204 

395,924 

(351,897) 

44,027 

214.231 

11 1 

KAYAK 

LAL::"lCH 

50,044 

19 

50,063 

50,063 

50,063 

50,063 

TOTAL 

1,875,050 
20,990 

706 
1,598,966 

3,495,7 12 

992,788 
609.28 1 

1,602,069 

395.226 

395,226 

50,077 
3,94 1,806 
1,799,539 

(4,293,005) 

1,498,417 

3,495,7 12 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINll'lG STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - CAPITAL PROJECTS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR EI\'DED SEPTEMBER 30,2015 

BP 

SETTLEMENT 

SHORELI!'iE 

SOUTHE.-I.ST 

TEXAS 

E O'I'TERTArN:\rEj\"T 

CO="PLL'X 

1957 ROAD 

BO!\l) FUI\'D 

REVENUES : 
fNTERGOVERNMENTAL $ 
SALES, RENTAL & SERVICES 1,494,941 
CONTRlBUTIONS 
INTEREST 1,883 1,114 

TOTAL REVENUES $ 1,496,825 1,114 

EXPENDITURES: 
CAPITAl OUTLAY $ 147,545 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 147,545 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES $ 1,496,815 (146,431) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
TRANSFERS IN $ 164,433 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) $ 164,433 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ 1,496,825 164,433 (146,431 ) 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING ( 164,433) 328,771 

FUND BALANCES, ENDING $ 1,496,825 181,340 

111 

GLO JKE 

RO lll'\TI ! 

571,158 

572, 158 

571, 158 

571,158 
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ORA FORD PARK 

TCEQ - FIRST CETRZ KEITH LAKE CAPIT.-\L KAYAK 

TL.\IE SEWER GIUJ'iT FISII PASS Gll.t. .... TS LAl;;-;CH TOTAl.. 

440,663 1,564,124 2 ,645,095 5,222,040 
1,494,942 

50,000 50,000 
1,826 241 63 5, 127 

440,663 1,565,950 2,645,336 50,063 6,772,109 

1,038,611 2,8 14,1 24 2,661,441 7,233,879 

1,038,611 2,81 4,124 2,661,441 7,233,879 

(597,948) (1,248,174) (16,105) 50,063 (461,770) -----

207,722 372. 155 

207,722 372,155 

(390,226) ( 1,248, 174) (16, 105) 50,063 (89,615) 

14 (5,000) 1,368,548 60,132 1,588,032 

14 (395,226) 120,374 44,027 50,063 1.498,4 17 
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

The Debt Service Funds are used to account for each specific long -term debt. 
These funds account for the accumulation of resources and subsequent 
disbursement of such resources to pay principal, interest, and commissions. 
Included in this heading are the following individual funds: 

2012 Refunding Bond - This fund is used to account for the revenues and 
expenditures associated with the $47,305,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds 
issued in May 2012. 

2013 Refunding Bond - This fund is used to account for the revenues and 
expenditures associated with the $1,340,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds 
issued in October 2013. 

2011 Refunding Bond - This fund is used to account for the revenues and 
expenditures associated with the $5,550,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds 
issued in March 2011. 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NON MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - DEBT SERVICE 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

2012 
REFUNDING 

BOND 

ASSETS: 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 823,307 
INTEREST RECEN ABLE 309 
DELINQUENT TAXES RECEN ABLE, Net 80,290 
PENALTY AND INTEREST RECEN ABLE, Net 40,754 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 944,660 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES 

LIABILITIES 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $ 32,916 

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 32,9 16 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
UNAVAILABLE REVENUE-PROPERTY TAXES $ 110,244 

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES $ 110,244 

FUND BALANCES: 
RESTRICTED FOR DEBT SERVICE $ 80 1,500 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES $ 80 1,500 

TOT AL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS 
OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES $ 944,660 

11 6 

2013 
REFUNDING 

BOND 

54,346 
20 

5,008 
2,542 

61,916 

2,053 

2,053 

6,876 

6,876 

52,987 

52,987 

61,9 16 
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2011 
REFUNDING 

BOND 

221,452 
84 

22,599 
11 ,471 

255,606 

9,265 

9,265 

31,031 

31,031 

215,310 

2 15,310 

255,606 

TOTAL 

1,099, 105 
413 

107,897 
54,767 

1,262,182 

44,234 

44,234 

148,15 1 

148,151 

1,069,797 

1,069,797 

1,262, 182 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR GOVERL"MENTAL FUNDS - DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2015 

2012 2013 
REFUNDING REFUNDING 

BOND BOND 

REVENUES: 
PROPERTY TAXES $ 4,600,942 287,408 
INTEREST 11,565 788 

TOTAL REVENUES $ 4,612,507 288,196 

EXPENDITURES: 
DEBT SERVICE: 

PRINCIPAL $ 3,070,000 265,000 
INTEREST AND COMMISSION 1,578,500 14,344 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 4,648,500 279,344 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCy) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES $ (35,993) 8,852 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ (35,993) 8,852 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 837,493 44,135 

FUND BALANCES, ENDING $ 801,500 52,987 

11 8 
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2011 
REFUNDING 

BOND 

1,293,804 
3,208 

1,797,012 

1,085,000 
102,700 

1,187,200 

109,812 

109,812 

105,498 

215,310 

TOTAL 

6,182,154 
15,561 

6,197,715 

4,420,000 
1,695,044 

6,115 ,044 

82,671 

82,671 

987,126 

1,069,797 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALAN CES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (GAAP) 
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL 
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS 

REVENUES: 
PROPERTY TAXES $ 5,992,867 5,992,867 6,182,154 
INTEREST 8,865 8,865 15,561 

TOTAL REVENUES $ 6,001,732 6,001,732 6,197,7 15 

EXPENDITURES: 
DEBT SERVICE: 

PRINCIPAL $ 4,420,000 4,420,000 4,420,000 
INTEREST AND COMMISSION 1,703,644 1,703,644 1,695,044 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 6,123,644 6,123 ,644 6,115,044 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES $ (121.912) (121,912) 82,671 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ (121 ,912) (121 ,912) 82,671 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 987,126 987,126 987,126 

FUND BALANCES, END ING $ 865,214 865 ,214 1,069,797 

120 

VARIANCE 
WITH FINAL 

BUDGET 

189,287 
6,696 

195,983 

8,600 

8,600 

204,583 

204,583 

204,583 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET Al'\'D ACTUAL (GAAP) 
DEBT SERVICE - 2012 REFUNDING BONDS 

FOR THE FlSCAlL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL 
ORI GINAL FINAL Al'WUNTS 

REVENUES: 
PROPERTY TAXES $ 4,460,023 4,460 ,023 4,600,942 
INTEREST 6,500 6,500 11 ,565 

TOTAL REVENUES $ 4,466,523 4,466,523 4,6 12,507 

EXPENDITURES: 
DEBT SERVICE: 

PRINCIPAL $ 3,070,000 3,070,000 3,070,000 
INTEREST AND COMMISSION 1,580,800 1,580,800 1,578,500 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 4,650,800 4,650,800 4,648,500 

EXCESS (DEfiCIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES $ (184,277) (184,277) (35,993) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ (184,2 77) (184,277) (35,993) 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINN IN G 837,493 837,493 837,493 

FUND BALAl\JCES, ENDING $ 653,216 653,216 80 1,500 

121 

VAlRIANCE 
WITH FINAL 

BUDGET 

140,9 19 
5,065 

145,984 

2,300 

2,300 

148,284 

148,284 

148,284 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACT UAL (GAAP) 
DEBT SERVICE - 2013 REFUNDING BOND 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2015 

BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL 
ORIG INAL FINAL AMOUNTS 

RE VENUES: 
PROPERTY T!\XES $ 278,570 278,570 287,408 
INTEREST 465 465 788 

TOTAL REVENUES $ 279,035 279,035 288,196 

EXPENDITURES: 
DEBT SERVICE: 

PRINCIPAL $ 265,000 265,000 265,000 
INTEREST AND COMMISSION 18,344 18,344 14,344 

TOT AL EXPENDITURES $ 283,344 283 ,344 279,344 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES $ (4,309) (4,309) 8,852 

NET CHANGE IN FUN D BALANCE $ (4,309) (4,309) 8,852 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 44,135 44, 135 44,135 

FUND BALANCES, ENDING $ 39,826 39,826 52,987 
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VARIANCE 
WITH FINAL 

BUDGET 

8,838 
323 

9,161 

4,000 

4,000 

13.161 

13,161 

13,161 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTU AL (GAA P) 
DEBT SERVICE - 2011 REFUNDING BONDS 

FOR T HE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL 
ORl GI.J\lAL FINAL AMOUNTS 

REVENUES: 
PROPERTY TAXES $ 1,254,274 1,254,274 1,293,804 
INTEREST 1,900 1,900 3,208 

TOTAL REVENUES $ 1,256,174 1,256,174 1,297,012 

EXPENDITURES : 
DEBT SE RVI CE: 

PRINCIPAL $ 1,085,000 1,085,000 1,085,000 
INTEREST AND COMMISSION 104,500 104,500 102,200 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 1,189,500 1,189,500 1,187,200 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EX PENDITURES S 66,674 66,674 109,8 12 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ 66,674 66,674 109,812 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 105 ,498 105 ,498 105,498 

FUND BALANCES, E DING $ 172,172 172,172 215,310 
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VARIANCE 
WITH FINAL 

BUDGET 

39,530 
1,308 

40,838 

2,300 

2,300 

43, 138 

43,138 

43,138 
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

The Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods and services 
provided by one department or agency to other agencies ofthe government and to other 
government units, on a cost reimbursement basis. Included in this heading are the 
following individual funds: 

Liability Insurance Fund - This fund is used to account for the County's contribution 
and payment for liability claims. 

Workers' Compensation Fund - This fund is used to account for the County' s 
contribution and payment for workers' compensation claims. 

Southeast Texas Government Employee Benefits Pool - This fund is used to 
account for the County' s group health insurance program, which includes 
comprehensive major medical and dental care. 
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ASSETS, 

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION ­

INTERt"AL SERVICE FUI\'DS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

SOUTHEAST 

LL\.BILln' WORKERS' TE."X.4.S GOVEIt'\''\\ENT 

I]\,'SURA."CE COMPENSATIO~ EMI'LOYEE BENEFITS 

FIDI'D FU:--.:n rOOL FUi\D 

CASH AND CASH EQUTV ALENTS $ 1,622,253 876,664 
ACCOUNTS RECETV ABLE 29,389 
INTEREST RECETV ABLE 253 331 
DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTn'IES 170,370 
INSU RANCE DEPOSIT 75,500 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,622,506 952,495 199,759 

LlABI LlTI ES: 

ACCOUNTS PAY ABLE $ 18,704 
CLAIMS LIABILiTY 1,308,975 536,223 840,425 
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 2,150,515 

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 1,308,975 536,223 3,009,644 

NET POSITION': 

UNRESTRJCTED $ 3 13,53 1 416,272 (2,809,885) 

TOTAL NET POSITlO~ $ 313,53 1 416,272 (2,809,885) 

125 

TOTAL 

2,498,917 
29,389 

584 
170,370 
75,500 

2,774,760 

18,704 
2,685,623 
2,150,515 

4,854,842 

(2,080,082) 

(2,080,080) 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATn'lENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, 

AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION -
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

LL-\BIL ITY 

INStJRA,'.;cE 

F1JND 

WORKERS' 

CO,\ IPENSATION 

FUND 

SOlIT8EAST 

TEXAS GOYERN ~ I Ej\"T 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

rOOL FUN D 

OPERA TL~G REVENlfES: 

EJI.1PLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS $ 

CI-LA.RGES fOR SERVICES 

TOTAL OPERATING REVEN UES S 

OPER.\TlliG EXPEl\"SES: 

ADMIN1STRATIVE S 
INCURRED & ESTIMATED ClAIMS 

TOTAL OPER.\ TL'IIG £XPEl\SES S 

OP£RAHNG Il\"COM:E (LOSS) S 

NO.\OPER-\.T1i\"G REVENl.JES: 

INTEREST S 
REFUNDS MT{) RECOVERIES 

TOTAL I\ONOrF.R-\. TL\"G REVEl\ lJES S 

CHANGE L\' I\[T POSITION S 

i\TT POSlTIO.\, BEGINi\"I.'iG 

i\""ET POSITIO~, ENDE'lG $ 

1,660,000 

1,660,000 

1,327,720 

1,327,720 

332,280 

1,439 

1,439 

333,719 

(20,188) 

313,531 
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500,000 

500,000 

864,'26 

864,226 

(364,226) 

3,209 
63 

3,'72 

(360,954) 

777,226 

416,272 

2,156,897 
14.825,2 17 

16,982, 114 

1,782,985 
18,033,007 

19,8 15,99' 

(2,83J,878) 

43 
524.697 

524,740 

(2,309,138) 

(500,747) 

(2,809,885) 

TOTAL 

2,156,897 
16,985,217 

19,142,11 4 

1,782,985 
20,224,953 

22,007,938 

(2.865,824) 

4,691 
524,760 

529,451 

(2,336,373) 

256,291 

(2,080,082) 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

CAS H FLOWS FROM OPERATI:\'C ACTIVITI ES: 

RECEIPTS FROM Ct.:STOM ERS A.,'\O USERS S 
RECEIPTS FROM EMPLOYEES 

PAYMENTS TO SLiP PLl ERS 

INTERl"'lAL ACTIVITY .RECEIPTS(PA YMENTS) FROM 

(TO) OTHER FUNDS 

ClAJMS PAID 

OTHER RECEIPTS 

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES S 

CAS H FLOWS fRO;\" L~VESn'I E l\"T ACTIVITIES: 

N TEREST S 

N ET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTMENT ACTIVITI ES S 

NET r;""CREASE (DECREASE) IS CASH S 
CAS H A."D CASH EQli lVA LEXTS - BEC~:'IiL"G 

CAS H A':\" D CASH EQU IVALENTS . [ .'\ DL\ 'G S 

RE:CO;\,CILL\.TI Oi\" OF OPERATL'-:G ~TOME(LOSS) TO NET 

CAS H PROVlD ED(USE D) BY OPERATL\'G ACTIVITI ES: 

OPERATING rNCOME(LOSS) S 
ADJUSn.·IENTS TO RECONCILE OPERATING INCOM E 

(l OSS) TO KET CASH 

PROVIDED BY OPERATTNG ACTIVITIES: 

OTHER NON-OP ERATING REVENUES 

CHA,\IGES N ASSETS AND LIABILIT IES: 

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

INSURA.,"l"CE DEPOSIT 

DUE FROM OTHER GQVERi'\ME?;"T At E1'\TITIES 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

CLAIMS LIAB ILITY 

I\' £T CASH PROV IDED BY OI)ER~n.l"'G ACT IV ITI ES $ 

L1ABILln' 

INSURA.'KE 

Fn;O 

1,660,000 
(389,84 1 ) 

1.270,159 

1.789 

1.289 

1,271 ,448 
350,805 

1.622,253 

332,280 

937.879 

1.270.1 59 
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WORKERS' 

CO~[PENSATION 

r tJ;-;D 

500,000 
(724,047) 

63 

(223 .984) 

2,966 

2.966 

(221,018) 
1.097.682 

876,664 

(364,226) 

63 

140,179 

(223 .984) 

SOL.HEAST 

TEXAS GOVERt\'ME:'T 

E~fP I..OYEE BENEFITS 

POOL FUKO 

1,615,524 
2, 158,010 

(1,780,542) 

15,408,1 10 
( 18,973,232) 

524.846 

(1.047.284) 

357 

352 

(1,046,932) 
1,046.932 

(2,833.878) 

524.697 

1,262 

47,902 
2,443 

(940,225) 

(1.04 7.284) 

TOTAL 

1,6 15,524 
2,158,010 

(1 ,780,542) 

17,568,110 
(20,087,120) 

524.909 

(I, I 09) 

4.607 

4.607 

3,498 
2.495.419 

2.498.917 

(2,865,824) 

524,760 

1,262 

47,902 
2,443 

137.833 

(1,109) 
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

The Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the County as a trustee or 
agent for individuals, private organizations, and other units of government. Such 
funds are operated by carrying out specific terms of trust indentures, ordinances, grant 
requirements, or other governing regulations. Included in this heading are the 
following individual funds: 

Treasurer Maintained Fund - This fund is used to account for various monies 
deposited with the County Treasurer for distribution to other individuals and/or 
government entities. 

County Clerk Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection and distribution 
of money held in trust by the Clerk of the County Courts. 

District Clerk Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection and distribution 
of the money held in trust by the Clerk of the District Courts. 

Sheriff's Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection and distribution of 
money held in trust by the Sheriff. 

Justice of the Peace Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection and 
distribution of money held in trust by the Justices of the Peace. 

Tax Assessor/Collector Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection and 
distribution of money held in trust by the Tax Assessor/Collector . 

District Attorney's Seizure Fund - This fund is used to account for the seizure and 
subsequent distribution of seized personal property. 

Community Supervision Trust Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection 
and distribution of money held in trust by the Community Supervision Department. 

Juvenile Probation Trust Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection and 
distribution of money held in trust by the Juvenile Probation Department. 

Flexible Spending - This fund is used to account for the collection and distribution of 
money collected under the Internal Revenue Code Section 125 benefit plan. 
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Women's Center Trust Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection and 
distribution of money held in tnlst by the Women's Center. 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

AGENCY FUNDS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

TREASURER COUNTY DISTRICT JL'STICE OF 

I'.l.IJNTAI NED CLERK CLERK SHERIFF'S THE PEACE 

FlIl'D FUND FUND FUND Fur;D 

TOTAL AGENCY FUl'ODS 
ASSETS - OCTOBER 1. 2014 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 395.279 4.005,\41 6.396.417 412,765 185.601 

ACCOUNTS RECE IVABLE, Net 7.410 
DUE FROM OTHER 

GOVERNMENTAL ENT ITIES 341 .281 68.294 
TOTAL $ 743.971 4.005. 141 6.464.711 4i?765 185.601 

ADDITIONS 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 2.0 17,355 4.409.929 5,919.386 5,123.427 3.277.384 
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Net 6,060 
DUE FROM OTHER 

GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 374.413 47.508 
TOTAL $ 2.397.828 4.409.929 5.966,894 5.123,427 3.277.384 

DELETI ONS 
CAS H AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2,009 .664 4.703 ,872 6.858.479 5.273.568 3303,55 1 

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE. Net 7,410 

DUE FROM OTHER 
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 372.968 68.294 
TOTAL S 2.390.042 4. 703.872 6.926.773 5.273.568 3.303 .551 

ASSETS - SEPTEMBER 30. 201 5 
CASH AND CAS H EQUIVALENTS S 402.970 3.711.198 5.457.324 262.624 159.434 

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE. Net 6,060 
DUE FROM OTHER 

GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 342.727 47.508 

TO TAL ASSET S S 751.757 3.711.198 5.504.832 262 .624 159.434 

LIABI LITI ES-OCTOBER 1.2014 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $ 248.761 710.851 6.398.355 357.120 33.213 
DUE TO OTHER 

GOVERNMENTAL ENT ITIES 495.210 66.896 66356 55.64 5 152 .388 

OTHER PA YABLES 3.2?7.394 

TOTAL $ 743.971 4.005 .141 6.464.71 1 412.765 185.601 

ADOTTI0~S 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $ 117,910 119.445 4,139.455 1.801.468 281.287 
DUE TO OTHER 

GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 1.900,444 63.590 97.031 62 .462 134.394 

OTHER PAY ABLES 834.674 
TOTAL 2.018354 \.017.709 4.236.486 1.863.930 415 .68 1 

DELETIO NS 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 110.284 207,978 5.115.259 1.958.426 289.460 
DUE TO OTHER 

GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 1.900.284 66.896 81.1 06 55.645 152.388 

OTHER PA YABLES 1.036.778 

TOTAL S 2.010.568 1.311.652 5.196.365 2.014.071 441.848 

LIAB ILITIES· SEPTEMBER 30. 2015 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE S 256.387 622 ,318 5.422,551 200.162 25.040 

DUETO OTHER 
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 495,370 63,590 82,28 1 62,462 134394 

OTHER PAYABlES 3.025.290 

TOTAL LIABILITI ES 751.757 3.711.198 5.504.832 262,624 159.434 
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T A.X ASSESSOR DlSTRlCT COi\t:\1liKln' J UV[ :\ILE FLEXIBLE WOi\ IEI\'S TOTAL 

COLLECTOR A TTOR.~EY'S SUrER\lSIOI\ PROBATIO:O-' SPENI)1!'o'C CEIHER AGE NCY 

FUND SEIZURE FUN D TRUST FUK D TRLIST FU:-<D FUl'''O TRUST FU:'\D Fl<;'.'DS 

4.243. 100 168.377 393.959 3.803 27.525 23.902 16.255.869 
7.410 

1.290 410.866 
4.243.1 00 168.377 393.959 3.803 28.8 15 23.902 16.674.145 

596.7:52.200 384.661 5.1 18.921 2 1.1 48 309,982 479.445 623.8\3.8]8 
6.060 

2.616 424.5]7 
596.752.200 384.661 5.1 18.921 21.148 312.598 479.445 614.244.435 

595.971.855 153.560 5.077.228 10,668 316.561 488.925 624. 177,931 
7.410 

1.290 441.552 
595 .971.855 153.560 5.077.228 20.668 317,851 488.915 624.627.893 

5.023.445 399.478 435,652 4.283 20.946 14.411 15.891.776 
6.060 

2.616 392.851 

5.013.445 399.478 435.652 4.1 83 23.562 14.422 16.190.687 

4.243.1 00 168.377 393.959 3.803 18.8 15 1],902 12.610,256 

836.495 
3.117.394 

4.143.100 168.377 393.959 3.803 28.815 2].901 16.674.145 

597.5\3.473 384.661 5.119.276 23.681 314.905 479.445 610.295 ,007 

2.257,921 
834.674 

597.513 .473 384.661 5. 119.276 23.681 314.905 479.445 6\3.387.602 

596.733 .128 153.560 5.077.583 23.202 320.158 488.925 610.477,963 

2.256.] 19 
1.036.778 

596.733.118 153.560 5.077.583 23.102 ]20.158 488.925 613.771.060 

5,023.445 399.478 435.652 4.183 13.562 14.422 12.417.300 

838,097 
3.025.290 

5.023.445 399.478 435.652 4.283 23.562 14.422 16.290.687 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SCHEDULE BY SOURCE 
SEPTEMBER 30,2015 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CAPITAL ASSETS: 

LAND 
INFRASTRUCTURE 
BUILDINGS AND IMPROVEMENTS 
EQUIPMENT 
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CAPITAL ASSETS 

$ 

TOTAL 

3,840,787 
59,114,166 

102,7 18, 113 
41 ,301,248 
19,964,968 

$ =~2;;:2~6,~93~9~,2~82~ 

INVESTMENTS IN GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CAPITAL ASSETS BY SOURCE: 

GENERAL FUND $ 88,061,474 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 33,646,254 
CAP IT AL PROJECTS FUND 102,625,998 
GIFTS 2,605,556 

$ 226,939,282 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SCHEDULE BY FUNCTION 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 

FUNCTION LAND INFRASTRUCTURE 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT $ $ 
JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT 45 ,446 
HEALTH & WELFARE 14,000 
MAINTENANCE OF STRUCTURES AND 

EQUIPMENT 3,781 ,341 59,114,166 

TOTAL GOVERl\TMENTAL FUNDS CAPITAL ASSETS $ 3,840,787 $ 59,114,166 

134 
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BllLDINGS& CONSTRUCTION 
IMPROVEMENTS EQUIPMENT IN PROGRESS TOTAL 

$ 475,678 $ 6,314,757 $ $ 6,790,435 
31,377,253 19,553 ,531 61,463 51,037,693 

1,545,740 1,033,203 1,887,342 4,480,285 

69,319,44/ 14,399,757 18,016,163 164,630,869 

$ 102,718,1 13 $ 41,301,248 $ 19,964,968 $ 226,939,282 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERA nON OF GOVERNMENT AL FUNDS 

SCHED ULE OF CHAN GES BY FUNCTION 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 20]5 

BALk'\'CE 
F UNCTIO N 10/112014 ADDITIONS D[DUCTIO~S TR-\NS FERS 

GENERA.L GQYERt'JMENT S 5,245 ,959 S [,848 ,765 S (304 ,289) S 
JUDlCV\L AND LAW El\TfORCEI'vlENT 50,112,416 1,729,309 (804,032) 
HEALTH AND I,I,'ELFARE 2,706,611 1,895,933 ( 122,260) 
MAINTENANCE OF STRUCTURES AND 

EQUIPIvlENT 156.08 1.137 8.646.575 (96.838) 

T O TAL G O VER.-"; i\lES TA L FUi'\DS CAPITAL ASSETS $ 214.146.119 $ 14.1?O.582 S ( 1.327,419) 

136 

BALA:'~iCE 

9/30120 ]5 

S 6,790,435 

51,037,693 
4.480.285 

164,630.869 

S 226.939.782 
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STATISTICAL SECTION 

TIlls part of the Jefferson County, Texas comprehensive annual financial report presents 
detailed infonnation as a context for understanding what the infonnation in the financial 
statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary infonnation says about the 
County's overall financial health. 

Contents 

Financial Trends 
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader 
understand how the County's financial pel/ormance and well-being 
have changed over time. 

Revenue Trends 
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess 
the County's most significant local revenue source. the property 
tax. 

Debt Capacity 
These schedules present informatio n to help the reader access 
the affordability of the County 's current levels of outstanding 
debt and the County's ability to issue additional debt in the 

.ft·ltLire. 

Demographic and Economic Information 
Th ese schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to 

help the reader understand the environment within which the 
County's financial activities take p lace. 

Operating Information 
These schedules contain service and inFastructLire data to help 
the reader understand how the information in the County's 
financial report relates to the services the County provides and 
the activities it pel/orms. 

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the infonnation in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive 
annual financial reports for the relevant year. 
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-I>­
o 

E~pc"scs 

GovCmll1el1 l ~\ activit ies: 
Gcncr~1 Govcnllncnl 
J ~I\lidal lind Law Enro r~C111 CI1I 

Educalion nmJ RCl: l'cnl ion 
llcn\lh amI Wcl rmc 

Maintcnance - Equipment :md S lrll cltll'~'S 

Inleresl and Chnrgcs 011 Lonl:-tel'l11 [Jelll 
TOlnlllovcn"'lcnlnl nel i"il ics C.'p<"" M:!/. 

lliisiness-Iypc lIcl il'il ic!!: 
Airport 
EnlCflainmcnl Complc.l 
Ilealth Insurance Risk 1'001 

Total Business-Iype c.'pcnscs 
TOlal prim1\/)' l"l>"crmnc" , ""p,.'\SC$ 

I'rogn m ItI'VI'III1 I"S 

GovcmrnlTllaloclivilie!l : 

Chaq;cs ror scnoiccs: 

s 

Z IIU~ 

15 ,04~,7(,~ 

55 ,468,283 

I, \~ O,0 8 3 
8 .. 1)').07b 

~ 7 , 4 ~], 7 8 \ 

~,12S.450 

\.1 1 .5/,7.4~b 

4.1 17.325 
7,:\')2.777 

10.101.217 

S 2 1.6 11.J19 
S 15.1.178.755 

Gcnerol GOI'cmlnent S 4.6 16.001 
Ju<Jidal and l-llw Enrorccmcnl 11.587.b2H 

EducMion and RC("rcalion 223.468 

I1 c~lth nnd WelrHre ')3.465 

Mainh:l1ant:c - Equipment 11m! Silliclurcs 15.177.669 

Opernlinllllrn nt s nnd conlrihnlions 36.793.%4 
Cllp i1a llll"nniS nnd cI'Il,rilK'lio l1s 2. 11 " . 187 

To,,,1 govcmll\cnl ~ 1 acli"i ti es progl"n lll rC\'CIII ICS 70.606,382 

BllsiIlL'SS_l ypc Ilclivilics: 
Charges rnr ~cn' iccs: 

Airpo rt um. 193 
Enl Cn3i!lIllL~1 1 ClJ lllple.~ 2.9 18.548 
IIcnlth 'nsur.mee Risk 1'001 10,973.699 

Opcrnling I,: mn ls and conlrilKll iolls 1,390.786 
Capi lal I,:mnls nlllJ mnlTibl 'lion, ~ .. "'S.052 

Total busi ncss-lyl'C aClivilies progrmll revenlll.'S S 22..171.278 
TOlal primary gO"cnllncII( progrnlll rcvClllIl'S S 92.977.660 

Nd (e.~pcnseyrevCllue 

GovernmC"nl al nCl ivilics 
llusinas-l)1)C oc livil ies 

TOl all'rilll,~ry gO"cmmclll nel c.'[l.:nse 

s 

s 

(60.96 1.054) 
759.959 

(60.:WI.0'l5) 

, 
, 

, 

, 

, 
, 
, 

Z007 • • 

20.00~.5 49 S 
59.282,I S6 

t.713 "~4 2 
8.7~ ~. 2 1J{) 

18.1 85,968 

~ .'J8S . \81 
11 1.%0.122 

4.219.627 
8.685.343 

12.90<1.970 
r24.86).Cl'12 

6.913.696 
11.43.11 .7'14 

19 1.92 1 

86,231 

8.232.587 

11.7 18."20 
1.290,1.1.' 

.l9.S67,7S2 

2.407.9'19 
3,'114.467 

3.7250475 
10.057.891 
49,n5.673 

(72.091 .. \40 ) 

{2.S47,0791 
(74.93')A I91 

s 

s 

J I~1'I'E ltSON COUNTY, TI~XAS 

C IIANGES IN Nt.:T I'OSITION 
I .. \ S""!" Tt:N FISCA L, YL~I\l tS 

(nl'cnml bll~is ur Ilc{ullnling) 

l!!!!! ~ 

20 .. 'Cl'1.690 H<)~0.36b 

69.170042 1 74 .05'l.7~5 

1, 9~ 1.0S" 1.611.435 
10.104.{)U I 11.10S.SS3 

2 1. 118,467 35 ,()OO,5SU 

U~1.91" 3 715.282 
12/,.'1')'). 177 $ I bO.B2.1J9 I , 
~.902.S22 S ~ . 710.~67 S 
7.64SA62 7.977.002 

('i s ..... 1 YellT 
lUlU 

33.-'·14.39 1 
75,9.\9.112 

1.637,026 
IO.S24.M4 

18.724,938 

3.5S 7.8CJ0 
144.0S7.1J7 1 

5.095.941 
7.889.8'1 1 

1!!.ll 

H 710.m 
76,8 19.20() 

l J IM40 
9.704.323 

13,365,4 10 

.USS.354 _ 

~S 

5,506.746 S 
6.866.7'J2 

I!!ll 

32 .862.570 
81 ,522,130 

I J 15.8 1'} 
17,1~~.07S 

15,552.976 

1.936.302 _ 
ISO,1)47.!!7:! S 

6,618,2'17 S 
10.248.457 

TABLE 2 

ZUlJ 211 14 ~ 

.H.25J.9 18 ~2.9.' J,S89 S '1O . 20JA~4 

85.995,590 82 ,058.3GO 80,0 18,6.' 2 

1J69.1 59 1,41 6,537 1.'I]S,B'l 
10.917.065 10.570.5bS IO . .\b2.,lb l 

17,1 62.873 1~. S59.6S 7 14,076 ,~ J6 

1.762.428 1.6 11 .66 1 I.'m 776 
1 )~ .4b I .O.' ~ .$ I ~~.4~U. 7[)2 I ' 1 7.~ I (l . 2R~ 

7,386.238 S 
9,77 1.707 

6.9~3. 749 
9.760.675 

5.89'1.518 
7.752.545 

12.55\.21\<1 S 12,()87.4b'l.....! 12.')85.832 S 12.373.5311 16.S6670<1 S 17. 157.9-15 S 1 6,7();1.~ 2'1 S 1.'.M706.\ 
1."'.O~ ().461 s 17.\.210.41>0 S 

6.637,669 
10.700.195 

88.452 
92.(J(l'J 

5,76S.7J5 

t4 .050. l lb 
269.3'17 

.17.1>0<,,52.1 s 

3,269.50] S 
3.06<1.9"2 

2.741.002 

'>.075.446 S 

~~ 

8.7011.9-1-1 
10.'1.l4.5.B 

208,036 

370.557 
8.447. 1<)5 

30.927.n86 
937.390 

(,O .OM.74I 

s 

2,'/99,857 .$ 
3.71 6.43.1 

4J,.W7 

8.278.'128 
15.U33.615 ....! 
~ S 

(S8.11'l2.654) 
!J.47S.1I.\8) 

!'J2,368.4'J:!i 

S (1 00.466.250) , 
2,35 1.1 46 

S (9~.1 1 5. I ();1) s 

157.04.\ .80.1 S 151.674 -"2'1 $ 167.SI4.576 S 171.618.978 170.155. 126 S 11>1.151 . .\5 1 

7.611.696 
1).376.938 

10 1.907 

575 .343 

6.328,641 

15.607.W<1 
2 •. B6,SSO 

~ 1.9'10,301) 

2.897.411 

3.684.655 

s 

2 . 1 ~5.7 1 1 

8 . 7~7.777 ...! 
5~ S 

(102. 117.662) 
(<1.258,055) 

1106.375.7171 

s 

, 

8.2 IS.24 I 
9,67'1. 128 

86.010 

'101.929 
4.047.355 

16.49'1.11.\.1 
8,99 1. 187 

'17,'J IS.SS3 

.\.088.6(,6 S 
2.'J4U6 1 

9.076.015 
'),859.550 

7~,OO5 

~(,9.503 

5..'62.121 
IS,24.1,076 
11,938.532 
54 .922 .80] 

3,7 12.S4S 
6 .n4J~O 

1.960,8S0 

, 

s 

100}66 

7.132.893 ..! 
5~ S 

I 1.948. IUS S 

(9 1.382.003) 
(5,240.645 ) 

('XI.I,22.648) 

~$ 

(96.025.070) 
(4,9 1S,596) 

S !100.'I4.\.66(I) 

7.279.674 6.234.887 S 4.697.50.1 
9,234.5.18 10.067.5% 10,602,406 

84.613 66.517 73,1i49 

Vn.612 4 .10.0~2 411 .tlO6 

5.837.681 5,535,713 5AU.l57 
19, 150.82 '1 13.'11 7.01 '1 10.9.\5 .535 
5,222.6] 4 4,287.420 11 7 11.24 1 

47,202.566 S 40,1)3'1. 17 <) '10,9 1.\,'1')7 

3.nS.S20 S 
5.536,308 

026 .. '2'1 
5,564.686 

3.493,616 

3,4450635 

943 .357 231.'118 ~ .'142J 

10,458.485 S 10,322.'128 S 9 .. \82,! 
~.$ 50..161 .607 S .'i0.2')5.~ 

(107.258.467) (1 0.411.523 ) S (1 06.596.79 1) 
(6,699,460) (6.)8 1.'1%) !~.2M.97.\) 

(1 \.1.957.927) S (1I9:79.UI'J) S ( 1I0.861.7M) 
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211 116 1ll!ll..!! 1!!!!A 20M lQ.!J! 20 1L 211 12 ..!.!ill .ill!.:l l..!!.l!! 
Ccncl'lI l Uc,'cuues a nd UIII l'T C lmugcs ill Nel I'osilio .. 

Govcmmculalocl ivilies: 

Ta~cs: 

I'fupcrty ta~es 75,616,097 65,7 19.32'1 no615,S06 75.6 I 6.0n S 75,407,5 II 73,158,156 79.416,OIJ S 8~,036,64'l 84,bI6.5_18 S S~,I22,85.' 

S~k's 1 ~.1 es 31"1,4 ] 0,633 2 1,b54,606 2.',<)f)() ,777 30,4 10,633 21,_",1,5% 20,96 1,453 2J,R64,()75 24,6Q5 ,1 'I4 24 ,06'1.857 23.04 7,2R6 
Alcoholic Ilcvcr~!lc TJ~ 61'1,474 511.',1.'4 506,0'17 6 14,474 575 ,1)28 547,(;05 4lM.'.18~ 475 ,162 ~ 14.38,1 656,678 
I io id Occ!lp~ncy Tn.l 1.2l14,063 973,56'.1 1.0 11.577 1,294.063 S9J,B4 '.181.619 1.064.165 1.015,651 1,150.J8J 1.2'.1 l.i 16 

InVCSlment e~rni!1!!.S 2.735.655 3.373,514 2.871.2S5 SdVIS5 402.735 266.1 18 541.703 281.672 J11.546 468,561 
Miscell~I1CQlIs 9,957 214.078 208.499 29.275 26,M) N, IM 2).206 3),918 30 .. 1)5 2<) .686 
TflIlI$r~·U (4,805,971) 12,086.110) p.762.rSS) p,687.8m p.J30.19<)1 (2.271, 146) 14,18356<1) p.2B,6281 13.470.353) (2.594.41)2) 

TOlall:ovcrnmcolJI acti,'itics 105.87'1,908 90,352. 1 IS 97 357.836 S IO;.II')'!'}5 95..'-'6.'100 93.667 'J(,'J 101.21.'.186 106.316,618 S 107,317.710 S 106.021,28:1 
I lllsiIlCS5-1~1>C ~c,i vilic:s: 

Im'eslmcllt ~amil1l!s 15,356 18,91 5 9,4(,7 2,369 3,D8 S 2,IJ79 935 2(;9 S 550 788 
Misce]] al\c~) ~,S 175.687 145 6.1<)2 49.S34 20,465 7 1,950 49,628 52 ,~57 52.260 

Tr~nsfcrs 4,805,97 1 2,086,110 3.762,155 ~.6S7,S3~ .'.3.10. 191} 2,271.1'16 4. 183.564 .1 ,22.1.628 ~.470.35J 2.594,492 
T" tnl business-type nctivities 4.91}7.01~ , 2.105,025 , -'.771,767 J.6%,39) 3..'8.1,371 S 2.2'14.5'10 S 4.256,44') 3,273525 S 3.523.360 2,647540 
Totnl primary go\'cnllncllt 110.87 1.922 S 1)2.<157. 1'1(1 , 101, 12').61).1 , 108.8 15.588 98.720.271 , ,)5.96~.559 , 105.<169.6.15 , 1{)').S90.I '1J , 11 0.841.070 108.66').828 

Clmnues in Nel I'osil ion 
(iovcmmenl:ll ncl i" itics , ~4,<) 1.'.854 , 18,2.~<),77) S 8"165.182 4,652,1}.\5 (6,780.762) S 2.285.%6 S 5,188.116 (9~1.8491 S (6mUI3) (574.50.1) 
IJI\~ilU:ss- l ypc ~I;\ivil ic:s 5,7S~.<)D !7~2,O54} 295.9~9 6,047,539 (R74.684} (2 ,<)4(} ,OSSI (662.1 47} p A25.'l35) (2.858Mb} ! 1.617;!.'3} 
Totnll'ri mmoy l:~lI'ernlll cnt ~O,670.h'27 17.5 17,72 1 , ~,761.11 1 1l).7UO,'184 (7 ,655.446) (660.0S')) 4.525,'169 (4..'67,78'1) (8.952,44<)) t2,19I,9.l6) 

.. 1I12U07, the Southeast Te.\1IS Go\'cnllllcnl Employee l.lcn.::nls 1'001 Fund was rwl(lssin~'tI rrom nil E'ltt'fJll"i~ FUlld to all l" I~'rn;ll 

Servi~e !'lInd . 

..,. 
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Fiscal 
Year 

2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(accrual basis of accounting) 

Alcoholic Hotel 
Beverage Occupancy 

Property Tax Sales Tax Tax Tax 

$ 61,247,030 $ 20,150,3 58 $ 494,201 $ 894,368 
65,719,324 21,654,606 503,134 973 ,569 
72,615 ,806 23,906,777 506,047 1,011,577 
75,616,097 30,410,633 614,474 1,294,063 
75,407,511 21 ,361,596 575,928 893,234 
73,158,156 20,961,453 547,605 981,619 
79,416,013 23 ,864,675 484,988 1,064,165 
83,036,649 24,695,194 475 ,162 1,015,651 
84,616,538 24,064,857 614,384 1,150,383 
83,122,853 23 ,047,286 656,678 1,29 1,716 

142 

TABLE 3 

Total 

$ 73,420,254 
82,785,957 
88,850,633 
98,040,207 

107,935,267 
98,238,269 
95,648,833 

104,829,841 
110,446,162 
108,118,533 
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w 

General FlInd: 

Reserved 
UnrCSClvcd 
NOllsl>Clldnblc 
Assigned 

Unass igned 
TOla] genera l fu nd 

All olher govcl1nncnl.11 funds: 
Reserved 

Unreserved, reported ill : 
Special revcnue limds 
Capital projcct fuuds 
Debt serv ice Hmds 

Nonspcndable 
Restricted 
C01ll111itte(1 
Assigned 
Unassigned (Defi ci t) 

Total all other govcnUllentaJ limds 

Zf)f)6 20{J7 

$ 1,1 0 1,397 $ 1,196,058 
19,445, I 89 28,724,4 74 

$ 2[),S46,5R6 $ 29,920,532 

S 3,958,995 , 3,996,377 

16,985,952 17 ,623,438 

( 1,6 18) 

826,359 482,9 12 

$ 21,771,306 S 22,10 1, 109 

$ 

JEFFWSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
FUND ni\LANCI~S OF COVlmNMENTAL FUNDS 

LAST TEN FISCAL Y I~ARS 

(Illodiricd accrual ha ~is or accounling) 

Fisca l Y('ar 

ZOIlS ZUllI) 20 10 21111 " 

1, 124,272 $ 1,247,682 $ 1,107,057 

3 I ,)24 ,562 )7,639,200 34 ,899,538 

1,023,855 

3,482,075 

3 1,886,947 

~ 32,44H,XJ4 $ 3X,886,882 ,$ 36,006,595 $ 36,392,877 

$ 7,895,953 $ 10,6 17,541 $ 13,853,081:1 

12,483,025 14,975,902 15,625,403 

( 1,6 18) 

287,948 376,688 186,623 
9, 130 

17,397,567 

5, 150,723 

4,867,06 1 

14 ,832,( 14) 

$ 20,665,308 S 25,970, 13 1 $ 29,665, 114 $ 22,59 1,867 

1\ GAS!) Statemcnt 54 was illlplclIlcntatcd for lisea! year 20 11 which changed the class ilication of ruml balance :U1l0unts, 
Prior ycnr nmounts have not been resl nted lor the implementation ofSlaLclllenL 54. 

TABLE 4 

lli1 2111 3 211 14 ~ 

808,536 1,04 3,407 807. 102 873,260 

2,205,347 4,3 12,676 10 ,082,383 9 ,952,977 

39,034 ,450 41,269,536 36,284,1] 15 37,054,620 

$ 42 .22X,333 $ 46,625,(, I t} ,$ 47 ,264,400 .$ 47 ,880,R57 

58, 197 4 1,047 49,781 56,535 

18, 11 6,476 25,56 1,948 28,846,726 24,613, 120 

3,047,323 1,902,675 2,9 10,885 6,649,085 

8,499,277 2 ,064,2 17 1,697,3[9 1,799,539 

(2,670,874) (787, 1") (2,925,83 1) (4,480,8 15) 

$ 27,050,399 $ 28,782,760 $ 30,587,880 $ 28,628,464 
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TAOLE5 
.IEFn : n SON COUNTY, T1~X ,\S 

CIIANCES IN 11UNIl1I1\ I..ANC I.:5 O il GOVEH. Nr. I i':NTA I. FU NI)S 
LAS r Tl-: N .. ISCA L Yfo:A n S 

lonudifil'tl IIn:"",1 h~ sis ., f III:(u"",i"l::) 

I'i ..... '" Y .. ll r 
~ UU6 l!!!ll Z!l!!!! lJ!l.l.2 2UW lli1 l!ill 1!!.!l ~ l!ill 

ImV I~NUES: 

l 'ropen)'T~~es 61.103.193 65,071.514 71.516,1 9.' 15.'"112,0'"13 75.9'15.0:W 12.95'),364 79,446.316 , 82 ,593.407 , 84 . 262 , 72~ , 8~,850, 758 
Sales Ta.\cs 11.5.\8.927 23.131J09 25.424.401 32319.170 :!U.'O,758 22,490,677 25,41 3.828 2&.186.007 25,829 ,~ 24 24,995.680 
Fees 12.752.383 13.232,594 1.1.8 '14.3 .14 13 .. >72,000 n,247.758 13. 176 .. '3 1 13,056. 182 13, 10 1,871 13.8 11.8 18 14,337,6 1(, 
Licenses 425.438 423.3\3 4 0~,3l!6 ~n.l!56 ~53.002 407,512 '165.720 590, 148 480.386 459, 19!! 
Illl cr"ovcrn"lcntul ."1,0 11 .7 14 1~.')6 2 .1 60 1>1.3 15,347 .lU . ~49.2S6 17,390, 178 23,206,71 0 .'0 ,1 38,180 23,807,603 18,'188,0118 16.66l\,."l6·1 
S" IL'S . I~ cnlal &. ScrvicC5 4, (}b},4S2 5,486.288 '1.1 73.703 3.SSS.920 .l,OD.201 2.8.17.'18.1 .1,8 1<),6.'0 3.369.016 3,05.'-808 4.754,414 
Fincs and porfei lnres 3.5J8.886 .'.008 .1 ')6 2, 18 1.478 2.076.<117 2,19'>.528 2,072.725 2.130.801 2.074.656 1,1)00,630 2, 120,860 
InlcrCSI 2.703.2 10 .t08J.'13S 2.236)57 1,250,787 6<)2, 12<) 273 .171 536,1)<)3 254.207 307.<1 )" 478,763 
rl,lisccllam,oll$ 62.805 L7.539 L7,93b 29,275 2b.O'l5 24 .1 64 25,206 35,<) 18 30.355 2<) .~ 95 

Conlri bulions ~ I\d Ixmmi<ms 10,196 18.968 4,11 6 UIS.190 31.727 '1,0·11 1,4 12,098 4,700 184.819 57,M2 
Tolal Revenues 146,11 0,234 126,4ll,81<) 13>l.t23,25 1 S 162,8')8.594 , 136.4W,)96 137,452.184 15b.444.'J54 152,017533 , 148.349,044 , 146.752,9')0 . 

t:Xrf>:NDlTURES, 
General Govc:rmncnl 15.367.359 , 17,962,946 , 18,587.81)1 , 20.335.453 , 10.853.875 20,474.698 20.252.981 , 21.237.703 , 22,666.968 , 23,786.<127 
J"didlll :mot Law En{oI"CL,ncnt 53,848,<1 33 c.o.795.5S<l 69.726.<138 6'1,656,955 72.502, 150 7.',081.968 79,93'1,077 8~.s6 1.028 80.10 1. 1.13 1\0,546.1136 
Ed"tal'nn and Recreat ion 1,137.019 1.717.102 1.915,987 1,579,264 1.6 14,588 1.21)8.502 1..'04.505 1.36 1.048 1.409.870 1.439.979 
lleahh and Welfare 8,256,283 8.794.712 10.02<1,0 11 10,600,245 10.576.8<13 !J.B8.31 1 10.345.286 10.622.898 10.41 6.839 10.<179,5 18 
Maim""""ee: n{S'n.,,' ''''':S pnd Equip,n"", 43.79'1,01 1 15.850.658 19,851.954 .'6.379.418 17.1~3. 1 5·J 12,5<13.110 12,115,480 11.792,372 12,677.678 12,178,205 
Cllp;taIO"tla), 4,776,.191 3.690,980 2.016.129 <1 ,076.087 7,2 18.<187 17.<1 34,755 11,913.277 6.777,1 18 8,270. 112 12,829,173 
lJebt Services 

-'" l>ri"c~",1 3,890.000 4.045.000 3.510,000 3,!t60.000 ~.760,OOO <I.')H,070 5S.B I.R43 4,344. L69 4,498.094 4,420.000 
-'" Interest and Commission 4.084 .539 31938,978 3.794,062 3.671 ,261 3.538.141 3.530.237 4, 12l025 1.976,429 1,922.6S9 1.695,044 

TOlal E~J1cndilllrcs I.H.159.035 , 116,795,960 129,<126.<172 1'11).'158,683 137.187,143 , 14U4l6S 1 , 11)5,720.47'1 142,672.765 141.96JJ83 14 7,375.682 

Excess (Defici~'lty) of Revenucs 
O"er E.~pc"dil",.t!!I 10.'151 .199 , 9.639.859 4.69C1 .779 , 12,'1."19.9 11 (747,847) (5,391,467) , 1.19,275 .520) 9,344.768 6..'86.261 «(,22.692) 
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~ 
U , 

lll!!..!! M!Ql 
OTlllm FI NANC ING sou nCl~s (USI<:S ): 

Tmllsfcr In S 5,508.::'-37 ~.IO I A~2 
Tr~llsrer OUI ( 10.51 4.208 ) (S.187.B2 ) 
Pro(CCl.Is from Snle Or ('~pil al AssCls 
('~pilal t c:tsc Oblil,::lliom 
Insuran(c l'roceeds 10.000.000 2.150,000 
IS5U~lIccorDt.u 

l'remiul11 on OdJl Issued 
PO}1UC'I1I lu Rdimtl illg 130m. Escrow A~ClH 

TOlal Other Fiuancing SO\ll'CC!l (Uses) '1.994.02') , 6 .•. 8110 

Nel C'lmngt III Fl Ui d Bal all~L'S 15.945.22R '1 .70.'.749 

Ikilt SClVkc As A Pcrcrmlagc of 
No,,,,al'il nll;~pcr>r.l;h,rL'S 6. 1 ~~ 7.,\~. 

J IW"l(ItSON C()UNn ' , TEXAS 
G I'N lmA I. GOVEItN~IENTA I , TA X I{EVENUES IIV SOU IK E 

LAST TI~N FISCA L "MItS 
(lI1!ltlili~I ' accru:!1 hnsi§ of nfcounl;n ~) 

Fiscal Alcohuli c IlntelOCfu )llUiCY 

~ I'rlll't'r ly 'I';u S"lcs TlI ~ nrn"n~c 'I\u T~ .1 

2006 $61.1 03.193 S 20.150.358 ~9..j.20 1 81)'UbS 

2007 65.011.5 14 21.654.606 503.134 973.5b'i 

2008 71,5 16. 193 23.906.777 506.0"1 1.0 11 ,577 
2009 75,9 12,693 30.410MJ 614,474 1.294,063 
2UIO 75,995,020 21.361.596 575.928 89,1,234 
20] I 12,959,364 20.961.453 547.605 '181.6 19 
2012 79,446.3 16 23.864 .675 'IS4,9SS I.OM,I G5 
2UD 82.593,'107 24,695, 1'].1 475 ,1 62 1.0 15.65 I 
20 14 84.262,722 24,064.857 6 14,384 1,150,383 
20 15 ~2,~50.758 23,047.286 656,678 1.291.716 

20UH 

~.147 . 776 

(I 1.1){)9.93 I ) 

157.877 

13.&04.278) 

1.092.50 1 

6.0~~ 

Toilli 

, 82.642, 120 

88.202,823 

96,940,594 
108.23 1,863 
98.825,778 
95,450,041 

] 04.860.144 
108,779,4]4 

110,092..1'(6 
107.846,431\ 

l!!.!!2 ..lli!.!! Mill W1 Z!!.!1 Z!ill ~ 

, I O.~67 . 0(' O 8.49 1.580 2.85 1.000 S &.70I)J70 S &.590.69'1 5..\IO.()4S I Y18. 717 
( D.954.892) { I 1.821.779) (~.M8.7S5) (9.523,951) (9.789,377) (H. lb7.733) (4.0M.677) 

2.1 11.000 
1.751.'157 1.707.363 

2.556.532 1.3 14.011 
5.550.000 47.305.000 1.340.000 

24'1.28) 4.970.522 

15.672 .'172) jl.298. 192l 

11. 131 ..• 00) , 1.84(].7b'l , 1670,(74) 49] '160,') '11 p. 198 .(78) !2.8 15.880l pS8.S97) 

I UIOH .(d l , 1.(NS.'I22 (6.062.44 ] ) IU. 11\5.'12 1 6. 146.0'10 , 3,570.381 (1,381,289) 

5 .. '"" 5.8 ~. 6.M. 32.~. 4.6",. 4 .7". 4 , 6~. 
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Fisca l 

,I EFFE RSON COUNT Y, TEXAS 
ASSESSED VALUE AN D leSTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF T AXAI3L1l l' ROI'ERTY 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEA RS 

Yea," Real I'rol' crly Pel"sonal !'I"ope ,-Iy Less : TO lal Ta xa hlc 

Ended RcsitiClllial Commercial Motor Tax Exempt Assessed 
Scptcmhcr 30 Property Property Vchil'lcs Other Rcal l'ropcrt y Valuc 

2006 $ 5,763,9 19,286 $ 8,244,92 1,075 $ 53,451,4 10 $ 3,377,709,770 $ 3,069,ll6,20 1 $ 14,370,665,340 

2007 5.433,538,560 10,360,4 70,535 54,889,880 3,872,073,860 3, 180,724,674 16,540,248, 16 1 

2008 6,729, 159, I 73 I 1,409,878,64 1 62,781, 190 4, I 96,575 ,0 I 5 3,824, 188,028 18,574,205,99 I 
2009 7,7 17,5 17,403 12,524,372,020 63 ,467,llO 4,907,849,539 4.4 16,709,776 20,796,496,5 16 
20 10 7,848,755, 180 11,452,048,660 59,394,290 4,831,378,530 3,053,53 1,674 2 1, 138,044,986 
201 I 8,042,282,874 12, I 28,893,349 47,961 ,490 4,820,689, 110 2,904,36 1, 132 22, I 35,465,69 1 
2012 7,989,089, 195 12,5 10,887,7 10 51, 129,790 5,42 1, 135,950 2,8 19, I 85,882 23, 153,056,763 
2013 7,912, 100,439 14,408,052,759 62,242,770 6,068,922,220 3, 198,328,907 25,252,989,28 I 
201 4 7,974,453,458 17,857,9 17,342 66,248,570 6,675,937, 170 6,667,443 ,764 25,907, 112,776 
2015 8,08 1,673,579 16,70 1,727,909 68,532,930 6,926,838, 120 6,385, 170,07 1 25,393,602,467 

Source: Jerrerson Count y Appmisal District 

Note: Property ill l1 1c county is reassessed annually. The county assesses propet1y nt 100% of actual va lue for all types of rea l and personal property. 
However, eaeh homestead residential propet1y can only increase by a maXitlllttll of 10% in any given ycar. EstimMed actual vnlue is cn1cu lnted by 
ndd ing back thc loss to the limit on homestead residcntial properti es to thc tota l taxnblc assessed vnluc. Tax rates nrc per $100 of <l ssessed valuc. 

(al Incl ud es !<lx-exempt properly. 

TA BLE 6 

Total Estinm tcd Assessed 
Oir"cc ( Ac tu al Vu lll e (a) as a 

Tax Taxable I'crccnt agc of 
Rate Value Act ual Value 

$ 0.425 $ 14,455,989,770 X2.S9% 
0.400 16,560,749,332 83.98% 
0.390 18,879,604,039 84.29% 
0.365 21 ,244,03 1,039 84.26% 
0.365 2 1,337,887,3 16 88.20% 

0.365 22,248,999,6 10 8!US5% 
0.365 23, 199,553,509 gQ.32% 

0.365 25,274,550,28 1 88.83% 
0.365 25,9 14,4 10,662 79.55% 

0.365 25,404,5 15,574 79.94% 
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Debt 
Fisenl Opcnlting: Service 
Year Rate Rate 

2006 $ 0.375 $ 0.050 $ 
2007 0.355 0.045 
2008 0.353 0.037 
2009 0.33 1 0.034 

20 10 0.330 0.035 
20 11 0.331 0.034 
20 12 0.336 0.029 
20 13 0.340 0.025 
20 14 0.34 1 0.024 
20 15 0.340 0.025 

Source: Je fferson Coun ty Tax Assessor Collec tor 

.JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
PROPERTY T~,,( RATES 

DIn ECT AND OVERLAPI'ING (aJ GOVERNMENTS 
LAST T EN FISCAL YEARS 

Overlapping Rates 
C ities School Oist.-icts 

Total Debt Total Debt 
COllnty Operating Serv ice C ity Opcnlting Service 

Rate Rate Rate Rate Rate Rate 

0.425 $ 0.406 $ 0.27 1 $ 0.677 $ 1.491 $ 0.136 
0.400 0.420 0.232 0.652 1.3 11 0. 11 9 
0.390 0.4 19 0.187 0.606 1.077 0. 144 
0.365 0.385 0.202 0.587 1.058 0. 186 

0.365 0.394 0. 199 0.593 1.073 0.220 
0.365 0.394 0. 197 0.59 1 1.058 0.226 
0.365 0.401 0. 185 0.586 1.059 0.230 
0.365 0.4 12 0. 182 0.594 1.059 0.2 17 
0.365 0.4 19 0. 189 0.608 1.058 0.235 
0.365 0.430 0. 186 0.6 16 1.059 0.244 

Total 
School Special 

Rate Districts 

$ 1.627 $ 0.216 
1.430 0.216 
1.22 1 0.205 
1.244 0.217 
1.293 0.226 
1.284 0. 192 
1.289 0. 193 
1.276 0. 194 
1.293 0. 193 
1.303 0.203 

(a) Overlapping rntcs arc those o f 10C:ll governmen ts that app ly (0 properly lllVlll:r s wit hin Je fferso n Coun ty. Not a ll ovcrluppin g rates IIpply 10 a ll .l clTc rson Coullty properly l1\VllI.! rs. 

(e.g. , the rates for special dis tricts app ly ouly 10 the proportion or the Cou llty's properly owners whose property is iocn lcd within the g<.."ograp hic boundari es of the speci al dis trict ) 

Note: Ratcs arc per $ 100 or taxable va lue. Rates fo r overlapping entitics are an average In.,, rate of all cit ies (6). school districts (7), an(1 spl.""C iai di strit.:IS (13) IOCll lcd wi thin Jefferson Coun ty. 
r or fisca l yell!" 20 14, lola I ra tes rnnged betweell .2 158 and .7920 for cil ies. 1.1 2 :lIlt! 1.434 for school dis tricts. alltl .0286 nnd .5734 for special (Iis lricls. 

TABLE 7 

Total Direc t 
& 

Overlapping 
Rates 

$ 2.945 
2.698 
2.422 
2.4 13 
2.477 
2.432 
2.433 
2.429 
2.459 
2.487 
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Taxpayers 

Motiva Refinery 

ExxonMobil Oil Corporation 
Premcor Refining Group Inc 
Total Petrochemicals USA 

Huntsman Petrochemical Corp 
Chevron Phill ips Chemical Co 

SunoeD Partners Mktg & Teml LP 
BASF-Atofina Joint Venture 

Entergy Texas lnc. 
Enterprise Texas Pipeline LP 
Goodyear Tire & Rubber Co. 
Port Arthur Coker Company LP 

E I Dupont De Nemours 

TOTAL 

$ 

JEffERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
PRlNCIPAL T AXP AYERS 

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO 

2015 
Percentage of 

Taxable Total Taxable 
Assessed Assessed 

Value (b) Rank Yalue 

5,105,290,380 1 20 .1 0% $ 
2,373,63 7,534 2 9.35% 
1,070,844,203 3 4.22% 

813,675,000 4 3.20% 
396,122,490 5 1.56% 
370,139,650 6 1.46% 
349,630,290 7 1.38% 
326,059,730 8 1.28% 
297,924,820 9 1.17% 
289,65 1,870 10 1.14% 

Taxable 

Assessed 
Va lue (b) 

851,955,020 
1,834 ,347, 120 

486,682,210 
398,391,950 

781,330,160 
292,795,180 

241,884,430 

202,105,580 
147,417,950 
134,039,950 

$11,392,975,967 44.86% $5,370,949,550 

Source: Jefferson County Appraisa l D istrict. 

TABLE 8 

2006 
Percentage of 
Total Taxable 

Assessed 

Rank Value 

2 5.93% 
12.76% 

4 3.39% 
5 2.77% 
3 5.44% 

6 2.04% 

7 1.68% 

8 1.41% 

9 1.03% 
10 0.93% 

37.38% 

(b) Amounts shown for these taxpayers do not include assessed values attributable to certain subsid iari es and affiliates \vhich 
are not grouped on the tax roll wi th the taxpayers shown. 
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Fiscal Year 
Ended 

Septembu 30 
2006 
2007 
2008 ..,. 
2009 '-0 

20 10 
20 11 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Collected within the Fiscal 
Year of the Levy 

Total Tax Collections in 
Levy for Percentage Subsequent 

Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Years 
$ 60,781,088 $ 59,849,203 98.47'% $ 687,188 

64,5 19,705 63,544,3 12 98.49% 762,482 
70,67 1,952 69,387,969 98 .18% 1,030,560 
74,722,657 73,704, 158 98.64% 727,510 
74,4 10,829 73,446, 110 98.70% 626,148 
79, 156,074 77,966,579 98.50% 780,482 
83,545,215 82,38 1,734 98.61 % 685,052 
89,36 1,867 88,220, 195 98 .72% 560,942 
92,542,074 91,329,673 98.69% 446,025 
9 1,2 17,652 89,902, 19 1 98.56% 

TABLE 9 

Total Collections to Date 

Percentage 
Amount of Levy 

$ 60,536,39 1 99.60% 
64,306,794 99.67% 
70,41 8,529 99.64% 
74,43 1,668 99.61 % 
74,072,258 99.54% 
78,747,061 99.48% 
83,066,786 99.43% 
88,781, 137 99.35% 
91,775,698 99.1 7% 
89,902,19 1 98.56% 
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General 

Fiscal Obligation 
Year Bonds 

2006 $ 79,392,478 
2007 75,385,127 
2008 71 ,912,777 
2009 68,290,426 
2010 64,553,045 

201 1 60,664,579 
2012 56,704,005 
2013 52,482,467 
2014 49,281,192 
2015 44,444,323 

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 

RATIO OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Notes Capital Total Primary 
Payable Leascs Govcrnmcnt 

$ 2,648,987 $ 101,959 $ 82,143,424 
2,332,066 52,224 77,769,417 
2,005,529 73 ,918,306 
1,669,086 69,959,512 
1,322,435 1,144,977 67,020,457 

965,267 585,075 62,214,921 
597,263 57,301 ,268 
218,094 52,700,561 

49,281,192 
1,707,363 46,151 ,686 

Percentage of 

Personal 
Incomc (a) 

1.20% 

1.09% 

0.96% 
0.85% 
0.74% 

0.66% 

0.59% 
0.55% 
0.49% 
0.46% 

Note: Details regarding the County's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financia l statements. 

TABLE 10 

Per Capita (a) 

$ 33 2 
$ 319 
$ 305 
$ 289 

$ 266 

$ 247 

$ 227 
$ 209 
$ 195 
$ 183 

(a) See the Schedule of Demographic and Economics Statistics in Table 14 for personal income and population datu. 
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TABLE II 

Fiscal 

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
RATIO OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Percentage of 
Estimated 

Less: Actual 
General Amounts Taxable 

Obligation Available in Value (a) 

Year Bonds Debt Fund Total of Property PCI' Capita (b) 

2006 $ 79,392,478 $ 337,083 $ 79,055,395 0.55% $ 3 19 

2007 75,385,127 318,2 12 75,066,9 15 0.45% 308 

2008 71,912,777 76,619 71 ,836, 158 0.38% 297 

2009 68,290,426 176,339 68, 114,087 0.32% 28 1 

2010 64,553,045 330,833 64,222,2 12 0.30% 255 

20 11 60,664,579 354,24 1 60,3 10,338 0.27% 239 

2012 56,704,005 7 16,106 55,987,899 0.24% 22 1 

2013 52,482,467 90 1,2 17 5 1,58 1,250 0.20% 205 

20 14 49,281,192 1,0 10,24 1 48,270,951 0.19% 19 1 

2015 44,444,323 1,096,05 1 43 ,348,272 0.17% 172 

Note: Details regarding the County's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 

(a) See the Schedule of Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property in Table 6 for 

property va lue data. 
(b) See the Sched ule of Demographic and Economics Statistics in Table 14 for population data. 
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TABLE 11 

JEFFERSON COUI\TY, TEXAS 

DIRECT AND OVERLAPP[\'G GOVERt'\"MENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT 

AS OF SEPTElHB ER 30, 2015 

Estimated 

Percentage 

Applicable 

Governm ental Unit Debt Outstanding (3) 

JEFFERSON COUNTY DIRECT DEBT 

Total Direct Debt 

S44,444,313 100.0% 

OVERLAPPING DEBT REP AID WITH PROPERTY TAXES: 

CITIES: 

BEAUMONT 

BEVIL OAKS 

GROVES 

NEDERLAND 
PORT ARTHUR 

PORT NECHES 

TAYLOR LANDING 

SCHOOL DISTRICTS: 

BEAUMONT 

HAMSHIRE FAhTNETT 

HARDIN JEFFERSON 

NEDERLAND 

PORT ARTHVR 

PORT NECHES 

SABINE PASS 

PORT DISTRICTS: 

BEAUMONT 

PORT ARTHUR 

SABtNE PASS 
DRAINAGE DISTRICTS: 

DRAINAGE DISTRICTS #3 
DRAINAGE DISTRlCTS #6 

DRAlNAGE DISTRICTS #7 

NAVIGATION DISTRICTS: 

JEFFERSON COUNTY 

MUNICIPAL UTIIJlY DISTRiCTS: 

NORTH'lVEST FOREST 

WATER DISTRICTS: 

\V A TER DISTRICT # 10 
EMERGENCY SERVICE DISTRiCT S: 

ElvlERGENCY SERVICE DISTRICT #1 
EMERGENCY SERVICE DISTRICT #1 

EMERGENCY SERVICE DISTRICT #3 
CONSERVATION DISTRiCTS: 

TRlI\lJTY BAY 

[/v\PROVEMENT DlSTRleT: 

CARDINAL MEADO \VS 

Total Overlapp ing Debt 
TOTAL DlRECT At' D OVERLAPPING DEBT 

117,504,350 

1,930,000 

3,1.30,000 

12,345,000 

6 1,645,000 

11,610,000 

379,005,000 

14,230,000 

31,185,230 

32,170,000 

147,535,000 

106,161.,532 
18,126,175 

4,190,000 

29,120,000 

905,000 

1,313,141. 

15,481 ,000 

5,065 ,000 

Sources: Debt outstanding data was pro\ided by each of the taxing entities. 

100.0% 

100.0% 

100.0% 

100.0% 

100.0% 

100.0% 

100.0% 

100.0% 

100.0% 

52.7% 

100.0% 

100.0% 

100.0% 

100.0% 

100.0% 

100.0% 

100.0% 

100.0% 

100.0% 

100.0% 

100.0% 

100.0% 

100.0% 

100.0% 

100.0% 

100.0% 

100.0% 

100.0% 

Estimated Share of 

Overlapping Debt 

S44,444.323 

$44,444,323 

1.17,504,350 

1,930,000 

3,230,000 

11,345,000 

61,645,000 

11,610,000 

379,005,000 
24,230,000 

16,434,6 16 

31.,170,000 

247,535,000 

106,262,531 

28 , 126, 175 

4,190,000 

29,120,000 

905,000 

1,323,1 42 

15,481,000 

5,065,000 

$1,]99,11 i,S15 

$ 1,243,556.138 

Note: Overlapping govemments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the 

county. This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping govemments that is 

borne by the residents and businesses of Jefferson Coumy. This process recognizes that, when considering 

the County's ability to issue and repay long-tenn debt, the entire debt burden borne by the residents and 

businesses should be taken into account. However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident, and 

therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlapping go\·emment. 

(a) The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxabl e assessed property values. Applicable 

percentages were estimated by determining the portion of taxing entity that is within the County's boundaries 

and dividing it by tbe taxing emity's 100ai taxable assessed \·alue. 
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Deht lim il 

Tota l net debt applicable to limit 

Leg.,1 debl margin 

Tota l net debt applieahle to the 
1i1l1 i1 l1s IlI:lCrcenl<lge of deb I 
lim it 

ZIH)5 

.$ 3,G39,3K2 

R2,RRS 

S 3,556.494 

2.28% 

20(J6 21107 

.$ 3,502,110 $ 3,1)48,502 

79,203 75, 177 

$ 3,423.007 S 3,873,325 

2.26% 1. 90% 

J I~ I'FEHSON COUNTY, 'I'EXAS 
LEGAL !)1m'!' MAnGIN INFonMATION 

L /\ STTEN FISCAL YEAHS 

(:III1I1UII1 S ex pressed ill Ihllus:lIl1l s) 

Fisca l Ycar 
200M l lJf)Q 21110 

.$ 4,534,760 $ 5,060,472 $ 4,825,20 I 

7 1,90S 68, 149 64.234 

$ 4,462.852 S 4,992,323 $ 4,760,967 

1.59% 1.35% 1.33% 

TAI3LE 13 

Z(l il ZII IZ 1111 3 1()14 20 15 

.$ 5,042,794 $ 5, 124,994 $ 5,580,038 $ 6,458,093 .$ 6, 195,850 

60,4 16 60,4 16 48,404 44.!.070 39,564 

$ 4,9R2,J78 .$ 5.064,578 .$ 5.53 1,634 $ (),414.023 $ 6, 156,2M6 

1.20% 1.18% 0.87% 0.68% 0.64% 

Lcga ll)chtl\'largi n Calculation ror Fiscal Ycar 2015 

Assessed Va lue or Real PrOI)erty 

Debt limit (25% o r :lssesscd va lue or real prollCrty) 
Debl applicable to li mit: 

Gcnem! obligat ion bOllds 
Less: Amollnt set as ide lo r re]l:lyment 

o f gcneml obli gation debt 
Tot:ll nct debt applicable to limi t 

Legal (Iebl margin 

Note: Under Article III , Section 52 o rthe SHlie Const itut ion . Jcllerson County's outstand ing gcncml oblignt ion debt shou ld not exceed 25% of 
asscssc...'(1 va hl:ll ion o rreal property. By law, the general obl igalion debl subject 10 the limilalion nlay be onsel by amounl S sct aside lo r I'cpayi ng 
gencra l obligat ion bonds. 

S 24,783,40 1 

6, 195,850 

40,660 

1,096 
$ 39,564 
.'$ 6, 156,286 
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Fiscal 

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Personal 

Income 
(amounts Per Capita School 

expressed in Personal Median Enrollment 
Year Population (a) thousands) Income (b) Age (a) (a) 

2006 247,57 1 $ 6,854,993 $ 27,689 36.5 62,002 
2007 243,9 14 $ 7,152,534 $ 29,324 36.4 59,776 
2008 241,975 $ 7,684, 158 $ 31,756 36.7 62,290 
2009 242, 142 $ 8, 183, 189 $ 33 ,795 36.5 6 1,72 1 
20 10 252,273 $ 9,099,739 $ 36,07 1 35 .6 62,433 
20 11 252,273 $ 9,369, 167 $ 37,139 36.0 63,371 
20 12 252,802 $ 9,786,471 $ 38,7 12 35.9 63,371 
2013 251 ,8 13 $ 9,658,79 1 $ 38,357 36.0 63 ,433 
2014 252,358 $ 10,083,72 1 $ 39,958 35.9 63 ,350 
2015 252,235 $ 9,971 ,354 $ 39,532 35.9 61,768 

Data sources 

(a) Bureau of Census 
(b) Texas Workforce Commission 

TABLE 14 

Unemployment 
Rate (b) 

6.6% 
5.7% 
7.3% 

10.7% 
10.6% 
11.7% 
10.2% 
10.1 % 
7.8% 
6.6% 
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Employer 

Siale of Texas 
Beaumont ISO 
Ex;"onMobil Oil Corporation 
Christus Health Southeast Texas 
Memorial Hem1ann Baptist Hospital 
Motiva Enterprises 
Pan Anhur ISD 
City of Beaumont 
Jefferson County 
Valero 
U S Postal Encoding 
E.I. DuPont Sabine River Works 

TOTAL 

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
PRI NCIPAL EMPLOYERS 

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO 

2015 

Percentage of 
Tota l Coun ty 

Employees Rank Employment 

4,229 4.08% 
2,672 2 2.58% 
2,000 3 1.93% 
1,991 4 1.92% 
1,553 5 1.50% 
1,540 6 1,49% 
1,263 7 1.22% 
1,235 8 1.1 9% 
1,182 9 1.14% 

845 10 0.82% 

18.510 17.87% 

Source: Employment numbers provided by each entity 
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TABLE 15 

2006 

Percentage of 
Total Count)' 

Employees Rank Employment 

4,372 I 4.21 % 
2,890 3 2.78% 
2, 150 4 2.07% 
3,003 2 2.89% 
1,556 6 1.50% 

1,235 8 
1,283 7 1.23% 
1,147 9 

1,081 10 1.04% 
1,686 5 1.62% 

20,403 17.34% 
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TABLE 16 
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 

FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT COUNTY EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Full-time Equivalent Employees as of September 30 

Function 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 ----- ----- ----- ---------

General Government 169 176 171 180 170 166 164 166 165 165 
Judicial & Law Enforcement 

Deputies 114 122 124 131 134 131 134 138 138 143 
Detention Officers 222 239 221 240 242 239 238 24 1 238 237 

Others 439 435 436 44 1 444 440 442 436 443 440 
Education & Recreation 14 17 18 18 20 14 15 15 15 15 
Health & Welfare 64 55 56 63 63 59 60 60 60 60 
Maintenance - Equipment & 

Structures 

Road & Bridges 59 71 70 69 68 67 66 64 64 60 
Engineering 10 9 10 10 9 10 10 10 10 10 
Maintenance 31 30 27 30 29 28 28 30 27 28 

Jack Brooks Regional Airport 25 23 26 23 25 25 23 24 25 24 
Ford Park 125 101 79 22 23 19 20 23 21 20 

----- ---- ----- ---------

TOTAL 1,272 1,278 1,238 1,227 1,227 1, 198 1,200 1,207 1,206 1,202 

Sources: County and Ford Park payroll records 
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TAOLE 17 

JEFFERSON COU NTY, TEXAS 
OPERATING INDI CATORS UY I'lJNc n ON 

LAST T I~ N FISCAL YEARS 

FISCAL YEA R 

Fun rl io ll 2U06 20U7 2111UI 2009 20 10 20 11 20 12 20 13 211 14 2015 

Jud icial & I...aw Enforcement 
Courls 

Number o f Indigent Cases I Icard l,mn 2,839 2,984 2,945 2,945 2,490 2,4 [3 3,249 3,)92 3,727 
Number of.lusl il.:c of Pence Cases 47.627 5 1,416 50,997 43,326 43,488 44,642 48,363 43,205 4 1,359 33,7 17 

Sheriff 

NumDcr o f An"Csls 6, 147 6,423 6,543 6.404 6,573 6,099 6.023 5,898 5,5 17 5,730 
Number ofC ilalions 1,203 1,242 2.300 1, 11 2 1,043 1,24 1 I,ORI 9 15 1,558 1.615 

Jail 
Average Da ily Population o f lnlJ1(l ICS 959 1,171 986 899 910 926 HIS 767 855 830 

Constables 

NUlllbc r ofPn pcrs Scrvcli 2 1,209 19,874 15,847 15,954 16,967 16,860 15,344 15,472 17,348 18,276 
Ellucal ion & Rccrcnl ion 

Library 
Number ofl1alron Visils (1, 129 5,995 6,300 4,002 1,536 nJa A lila I"- n/a " n/a A Il /n 1\ 

!!callh & We!I:lre 
en l lenllh & Wcllh rc 
--J 

Numocr o r Pnticll (s Seen in Clillic 7,363 8. 111 8,3 10 9,375 11 .53 1 11 ,968 11.644 7,433 11 ,3 14 10,508 
Mosqu ito Control 

Number o r Acrcngc Spmyed 2,613.632 1,386.752 1,393.743 2.175,872 1,070.464 HIH.972 U 2H. 128 700,672 1.048.256 563,520 
Mainh:n;mcc - Equipmen t & SLruct ures 

Rond & Bridge 

ROlle! Miles Maintained 368 36~ J70 370 370 370 369 370 J70 369 
Airport 

Numbe r of Airc rnfl O pcmti olls 6 1,856 55,350 32,273 27,89 1 26,332 22,602 22,5 15 20,35 1 19, 109 15,462 
Numher o f Enplnllcd 25,687 25,650 22,126 22,174 17,957 I &.Q98 5,666 24,669 36,605 34,879 
Nu mber o f ])cplnllcd 26,2 19 26, 11 7 22,387 2 1,588 17,997 18,207 5,328 24,351 35,340 34,5 17 

I lealth InSlimllcc Risk Pool 
Number of Pal1icipmlts in Plnn 1,389 1,429 1,490 1,541 1.568 1,550 1,58 1 1,612 1,807 1,652 

EIll el1n inlllcnt Complex 

Number o f Events 199 160 22 1 183 19& 188 185 176 174 170 
Total Attendancc 248,639 6 17.246 2~0,0 1 2 658,337 647 ,207 629, 123 7 12,688 668,7 18 650,089 303,562 

Sources: Various coun ty depal111lcnls 
Note: Indica tors arc nol aVlIilable for the gencmi govcllIllIcnt funct ions. 

1\ Library was closed 12/3\110. 
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T ABLE IX 
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 

CA PITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTI ON 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEA RS 

FISCAL YEA R 
Function 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 21111 201 2 2013 201 4 2015 

Judicial & Law Enforcement 
SherifT 

Pi;ltrol Units 92 109 11 9 116 120 122 122 126 12 1 123 
Aviation Units 3 2 3 3 3 3 4 4 3 3 
M,lrinc Units 3 3 4 9 9 I I II I I I I II 

Jnil 
Donns 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 
Bcd Capacity 1,268 1,268 1,268 1,263 1,268 1,26R 1,26X 1,268 1,268 1,26X 

Constables 
Patrol Units 29 29 30 31 32 27 24 29 32 28 

Education & RecrC<ltion 

Library Holdings (ic books, audio, video) 45,378 44,28 1 46,104 35,549 36 ,038 n/a " n/a " n/a A n/n 1\ ilIa " 
~ Health & We1rnrc 
V> 
00 Mosqu ito Contro1 

Mosquito Spray Trucks 8 8 X 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 
Weed Control Trucks 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 
Aviation Units 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 

Maintenance - Equipment & Structures 
Road (miles) 368 368 370 3711 370 370 369 370 370 3()9 
Bridges 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 

Airport 

Run ways ( Iincar reel) 11 ,820 11,820 11,820 11 ,820 11,820 11 ,820 11 ,820 11 ,820 11 ,820 11 .820 
T-Hl.Ingar & Open Span I-Itlllgars (square feet) 138.706 154,376 144,276 123,076 123,076 150,470 150,470 150,470 150,470 150,470 
Office Space (sqU:lfC 11.'C1) 15,055 15,535 14,439 14,426 14,426 18,885 18,885 43,850 43,850 43,850 

Entcrt" inmcnl COInplcx 
Number of venu l;.'S 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 
Soflball Fields 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 
Exhibit Floor Sp.ICC (square feet) 142,000 142,000 142,000 142,000 142,000 142,000 142,000 142,000 142,000 142.000 
Seat ing CapClcily 23,500 23,500 23,500 23,500 23,500 23,500 23,500 23,500 23,500 23,500 

Sources: Various county departments 
Note: Indicators Clre 11 0t ava ilable for the general government function. 

A Library was closed 12/3 1/ 10. 
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To the Honorable County Judge and 

 Commissioners Court 

Jefferson County, Texas 

 

 

 We have audited the financial statements of Jefferson County, Texas as of and for the year 

ended September 30, 2015, and have issued our report thereon dated March 17, 2016. Professional 

standards require that we advise you of the following matters relating to our audit. 

 

 

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit 

 

 As communicated in our engagement letter dated June 30, 2015, our responsibility, as described 

by professional standards, is to form and express opinions about whether the financial statements that 

have been prepared by management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in 

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of 

the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your respective responsibilities. 

 

 Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to 

obtain reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 

material misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes consideration of internal control over 

financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 

but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control 

over financial reporting. Accordingly, as part of our audit, we considered the internal control of 

Jefferson County, Texas solely for the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide 

any assurance concerning such internal control. 

 

 We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in 

our professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting 

process. However, we are not required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters 

to communicate to you.  

 

 

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit  

 

 We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously 

communicated to you. 
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Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence 

 

 The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, our firm, and our network firms have 

complied with all relevant ethical requirements regarding independence.  

 

 We will assist in preparing the schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards, and related 

notes to the financial statements of Jefferson County, Texas in conformity with U.S. generally accepted 

accounting principles and OMB Circular A-133 and the State of Texas Uniform Grant Management 

Standards based on information provided by you. These nonaudit services do not constitute an audit 

under Government Auditing Standards and such services will not be conducted in accordance with 

Government Auditing Services.  

 

 You agree to assume all management responsibilities relating to the financial statements, 

schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards, related notes, and any other nonaudit services we 

provide. You will be required to acknowledge in the management representation letter our assistance 

with preparation of the financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards, and 

related notes and that you have reviewed and approved the financial statements, schedule of 

expenditures of federal and state awards, and related notes prior to their issuance and have accepted 

responsibility for them. Further, you agree to oversee the nonaudit services by designating an 

individual, preferable from senior management, with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate 

the adequacy and results of those services; and accept responsibility for them. 

 

 

Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices 

 

Significant Accounting Policies 

 

 Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A 

summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by Jefferson County, Texas is included in Note 

1 to the financial statements. As described in the notes to the financial statements, during the year, 

Jefferson County, Texas changed its method of accounting for pension liabilities by adopting 

Governmental Accounting Standards (GASB) Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting 

for Pensions—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 and Governmental Accounting Standards 

(GASB) Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement 

Date—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68. Accordingly, the cumulative effect of the accounting 

change as of the beginning of the year has been reported in the Statement of Activities. No matters have 

come to our attention that would require us, under professional standards, to inform you about (1) the 

methods used to account for significant unusual transactions and (2) the effect of significant accounting 

policies in controversial or emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or 

consensus. 

 

Significant Accounting Estimates 

 

 Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management 

and are based on management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge 

and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting 

estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because 

of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ markedly from management’s current 

judgments. 
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 Management’s estimate of the allowance for uncollectible property taxes is based on a historical 

collection rate of outstanding property taxes at September 30, 2015. We evaluated the key factors and 

assumptions used to develop the allowance for uncollectible property taxes in determining that it is 

reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.  

 

 Management’s estimate of the allowance for uncollectible court fines and fees receivable is 

based on a historical collection rate of outstanding court fines and fees at September 30, 2015. We 

evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the allowance for uncollectible court fines in 

determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

 

 Management’s estimate of the accumulated depreciation is based on the related estimated useful 

lives of capital assets. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop these estimates in 

determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.  

 

 Management’s estimate of the annual OPEB cost and net OPEB obligation is based on 

economic and demographic assumptions related to future claims/premiums paid on behalf of retirees. 

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the annual OPEB cost and net OPEB 

obligation in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

 

 Management’s estimate of the net pension liability is based on actuarial assumptions which are 

determined by the demographics of the plan and future projections that the actuarial makes based on 

historical information of the plan and the investment market. We evaluated the key factors and 

assumptions used to develop the net pension liability and determined that it is reasonable in relation to 

the basic financial statements taken as a whole and in relation to the applicable opinion units. 

 

Financial Statement Disclosures  

 

 Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly 

sensitive because of their significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures 

affecting Jefferson County, Texas’ financial statements relate to the TCDRS pension liability. The 

disclosures in the financial statements are neutral, consistent and clear. 

 

 

Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit 

 

 We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the 

performance of the audit. 

 

 

Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements  

 

 For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known 

and likely misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and 

communicate them to the appropriate level of management. None of the misstatements identified by us 

as a result of our audit procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or in 

the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole or applicable opinion units. 
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Disagreements with Management 

 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a 

matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or 

auditing matter, which could be significant to Jefferson County, Texas’ financial statements or the 

auditors’ report. No such disagreements arose during the course of the audit. 

 

 

Representations Requested from Management 

 

We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in the 

attached letter dated March 17, 2016.  

 

 

Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants 

 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 

accounting matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations 

with other accountants regarding auditing and accounting matters. 

 

 

Other Significant Matters, Findings, or Issues 

 

In the normal course of our professional association with Jefferson County, Texas, we generally 

discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, 

operating and regulatory conditions affecting the entity, and operational plans and strategies that may 

affect the risks of material misstatement. None of the matters discussed resulted in a condition to our 

retention as Jefferson County, Texas’ auditors. 

 

Significant Forthcoming Accounting Standards 

 

Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions 

 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 75 (“GASB 75”), Accounting and 

Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, is effective for periods beginning 

after June 15, 2017.  The primary objective of GASB 75 is to improve accounting and financial 

reporting by state and local governments for postemployment benefits other than pensions (other 

postemployment benefits or “OPEB”). It also improves information provided by state and local 

governmental employers about financial support for OPEB that is provided by other entities. 

This Statement replaces the requirements of Statements No. 45, Accounting and Financial 

Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, as amended, and No. 57, 

OPEB Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans, for OPEB.  

These new standards relate only to the accounting and reporting of OPEB plans within the 

GAAP based financial statements of governmental entities. They do not establish requirements as to the 

actual funding of these benefits. These decisions are left to management and the governing body. 
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This Statement may have a material impact on recorded OPEB liabilities compared to 

application of current standards. Your processes should be updated to incorporate the new information 

requirements and gather information now to determine the future impacts on financial reporting. 

 

Restriction on Use 

 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Honorable County Judge, 

Commissioners’ Court, and management of the County and is not intended to be, and should not be, 

used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

 
 

Waco, Texas 

March 17, 2016 
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  PGM: GMCOMMV2                       DATE                                PAGE:   1
                                    03-28-2016
            NAME                                     AMOUNT     CHECK NO.     TOTAL

JURY FUND

TRI-CITY COFFEE SERVICE                                56.70     418905
                                                                            56.70**
ROAD & BRIDGE PCT.#1

CARQUEST AUTO PARTS # 96                               19.02     418848
MUNRO'S                                                28.65     418882
SAM'S WESTERN WEAR, INC.                               87.96     418892
AT&T                                                   63.42     418897
VULCAN MATERIALS CO.                               67,190.72     418907
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION RESOURCES                      .03     418919
ROSS RIDGE SAND COMPANY LP                            105.60     418960
                                                                        67,495.40**
ROAD & BRIDGE PCT. # 3

ENTERGY                                               210.15     418865
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION RESOURCES                      .38     418919
                                                                           210.53**
ROAD & BRIDGE PCT.#4

SPIDLE & SPIDLE                                     2,225.20     418832
BASE SEAL                                          40,144.00     418841
COASTAL WELDING SUPPLY                                 46.50     418855
M&D SUPPLY                                             14.73     418876
MUNRO'S                                                64.02     418882
SANITARY SUPPLY, INC.                                 108.75     418893
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                            4.16     418931
J&E WELDING INC                                       520.00     418984
ASCO                                                1,038.84     418991
NATIONAL PEN CO LLC                                    58.18     418996
SOUTHEAST TEXAS PARTS AND EQUIPMENT                    72.90     419004
PETROLEUM MATERIALS LLC                               618.68     419007
A-1 MAIDA FENCE COMPANY                               105.00     419010
                                                                        45,020.96**
ENGINEERING FUND

TRI-CITY COFFEE SERVICE                                27.80     418905
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                            5.26     418931
                                                                            33.06**
GENERAL FUND

TAX OFFICE

GUARDIAN FORCE                                        153.00     418829
ACE IMAGEWEAR                                          21.35     418895
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION RESOURCES                      .21     418919
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                          973.49     418931
COASTAL BUSINESS FORMS                              2,265.36     418992
                                                                         3,413.41*
COUNTY HUMAN RESOURCES

BEAUMONT FAMILY PRACTICE ASSOC.                       175.00     418842
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                            2.50     418931
                                                                           177.50*
AUDITOR'S OFFICE

UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                            2.91     418931
PCM-G                                               3,285.00     418967
                                                                         3,287.91*
COUNTY CLERK

OFFICE DEPOT                                          170.96     418884
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                          238.53     418931
RICOH USA INC                                         964.13     418990
THOMSON REUTERS-WEST                                  166.00     418994
                                                                         1,539.62*
COUNTY JUDGE

WELLS, PEYTON, GREENBERG & HUNT,LLP                   500.00     418834
CHEROKEE COUNTY CLERK                                 487.00     418858
OFFICE DEPOT                                          210.05     418884
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                            1.62     418931
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GRACE NICHOLS                                       1,700.00     418965
HARVEY L WARREN III                                 2,600.00     418970
THOMSON REUTERS-WEST                                  116.58     418994
                                                                         5,615.25*
RISK MANAGEMENT

UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                           13.32     418931
                                                                            13.32*
COUNTY TREASURER

TAC - TEXAS ASSN. OF COUNTIES                         450.00     418900
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                          164.11     418931
                                                                           614.11*
PRINTING DEPARTMENT

OLMSTED-KIRK PAPER                                    327.63     418885
                                                                           327.63*
PURCHASING DEPARTMENT

OFFICE DEPOT                                          216.47     418884
PORT ARTHUR NEWS, INC.                                378.30     418887
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                            1.20     418931
                                                                           595.97*
GENERAL SERVICES

GUARDIAN FORCE                                         36.00     418828
CASH ADVANCE ACCOUNT                                   55.00     418874
SPINDLETOP MHMR                                    32,990.75     418875
OLMSTED-KIRK PAPER                                  1,170.00     418885
ALLISON, BASS & ASSOCIATES, LLP                       864.00     418942
CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL                          1,413.81     418943
PATTILLO BROWN & HILL LLP                          20,000.00     418979
DYNAMEX INC                                           375.63     419001
                                                                        56,905.19*
DATA PROCESSING

GUARDIAN FORCE                                         36.00     418828
OFFICE DEPOT                                          108.53     418884
CDW COMPUTER CENTERS, INC.                            210.60     418916
VERIZON WIRELESS                                       75.98     418928
PCM/TIGER DIRECT                                      426.13     419015
                                                                           857.24*
VOTERS REGISTRATION DEPT

UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                          202.54     418931
                                                                           202.54*
ELECTIONS DEPARTMENT

OFFICE DEPOT                                          364.89     418884
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                           77.84     418931
SIERRA SPRING WATER CO. - BT                           60.97     418934
                                                                           503.70*
DISTRICT ATTORNEY

CAYLA CALAMIA                                         126.00     418846
JEFFERSON CTY. BAR ASSOCIATION                        270.00     418872
OFFICE DEPOT                                           23.73     418884
STATE BAR OF TEXAS                                    645.00     418898
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                          322.39     418931
THOMSON REUTERS-WEST                                  201.58     418995
HEALTHPORT                                             77.30     419000
                                                                         1,666.00*
DISTRICT CLERK

UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                          406.44     418931
                                                                           406.44*
CRIMINAL DISTRICT COURT

GAYLYN COOPER                                         800.00     418830
TERRENCE HOLMES                                       800.00     418869
OFFICE DEPOT                                           89.80     418884
JAMES R. MAKIN, P.C.                                  712.50     418978
                                                                         2,402.30*
58TH DISTRICT COURT
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UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                             .42     418931
                                                                              .42*
60TH DISTRICT COURT

UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                             .42     418931
                                                                              .42*
136TH DISTRICT COURT

UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                            1.32     418931
LEXIS-NEXIS                                           114.00     418933
                                                                           115.32*
172ND DISTRICT COURT

LEXIS-NEXIS                                            56.00     418932
                                                                            56.00*
252ND DISTRICT COURT

LEAH HAYES                                            805.10     418867
JOHN D WEST                                         3,500.00     418921
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                           78.12     418931
                                                                         4,383.22*
279TH DISTRICT COURT

CHARLES ROJAS                                       1,625.00     418918
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                             .42     418931
C. HADEN CRIBBS JR., PC                               325.00     418983
BRYAN E MCEACHERN PC                                  500.00     419002
THE MAYO LAW FIRM PLLC                                500.00     419014
                                                                         2,950.42*
317TH DISTRICT COURT

JUDY PAASCH                                         2,323.90     418948
                                                                         2,323.90*
JUSTICE COURT-PCT 1 PL 1

UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                           46.56     418931
                                                                            46.56*
JUSTICE COURT-PCT 1 PL 2

UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                            2.91     418931
NANCY BEAULIEU                                        752.95     418975
                                                                           755.86*
JUSTICE COURT-PCT 4

CASH ADVANCE ACCOUNT                                  591.55     418874
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION RESOURCES                      .43     418919
                                                                           591.98*
JUSTICE COURT-PCT 6

UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                           25.56     418931
                                                                            25.56*
JUSTICE COURT-PCT 7

DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION RESOURCES                      .28     418919
                                                                              .28*
COUNTY COURT AT LAW NO.1

LEXIS-NEXIS                                            47.00     418932
SIERRA SPRING WATER CO. - BT                           52.47     418935
                                                                            99.47*
COUNTY COURT AT LAW NO. 2

CHARLES ROJAS                                         250.00     418918
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                            9.84     418931
JOEL WEBB VAZQUEZ                                     500.00     418945
SAMUEL & SON LAW FIRM PLLC                            250.00     419008
AMY TOMLINSON                                         250.00     419012
JANSON ELLIOTT BAILEY                                 250.00     419017
                                                                         1,509.84*
COUNTY COURT AT LAW NO. 3

JOHN E MACEY                                          250.00     418877
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                           12.90     418931
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DUSTIN R. GALMOR                                      250.00     418977
SAMUEL & SON LAW FIRM PLLC                            250.00     419008
                                                                           762.90*
COURT MASTER

VERIZON WIRELESS                                      105.76     418928
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                            2.22     418931
                                                                           107.98*
MEDIATION CENTER

UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                            4.99     418931
                                                                             4.99*
SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT

COTTON CARGO                                          258.00     418857
CURTIS 1000, INC.                                     506.62     418859
OFFICE DEPOT                                          202.99     418884
CDW COMPUTER CENTERS, INC.                            758.13     418916
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION RESOURCES                      .77     418919
AMERICAN POLYGRAPH ASSOCIATION                        300.00     418920
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                        1,223.92     418931
THE PRODUCTIVITY CENTER                             6,310.00     418937
SPANKY'S WRECKER SERVICE INC                          150.00     418986
                                                                         9,710.43*
CRIME LABORATORY

FISHER SCIENTIFIC                                     324.03     418862
CERILLIANT                                            133.75     418941
LIPOMED                                               108.00     418973
JULIE HANNON                                          600.00     418998
LABSOURCE                                             186.56     419013
                                                                         1,352.34*
JAIL - NO. 2

GUARDIAN FORCE                                      1,354.00     418828
BEAUMONT TRACTOR COMPANY                            1,962.88     418843
CITY OF BEAUMONT - WATER DEPT.                     15,736.29     418851
W.W. GRAINGER, INC.                                   139.19     418864
HERNANDEZ OFFICE SUPPLY, INC.                         885.46     418868
JACK BROOKS REGIONAL AIRPORT                          484.30     418873
M&D SUPPLY                                            263.14     418876
SANITARY SUPPLY, INC.                               1,744.77     418893
SCOOTER'S LAWNMOWERS                                1,499.95     418894
SHERWIN-WILLIAMS                                      104.31     418896
WORTH HYDROCHEM                                       327.00     418911
VIN'S PAINT & BODY, INC.                              291.00     418914
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION RESOURCES                     4.49     418919
ATCO INTERNATIONAL                                    216.00     418929
INTERCONTINENTAL JET CORP                           1,938.88     418949
ICS                                                 3,678.66     418958
AIRGAS SOUTHWEST                                      340.56     418963
WORLD FUEL SERVICES                                   867.28     418969
FIVE STAR CORRECTIONAL SERVICE                     32,662.76     418971
INDUSTRIAL & COMMERCIAL MECHANICAL                  3,623.00     418987
MATERA PAPER COMPANY INC                            6,870.12     418993
THOMSON REUTERS-WEST                                4,589.25     418994
24 HR SAFETY LLC                                      125.00     419005
                                                                        79,708.29*
JUVENILE PROBATION DEPT.

OFFICE DEPOT                                          138.67     418884
SAFER SOCIETY PRESS                                   471.03     418891
VERIZON WIRELESS                                       66.88     418928
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                           19.24     418931
                                                                           695.82*
JUVENILE DETENTION HOME

CITY OF BEAUMONT - WATER DEPT.                      2,851.22     418851
OAK FARM DAIRY                                        396.00     418913
ATTABOY TERMITE & PEST CONTROL                         80.00     418968
                                                                         3,327.22*
CONSTABLE PCT 1
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VERIZON WIRELESS                                      227.94     418928
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                           26.52     418931
                                                                           254.46*
CONSTABLE-PCT 2

OFFICE DEPOT                                           19.79     418884
VERIZON WIRELESS                                      113.97     418928
                                                                            94.18*
CONSTABLE-PCT 4

MCNEILL INSURANCE AGENCY                               71.00     418880
VERIZON WIRELESS                                      113.97     418928
                                                                           184.97*
CONSTABLE-PCT 6

VERIZON WIRELESS                                      113.97     418928
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                           14.88     418931
                                                                           128.85*
CONSTABLE PCT. 7

AT&T                                                   30.59     418897
VERIZON WIRELESS                                      113.97     418928
                                                                           144.56*
CONSTABLE PCT. 8

VERIZON WIRELESS                                      113.97     418928
                                                                           113.97*
AGRICULTURE EXTENSION SVC

TERRIE S. LOONEY                                      317.52     418827
OFFICE DEPOT                                          246.13     418884
                                                                           563.65*
HEALTH AND WELFARE NO. 1

CITY OF BEAUMONT                                       40.00     418837
BROUSSARD'S MORTUARY                                1,500.00     418845
CALVARY MORTUARY                                    1,500.00     418847
CLAYBAR FUNERAL HOME, INC.                         29,500.00     418853
CLAYBAR FUNERAL HOME, INC.                          5,496.00     418854
ENTERGY                                                99.21     418866
OFFICE DEPOT                                          399.99     418884
AUSTIN CECIL WALKES MD PA                           3,245.08     418909
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                           92.49     418931
TEXAS CONFERENCE OF URBAN COUNTIES                    100.00     418940
CENTERPOINT ENERGY RESOURCES CORP                     108.77     418950
CONNIE M ROBERTS                                       60.00     418957
SAM'S CLUB DIRECT                                      82.87     418988
                                                                        42,224.41*
HEALTH AND WELFARE NO. 2

OFFICE DEPOT                                          303.97     418884
TIME WARNER COMMUNICATIONS                            270.82     418902
AUSTIN CECIL WALKES MD PA                           3,245.08     418909
MCKESSON MEDICAL-SURGICAL INC                         312.00     418917
TEXAS CONFERENCE OF URBAN COUNTIES                    100.00     418940
                                                                         4,231.87*
NURSE PRACTITIONER

GEORGE V. ZUZUKIN, M.D.                             1,000.00     418833
MCKESSON MEDICAL-SURGICAL INC                       1,149.48     418917
                                                                         2,149.48*
ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL

CASH ADVANCE ACCOUNT                                1,206.18     418874
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION RESOURCES                      .29     418919
                                                                         1,206.47*
INDIGENT MEDICAL SERVICES

GUARDIAN FORCE                                         90.00     418828
KING'S PHARMACY                                       106.96     418835
CARDINAL HEALTH 110 INC                            17,706.34     418999
DANA JOHNSON                                          450.00     419009
                                                                        18,353.30*
MAINTENANCE-BEAUMONT
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AAA LOCK & SAFE                                         7.00     418826
GUARDIAN FORCE                                         36.00     418828
CINTAS, INC.                                          573.01     418849
CITY OF BEAUMONT - WATER DEPT.                      7,905.30     418851
COBURN'S, BEAUMONT BOWIE (1)                           49.62     418856
W.W. GRAINGER, INC.                                   160.78     418864
M&D SUPPLY                                             76.72     418876
MCCOWN PAINT & SUPPLY OF TEXAS                         64.17     418879
OFFICE DEPOT                                           63.65     418884
RALPH'S INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS                        101.90     418890
SANITARY SUPPLY, INC.                               2,340.10     418893
ACE IMAGEWEAR                                         359.42     418895
AT&T                                                4,831.23     418897
WHOLESALE ELECTRIC SUPPLY CO.                         281.34     418910
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION RESOURCES                 5,312.55     418919
A1 FILTER SERVICE COMPANY                             732.70     418982
WASTEWATER TRANSPORT SERVICES LLC                     248.00     419006
                                                                        23,143.49*
MAINTENANCE-PORT ARTHUR

CITY OF PORT ARTHUR - WATER DEPT.                     765.98     418852
TIME WARNER COMMUNICATIONS                            139.34     418903
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION RESOURCES                      .86     418919
                                                                           906.18*
SERVICE CENTER

W.W. GRAINGER, INC.                                   106.56     418864
INTERSTATE BATTERIES OF BEAUMONT/PA                   243.85     418870
J.K. CHEVROLET CO.                                    129.95     418871
M&D SUPPLY                                             58.31     418876
MEINEKE                                                35.00     418881
MUNRO'S                                                33.45     418882
PHILPOTT MOTORS, INC.                                 163.04     418886
RALPH'S INDUSTRIAL ELECTRONICS                        166.10     418890
JEFFERSON CTY. TAX OFFICE                               7.50     418922
JEFFERSON CTY. TAX OFFICE                               7.50     418923
JEFFERSON CTY. TAX OFFICE                               7.50     418924
JEFFERSON CTY. TAX OFFICE                               7.50     418925
JEFFERSON CTY. TAX OFFICE                               7.50     418926
JEFFERSON CTY. TAX OFFICE                              16.75     418927
BUMPER TO BUMPER                                       22.71     418946
AIRPORT GULF TOWING LLC                               215.00     418954
AMERICAN TIRE DISTRIBUTORS                          3,813.07     418964
SILSBEE FORD INC                                      192.48     419003
                                                                         5,233.77*
VETERANS SERVICE

UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                            2.91     418931
PCM-G                                               5,475.00     418967
                                                                         5,477.91*
                                                                       291,468.87**
MOSQUITO CONTROL FUND

FALCON CREST AVIATION SUPPLY, INC.                    156.71     418861
GREG MARCINIAK                                        410.27     418878
MUNRO'S                                                86.20     418882
RITTER @ HOME                                          17.97     418889
FASTENAL                                               54.66     418915
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION RESOURCES                      .26     418919
MCFARLANE AVIATION INC                                305.54     418962
NEW PIG CORPORATION                                 1,934.05     418966
PARKER LUMBER                                          26.56     418972
SILSBEE FORD INC                                   24,042.83     419003
                                                                        27,035.05**
LATERAL ROADS -PRECINCT 1

VULCAN MATERIALS CO.                               15,000.00     418907
                                                                        15,000.00**
J.C. FAMILY TREATMENT CT.

BEAUMONT OCCUPATIONAL SERVICE, INC.                   567.45     418938
JUDY PAASCH                                            70.00     418947
JUDY PAASCH                                            50.00     418948
                                                                           687.45**
LAW LIBRARY FUND
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LEXISNEXIS MATTHEW BENDER                             992.71     418939
THOMSON REUTERS-WEST                                  832.31     418994
                                                                         1,825.02**
JUVENILE PROB & DET. FUND

VERIZON WIRELESS                                       33.19     418928
                                                                            33.19**
GRANT A STATE AID

CASH ADVANCE ACCOUNT                                  239.85     418874
VERIZON WIRELESS                                       32.18     418928
YOUTH ADVOCATE PROGRAM                              3,491.60     418959
PATTILLO BROWN & HILL LLP                           6,100.00     418979
                                                                         9,863.63**
COMMUNITY SUPERVISION FND

OLMSTED-KIRK PAPER                                    585.00     418885
FRED PRYOR SEMINARS & CAREER TRACK                     99.00     418888
TIME WARNER COMMUNICATIONS                            424.09     418901
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION RESOURCES                     2.44     418919
VERIZON WIRELESS                                      121.48     418928
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                          150.37     418931
JCCSC                                                 209.00     418976
PATTILLO BROWN & HILL LLP                           5,800.00     418979
                                                                         7,391.38**
JEFF. CO. WOMEN'S CENTER

GUARDIAN FORCE                                        615.75     418828
ALL STAR PLUMBING                                   1,085.00     418836
BELL'S LAUNDRY                                      1,132.74     418844
ECOLAB                                                204.64     418860
OFFICE DEPOT                                           85.70     418884
SYSCO FOOD SERVICES, INC.                           1,173.10     418899
BURT WALKER PARTNERS, LTD                           4,500.00     418908
PETTY CASH - RESTITUTION I                            236.00     418912
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION RESOURCES                      .20     418919
VERIZON WIRELESS                                       32.18     418928
BEN E KEITH FOODS                                   1,159.99     418944
ATTABOY TERMITE & PEST CONTROL                         50.00     418968
MATERA PAPER COMPANY INC                               11.49     418993
DEDRIA TANTON                                          59.00     419018
                                                                        10,322.81**
COMMUNITY CORRECTIONS PRG

M&D SUPPLY                                            179.61     418876
                                                                           179.61**
DRUG DIVERSION PROGRAM

OFFICE DEPOT                                           17.96     418884
                                                                            17.96**
REGIONAL COMM. SAVNS

DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION RESOURCES                   533.28     418919
                                                                           533.28**
COUNTY RECORDS MANAGEMENT

UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                           21.72     418931
                                                                            21.72**
J.P. COURTROOM TECH. FUND

VERIZON WIRELESS                                      189.95     418928
                                                                           189.95**
HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX FUND

THE LABICHE ARCHITECTURAL GROUP                       500.00     418839
GOLD CREST ELECTRIC CO., INC.                         130.00     418863
ENTERGY                                             1,446.21     418865
CASH ADVANCE ACCOUNT                                  318.08     418874
MUNRO'S                                               117.25     418882
TIME WARNER COMMUNICATIONS                            110.53     418904
TRI-CITY COFFEE SERVICE                                45.85     418905
ULINE SHIPPING SUPPLY SPECIALI                      4,346.46     418906
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION RESOURCES                     8.44     418919
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VERIZON WIRELESS                                       37.99     418928
ATTABOY TERMITE & PEST CONTROL                         55.00     418968
B&G POPCORN INC                                       179.70     418989
MATERA PAPER COMPANY INC                              104.24     418993
                                                                         7,399.75**
1957 ROAD BOND FUND

LJA ENGINEERING INC                                   465.00     418985
                                                                           465.00**
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

INTERSTOR DESIGN ASSOCIATES                         1,500.00     418981
LJA ENGINEERING INC                                27,286.50     418985
                                                                        28,786.50**
AIRPORT FUND

CASH ADVANCE ACCOUNT                                  417.62     418874
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION RESOURCES                      .08     418919
VERIZON WIRELESS                                       76.00     418928
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE                            1.66     418931
HERBERT "DUKE" YOUMANS                                561.57     418952
RICHARD "ALEX" RUPP                                   417.62     418956
PCM-G                                               2,190.00     418967
DELTA INDUSTRIAL SERVICE & SUPPLY                  18,457.75     418980
                                                                        22,122.30**
SE TX EMP. BENEFIT POOL

HOLMES MURPHY                                      13,750.00     418953
GROUP ADMINISTRATIVE CONCEPTS INC                 111,966.61     418974
                                                                       125,716.61**
SETEC FUND

APAC, INC. - TROTTI & THOMSOM                         818.72     418838
M&D SUPPLY                                             34.45     418876
MARTIN PRODUCT SALES LLC                              136.23     418955
PATTILLO BROWN & HILL LLP                          14,500.00     418979
                                                                        15,489.40**
WORKER'S COMPENSATION FD

TRISTAR RISK MANAGEMENT                             9,367.00     418951
                                                                         9,367.00**
SHERIFF'S FORFEITURE FUND

AVIALL                                              2,782.91     418840
COTTON CARGO                                          198.45     418857
VIN'S PAINT & BODY, INC.                              291.00     418914
VECTOR AEROSPACE HELICOPTER SERVICE                 6,360.00     419011
UNITED VISION LOGISTICS                             3,786.00     419016
                                                                        13,418.36**
PAYROLL FUND

JEFFERSON CTY. - FLEXIBLE SPENDING                 14,193.00     418799
CLEAT                                                 324.00     418800
JEFFERSON CTY. TREASURER                           18,883.02     418801
RON STADTMUELLER - CHAPTER 13                         932.50     418802
INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE                            3,067.46     418803
JEFFERSON CTY. ASSN. OF D.S. & C.O.                 5,080.00     418804
JEFFERSON CTY. COMMISSARY                             182.74     418805
JEFFERSON CTY. COMMUNITY SUP.                      10,295.21     418806
JEFFERSON CTY. TREASURER - HEALTH                 454,283.27     418807
JEFFERSON CTY. TREASURER - PAYROLL              1,601,876.33     418808
JEFFERSON CTY. TREASURER - PAYROLL                645,299.55     418809
MONY/MLOA                                             198.74     418810
POLICE & FIRE FIGHTERS' ASSOCIATION                 3,110.60     418811
UNITED WAY OF BEAUMONT& N JEFFERSON                    55.31     418812
JEFFERSON CTY. TREASURER - TCDRS                  613,469.58     418813
OPPENHEIMER FUNDS DISTRIBUTOR, INC                  1,906.65     418814
JEFFERSON COUNTY TREASURER                          2,585.92     418815
JEFFERSON COUNTY - TREASURER -                      6,538.56     418816
NECHES FEDERAL CREDIT UNION                        61,024.35     418817
JEFFERSON COUNTY - NATIONWIDE                      54,518.75     418818
TENNESSEE CHILD SUPPORT                               115.38     418819
SBA - U S DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY                      168.49     418820
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CALIFORNIA STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT                    117.23     418821
WILLIAM E HEITKAMP                                    748.86     418822
JOHN TALTON                                         1,560.77     418823
IL DEPT OF HEALTCARD AND FAMILY SER                    49.85     418824
CBE GROUP INC                                         152.05     418825
                                                                     3,500,738.17**
CNTY & DIST COURT TECH FD

VERIZON WIRELESS                                      227.98     418928
                                                                           227.98**
MARINE DIVISION

JACK BROOKS REGIONAL AIRPORT                          283.90     418873
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION RESOURCES                   202.24     418919
SIERRA SPRING WATER CO. - BT                           84.57     418936
THE DINGO GROUP-PETE JORGENSON MARI                   504.29     418961
WORLD FUEL SERVICES                                   619.71     418969
PALMER POWER                                          711.16     418997
                                                                         2,405.87**
GLO IKE ROUND 2

APOLLO ENVIRONMENTAL STRATEGIES INC               319,972.25     418831
                                                                       319,972.25**
                                                                     4,523,495.76***
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Special, March 28, 2016

There being no further business to come before the Court at this time,
same is now here adjourned on this date, March 28, 2016
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